
Office of the Clerk/Treasurer
 
W240N3065 Pewaukee Road
Pewaukee, WI 53072
(262) 691-0770 Fax 691-1798

COMMON COUNCIL
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA

Monday, July 19, 2021
6:30 PM

Common Council Chambers ~ Pewaukee City Hall
W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road ~ Pewaukee, Wisconsin 53072

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance

2. Public Comment - Please limit your comments to two (2) minutes, if further time for discussion is
needed please contact your District Alderperson prior to the meeting.

3. Consent Agenda

3.1. Approval of the Accounts Payable Listing Dated July 19th, 2021

3.2. Approve Common Council Meeting Minutes Dated May 3rd, 2021

3.3. Approve Common Council Meeting Minutes Dated May 17th, 2021

4. Presentation by Baker Tilly Regarding the 2020 Financial Audit [Paul Frantz]

5. PUBLIC HEARING Regarding the Beer and Wine License Request of Urban Slopes and Naming
Jared Masters as Agent [Tarczewski]

6. Discussion and Possible Action regarding the potential fundraising for an all-inclusive playground and
splash pad at the Pewaukee Sports Complex. [Phalin / Fuchs]

7. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Ordinance 21-06 Rezoning the  Property Located at N6
W27539 Northview Road (PWC 0983-999-005) from Rs-1 Single-Family Residential to Rs-4
Single-Family Residential as Requested by Debra Aukofer [Fuchs]

8. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding a Certified Survey Map for Debra Aukofer for Property
Located at N6 W27539 Northview Road (PWC 0983-999-005) for the Purpose of Dividing the
Property Into Three Separate Lots  [Fuchs]

9. PUBLIC HEARING, Discussion and Possible Action Regarding a Comprehensive Master Plan
Amendment to Change the Year 2050 Land Use/Transportation Plan Use Designation for the City of
Pewaukee for Property Located at W225 N3131 Duplainville Road (PWC 0911-993-006) from
Floodplains, Lowland & Upland Conservancy and Other Natural Areas, Medium Density
Residential, and Government/Institutional to Government/Institutional [Fuchs]
9.1     Resolution 21-07-27 Recommending Adoption of Ordinance 21-08 to Amend the City of
Pewaukee 2035 Comprehensive Master Plan and Neighborhood Plans 2015-2050 to Change the Year
2050 Land Use/Transportation Plan for the Property Located at W225 N3131 Duplainville Road
(PWC 0911-993-006)
9.2     Ordinance 21-08 Amending the City of Pewaukee 2035 Comprehensive Master Plan and



Neighborhood Plans 2015-2050 to Change the Year 2050 Land Use/Transportation Plan for the
Property Located at W225 N3131 Duplainville Road (PWC 0911-993-006) 

10. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Ordinance 21-09 Rezoning the Property Located at
W225 N3131 Duplainville Road (PWC 0911-993-006) from A-2 Agricultural and I-2 Rural
Institutional to I-2 Institutional for the Purpose of Constructing a New DPW Garage and Recycling
Yard for the City of Pewaukee [Fuchs]

11. Discussion and Action Regarding the Woodleaf Reserve Addition #3 Final Plat Located on Weyer
Road (PWC 0865-139 & PWC 0868-998) [Wagner]

12. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Deer Haven Phase 2 Road Reconstruction Project
[Wagner]
12.1     Accept the Final Engineers Report
12.2     Resolution 21-07-25 Levying the Final Assessments

13. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Steeplechase Phase 1 Road Rehabilitation Project
[Wagner]
13.1     Accept the Final Engineers Report
13.2     Approve the Final Resolution 21-07-26 Levying the Final Assessments

14. Discussion and Possible Action for Reconsideration of the Sharing the Municipal Water Main
Oversizing Cost with Westridge Builders for the Swan View Farms Development Phase 2 [Wagner]

15. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Last Mile Facility Escrow Agreement for
Improvement to Roundy Drive and Roundy Circle to Support the Project [Wagner].

16. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Alderman Bergman's Letter of Resignation [Mayor
Bierce]

17. Discussion and Possible Action to Appoint Members to Various Boards, Commissions and
Committees [Mayor Bierce]

18. Public Comment - Please limit your comments to two (2) minutes, if further time for discussion is
needed please contact your district Alderperson prior to the meeting.

19. Closed Session – You are hereby notified that the Common Council and staff of the City of
Pewaukee will convene into closed session after all regular scheduled business has been concluded
and upon motion duly made and seconded and acted upon by roll-call vote as required under
§19.85(1)(a), Stats. The purpose of the closed session is for the following:

• §19.85(1)(g):  Conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body
with respect to litigation in which it is currently involved in specifically related to
the High Pointe Centre.

• §19.85(1)(e): Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the
investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session specifically related to
the property located on Green Road / Duplainville Road. 

You are further notified that at the conclusion of the Closed Session, the Common Council may
convene into open session pursuant to 19.85(2), Stats., for possible additional discussion and action
concerning any matters discussed in closed session and for adjournment.

20. Adjournment

Kelly Tarczewski



Clerk/Treasurer 

July 15, 2021

NOTICE

It is possible that members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance to gather information that may form a
quorum. At the above stated meeting, no action will be taken by any governmental body other than the governmental body specifically referred
to above in this notice.
 
Any person who has a qualifying disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act that requires the meeting or materials at the meeting to be
in an accessible format must contact the Clerk/Treasurer, Kelly Tarczewski, at (262) 691-0770 three business days prior to the meeting so
that arrangements may be made to accommodate your request.



CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 3.1.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Clerk/Treasurer

PROVIDED BY:

SUBJECT: 

Approval of the Accounts Payable Listing Dated July 19th, 2021

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
A/P 7-19-2021
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CHECK REGISTER FOR PEWAUKEE 1/11Page: 07/13/2021 02:59 PM
User: MCMILLIAN
DB: City Of Pewauke

CHECK DATE FROM 06/16/2021 - 07/13/2021

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckCheck Date

Bank 100 GENERAL FUND CHECKING

168.10 ASR PAPEROFFICE DEPOT3(S)06/30/2021
(168.10)CREDIT FOR JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

0.00 

557.47 FLEX SPENDDIVERSIFIED BENEFIT SERVICES, INC.383(E)06/18/2021
1,507.54 DENTAL CLEARINGDELTA DENTAL384(E)06/16/2021

34,625.52 WRS GENERAL EMPLYOYEESWISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM385(E)06/30/2021
41,584.49 WRS FIRE EMPLOYEES

172.74 WRS VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS

76,382.75 

840.40 DENTAL CLEARINGDELTA DENTAL386(E)06/23/2021
3,464.04 FLEX SPENDDIVERSIFIED BENEFIT SERVICES, INC.387(E)06/22/2021

52.00 LEASING SERVICES390(E)06/18/2021
52.00 

104.00 

1,427.90 ADP, LLC392(E)06/25/2021
479.20 ADP, LLC398(E)06/25/2021

2,620.00 PAY DATE 6/4/21GREAT WEST TRUST - WDC399(E)06/25/2021
1,865.00 PAY DATE 6/4/21

4,485.00 

16,784.25 JUNE GROUP BILL ELECTRICWE ENERGIES400(E)06/25/2021

1,973.47 DENTAL CLEARINGDELTA DENTAL401(E)06/29/2021
380.64 INSURANCE CONSULTANT

2,354.11 

657.89 FLEX SPENDDIVERSIFIED BENEFIT SERVICES, INC.402(E)07/02/2021
324.00 LEASING SERVICES404(E)06/29/2021
200.00 LEASING SERVICES405(E)07/01/2021
167.85 LEASING SERVICES406(E)07/13/2021

66.98 BENEFITS - LIFE INSURANCEMUTUAL OF OMAHA407(E)06/29/2021
36.06 BENEFITS - LIFE INSURANCE
11.52 COURT - LIFE INSURANCE
8.86 ADMINISTRATOR - LIFE INSURANCE
64.00 CLERK/TREASURER - LIFE INSURANCE
19.04 EMPLOYEE SERVICES - LIFE INSURANCE
16.96 IT - LIFE INSURANCE
30.24 ASSESSOR - LIFE INSURANCE
7.68 POLICE - LIFE INSURANCE
70.72 FIRE ADMINISTRATION - LIFE INSURANCE
410.24 FIRE PROTECTIVE SERVICES - LIFE INSURANC
44.32 BUILDING SERVICES - LIFE INSURANCE
131.09 HIGHWAY - LIFE INSURANCE
86.08 ENGINEERING - LIFE INSURANCE
21.92 PARKS - LIFE INSURANCE
29.28 RECREATION PROGRAM - LIFE INSURANCE
19.36 PLANNER - LIFE INSURANCE
101.50 BENEFITS - DISABILITY INSURANCE

Page 2 of 12



CHECK REGISTER FOR PEWAUKEE 2/11Page: 07/13/2021 02:59 PM
User: MCMILLIAN
DB: City Of Pewauke

CHECK DATE FROM 06/16/2021 - 07/13/2021

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckCheck Date

54.65 BENEFITS - DISABILITY INSURANCE
999.12 DISABILITY INSURANCE
534.27 LTD - FIRE UNION
16.87 COURT - DISABILITY INSURANCE
27.79 ADMINISTRATOR - DISABILITY INSURANCE
96.58 CLERK/TREASURER - DISABILITY INSURANCE
27.79 EMPLOYEE SERVICES - DISABILITY INSURANCE
27.06 IT - DISABILITY INSURANCE
47.38 ASSESSOR - DISABILITY INSURANCE
9.61 POLICE - DISABILITY INSURANCE
98.65 FIRE ADMINISTRATION - DISABILITY INSURAN
109.17 FIRE PROTECTIVE SERVICES - DISABILITY IN
64.76 BUILDING SERVICES - DISABILITY INSURANCE
203.36 HIGHWAY - DISABILITY INSURANCE
127.15 ENGINEERING - DISABILITY INSURANCE
31.70 PARKS - DISABILITY INSURANCE
45.60 RECREATION PROGRAM - DISABILITY INSURANC
27.79 PLANNER - DISABILITY INSURANCE

1,027.00 VOLUNTARY LIFE

4,752.15 

26,431.59 WE ENERGIES408(E)06/29/2021
150.00 LEASING SERVICES409(E)06/25/2021

548.55 SCADA/TELEMETARYAT&T416(E)06/24/2021
548.54 SCADA/TELEMETARY

1,097.09 

2,620.00 DEFERRED COMPENSATIONGREAT WEST TRUST - WDC417(E)07/01/2021
1,865.00 DEF COMP - ROTH 457

4,485.00 

2,620.00 DEFERRED COMPENSATIONGREAT WEST TRUST - WDC418(E)07/01/2021
1,865.00 DEF COMP - ROTH 457

4,485.00 

637.66 SALES TAX DUE STATEWI DEPT OF REVENUE/SALES TAX419(E)07/13/2021
(10.00)SALES TAX DISCOUNT

627.66 

93,589.86 HEALTH INSURANCE CLEARINGHUMANA420(E)07/06/2021

12.93 CT NAME PLATEADVANCE NAME PLATE & BADGE13223506/17/2021
12.93 CT NAME PLATE

25.86 

81.87 HWY SHORTS REIMBURSEMENTANDREW HEPPE13223606/17/2021

87.05 HWY UNIFORMSAUCA CHICAGO MC LOCKBOX13223706/17/2021
84.15 HWY UNIFORMS

171.20 

168,996.28 CH FINAL DESIGN DPW BUILDINGBARRIENTOS DESIGN & CONSULTING13223806/17/2021
126,568.26 CH FINAL DESIGN DPW BUILDING

Page 3 of 12



CHECK REGISTER FOR PEWAUKEE 3/11Page: 07/13/2021 02:59 PM
User: MCMILLIAN
DB: City Of Pewauke

CHECK DATE FROM 06/16/2021 - 07/13/2021

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckCheck Date

295,564.54 

63.00 P&R PEST CONTROLBATZNER PEST CONTROL13223906/17/2021
2,000.00 BLD 190733 EROSION BOND REFUNDBIELINSKI HOMES13224006/17/2021

71.52 HWY FLUID FILM AND TERMINAL MARINEBUMPER TO BUMPER HARTLAND13224106/17/2021
50.00 MOBILE POP UP ARTCHERRIE LARSON13224206/17/2021

1,727.28 HWY CLEAR DIESELCOREY OIL13224306/17/2021
1,400.54 HWY UNLEADED GASOLINE

3,127.82 

3,750.00 CT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT PLANEHLERS13224406/17/2021
1,745.00 CT ELECTION EQUIP MAINTELECTION SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE13224506/17/2021
274.00 CH BUILDING REPAIRSENTRANCE SYSTEMS LLC13224606/17/2021
15.39 P&R PROGRAM SUPPLY REIMBURSEMENTGORDON MERZ13224706/17/2021
15.12 CT JUNE 2021 MILEAGEHURD, AMI13224806/17/2021
873.70 CH BUILDING REPAIRS AND MAINT.JOE WILDE CO13224906/17/2021
171.00 P&R LOGO GRAPHICS FOR PARK MAINT TRUCKSJUDI WELCH SIGNS13225006/17/2021
500.00 BLD 201375 OCCUPANCY BOND REFUNDKORNDOERFER HOMES13225106/17/2021
51.50 HWY GRAVELLAFARGE AGGREGATES ILLINOIS, INC.13225206/17/2021

215.31 HWY ROAD SIGNLANGE ENTERPRISES, INC13225306/17/2021
2,266.14 HWY ROAD SIGN
2,403.31 HWY RAOD SIGN

4,884.76 

47.69 SW UMS 17738 REFUNDLEAH ELSTON13225406/17/2021
549.00 HWY ASPHALT BLADELINCOLN CONTRACTORS13225506/17/2021
76.00 P&R PROGRAM REFUNDLINDA LAZARINE13225606/17/2021

2,000.00 BLD 180799 EROSION BOND REFUNDLISA DEBELACK13225706/17/2021
137.75 HWY WLDT LINKMACQUEEN EQUIPMENT13225806/17/2021
52.00 P&R PROGRAM REFUNDMARY MCNEILL13225906/17/2021

55.98 P&R WOOD AND HARDWAREMENARDS13226006/17/2021
14.68 HWY ASPHALT EXPANSION JOINT
5.98 HWY STARTING FLUID

76.64 

7,000.00 SPECIAL EVENT REFUND PER CCMETROPOLITAN BUILDERS ASSOCIATION13226106/17/2021
6.72 CT JUNE 2021 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENTNADINE MCMILLIAN13226206/17/2021

2,000.00 BLD 181428 EROSION BOND REFUNDNICHOLAS & STEPHANIE HAEN13226306/17/2021
307.51 CT SHARP MX 7580N CONTRACTOFFICE COPYING EQUIPMENT, LTD13226406/17/2021

29.08 BLD BATTERIESOFFICE DEPOT13226506/17/2021
585.17 CH JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
84.78 CH PAPER TOWEL
55.58 CH JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
218.44 CH JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

973.05 

86.27 HWY COMMERCIAL 9.5MMPAYNE & DOLAN13226606/17/2021
36.75 HWY WATERPREMIUM WATERS, INC13226706/17/2021

12,997.00 P&R SAND PROREINDERS, INC.13226806/17/2021
46.18 HWY TORDON

13,043.18 

217.00 HWY OIL DISPOSALSAFETY-KLEEN CORP13226906/17/2021
140.25 P&R FIELD PAINTSHERWIN-WILLIAMS13227006/17/2021
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CHECK REGISTER FOR PEWAUKEE 4/11Page: 07/13/2021 02:59 PM
User: MCMILLIAN
DB: City Of Pewauke

CHECK DATE FROM 06/16/2021 - 07/13/2021

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckCheck Date

103,694.00 ENG PAYMENT 5 OAK & PENINSULASOPER GRADING & EXCAVATING LLC13227106/17/2021
73.77 HWY UNIFORMSTRIPLE CROWN PRODUCTS13227206/17/2021
17.00 CT PUBLICATION FEE OVERPAYMENTURBAN SLOPES LLC13227306/17/2021

237.52 CT 2021 ELECTION BILLINGWAUKESHA CO TREASURER13227406/17/2021
21,661.76 PLC 1ST QTR 2021 POLICE OT
248,986.29 PLC JUNE 2021 POLICE SERVICES

270,885.57 

920.85 HWY STONE FOR DITCH/CULVERTSWAUKESHA LIME & STONE CO.13227506/17/2021
78,400.00 CT CONSTRUCTION MGMT SERVICES DPW BLDWELLSPRING CONSTRUCTION GROUP13227606/17/2021

422.40 HWY CMPA 1 PIECEWESTERN CULVERT & SUPPLY13227706/17/2021
3,812.20 HWY CMPA AND BANDS
1,104.60 HWY CMPA AND BAND
422.40 HWY CMPA

5,761.60 

1,600.00 CT W&M CONTRACT INSPECTIONWI Dept of Ag, Trade & Consumer Pro13227806/17/2021
498.00 CT ENVELOPESWISCONSIN LEGAL BLANK13227906/17/2021
333.24 JUNE HRADIVERSIFIED BENEFIT SERVICES, INC.13228006/17/2021

1,050.00 BILLINGUSPS13228106/18/2021
1,050.00 BILLING

2,100.00 

70.58 FD OXYGENAIRGAS USA13228206/23/2021
119.07 FD OXYGEN
215.51 FD OXYGEN

405.16 

575.00 P&R REFUND FOR EXPULSIONANGELA KACZMAREK13228306/23/2021
110.00 FD FLOWERSBANK OF FLOWERS13228406/23/2021
401.60 P&R WHITE CHALKCARLIN SALES CORPORATION13228506/23/2021
163.75 P&R PARK RENTAL REFUNDCASSANDRA HOLLOWAY13228606/23/2021

80.56 SW FIRST AID RESTOCKCINTAS13228706/23/2021
57.13 P&R SAFETY RESTOCK

137.69 

1,008.00 P&R COOKING PROGRAMCOOKING WITH MOORE13228806/23/2021
198.00 JUNE 2021  FLEX ADDIVERSIFIED BENEFIT SERVICES, INC.13228906/23/2021

4,469.50 IT SOFTWARE MAINT AND UPDATESELEVITY13229006/23/2021
137.50 P&R BUS RENTALFIRST STUDENT13229106/23/2021
390.00 HR HEALTH COACHINGFROEDTERT HEALTH /13229206/23/2021
72.23 SW REPLACEMENT MOTORGRAINGER13229306/23/2021

4,741.12 SW CHEMICALSHAWKINS, INC.13229406/23/2021
92.00 IT SERVER MONITORINGHEARTLAND BUSINESS SYSTEMS13229506/23/2021
432.00 P&R DANCE CAMPHECKEL DANCE LLC13229606/23/2021
34.95 FD FRZ TR60RHEIN ELECTRIC13229706/23/2021

2,100.00 P&R BASKETBALL CAMPHOOPER HANDS BASKETBALL ACADEMY13229806/23/2021
2,355.00 SW METER REPAIRSJCH WATER METER TESTING & REPAIR13229906/23/2021

12.60 FD SPARK PLUGJENSEN EQUIPMENT13230006/23/2021
255.00 P&R PUMP REPAIRSJOE DEBELAK PLUMBING13230106/23/2021
82.38 CRT RESTITUTIONKWIK TRIP13230206/23/2021

1,451.12 FD SAFETY RESTOCKLIFE-ASSIST INC13230306/23/2021
21.60 FD SAFETYPage 5 of 12



CHECK REGISTER FOR PEWAUKEE 5/11Page: 07/13/2021 02:59 PM
User: MCMILLIAN
DB: City Of Pewauke

CHECK DATE FROM 06/16/2021 - 07/13/2021

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckCheck Date

1,472.72 

1,218.00 SW MAILINGLITHO-CRAFT13230406/23/2021

93.73 FD PRO BAG MENARDS13230506/23/2021
50.58 FD WATER AND COOLER
29.46 FD BIRD FOOD, GRILL STONE
30.54 P&R WOOD FOR FISHING PIER REPAIRS
15.54 P&R VILLAGE WALL MATERIALS
26.95 P&R VILLAGE BLDG WALL MATERIALS
27.32 P&R MATERIALS VILLAGE BATHROOM

274.12 

435.85 P&R DISINFECTANTMID-AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEMICAL13230606/23/2021
3,950.00 SW BADGER ME MOBILE RECEIVER KITMIDWEST METER INC.13230706/23/2021
2,155.00 P&R YOUTH SPORTS SHIRTSMILWAUKEE COUNTY HOUSE OF CORRECTIO13230806/23/2021
230.00 HR EXAMSOCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS OF THE 13230906/23/2021
15.75 CRT SHARP MX 3571 CONTRACTOFFICE COPYING EQUIPMENT, LTD13231006/23/2021

69.81 SW OFFICE SUPPLIESOFFICE DEPOT13231106/23/2021
61.69 BLD OFFICE SUPPLIES
35.97 BLD OFFICE SUPPLIES

167.47 

1,415.00 P&R LAYOUT AND STRIPE PER CONTRACTPARKING LOT MAINTENANCE13231206/23/2021
2,719.75 FD COACHINGPARTNER2LEARN, LLC13231306/23/2021

54.99 P&R WATERPREMIUM WATERS, INC13231406/23/2021
65.99 CRT WATER

120.98 

137.56 P&R MOWER TIREREINDERS, INC.13231506/23/2021
124.00 P&R MULCHRUSS'S MULCH & TOPSOIL13231606/23/2021

8,341.23 CRT STATES SHARE OF COURT COSTSSTATE OF WI COURT FINES & ASSMTS13231706/23/2021

1,223.60 P&R UNIFORMSSUNBURST APPAREL13231806/23/2021
356.50 P&R UNIFORMS

1,580.10 

489.00 P&R LAWN SERVICETRUGREEN PROCESSING13231906/23/2021
334.94 SW TELEPHONEVERIZON13232006/23/2021
362.50 SW WELL 5 REHAB AND INVESTIGATIONWATER QUALITY INVESTIGATIONS13232106/23/2021
240.00 CRT WARRANT FEE MAY 2021WAUKESHA CO SHERIFF'S DEPT13232206/23/2021

248,986.29 PLC CONTRACT FOR POLICE SERVICESWAUKESHA CO TREASURER13232306/23/2021
18.64 PLC PRISONER HOUSING

2,429.84 CRT COUNTY JAIL ASSESSMENTS

251,434.77 

229.00 BLD ENVELOPESWISCONSIN LEGAL BLANK13232406/23/2021
229.98 HR SAFETY TRAININGWISCONSIN RURAL WATER ASSOC.13232506/23/2021

3,183.18 HWY RECYCLINGADVANCED DISPOSAL13232606/30/2021
193.65 FD OXYGENAIRGAS USA13232706/30/2021

142.00 P&R TOPSOILALL-WAYS CONTRACTORS, INC13232806/30/2021
90.00 HWY TOPSOIL
45.00 HWY TOPSOIL

277.00 
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CHECK REGISTER FOR PEWAUKEE 6/11Page: 07/13/2021 02:59 PM
User: MCMILLIAN
DB: City Of Pewauke

CHECK DATE FROM 06/16/2021 - 07/13/2021

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckCheck Date

313.30 HWY LOCK NUTS, SCREWS, WASHERSARROW TERMINAL, LLC13232906/30/2021

84.15 HWY UNIFORMSAUCA CHICAGO MC LOCKBOX13233006/30/2021
84.15 HWY UNIFORMS

168.30 

10.77 FD PERFORMANCE TOOL TRANSFER PUMPAUTO ZONE13233106/30/2021

8,000.00 PROGRESS BILLING #5 AND CAPITAL ASSET ANBAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE LLP13233206/30/2021
23,000.00 PROGRESS BILLING #6 & ADDITIONAL CAPITAL

31,000.00 

200.00 AD DEER HARVESTINGBENJIMAN WESTON13233306/30/2021

6,177.00 IT ANNUAL RENEWAL MAY 2021BS&A SOFTWARE13233406/30/2021
32,020.00 IT BUILDING SOFTWARE 2ND PMT

38,197.00 

31.60 P&R SHORTY VALVE STEMSBUMPER TO BUMPER HARTLAND13233506/30/2021
13.35 P&R VALVES
14.59 HWY ADAPTOR

59.54 

52.40 P&R SAFETY RESTOCKCINTAS13233606/30/2021
4,771.54 SW 0948050 CONNECTION FEECITY OF WAUKESHA13233706/30/2021

1,368.55 HWY CLEAR DIESELCOREY OIL13233806/30/2021
1,323.12 HWY UNLEADED GASOLINE

2,691.67 

1,098.62 IT GENERATOR ANNUAL MAINTENANCECUMMINS SALES & SERVICE13233906/30/2021
1,017.07 FD GENERATOR REPAIRS
1,009.55 FD GENERATOR REPAIRS

3,125.24 

2,873.00 HR CLEANING CITY HALLDAN PLAUTZ CLEANING SERVICE13234006/30/2021
4.28 HWY STRT GLV COUPLELLIOTT ACE HARDWARE13234106/30/2021

175.00 P&R BUS RENTALFIRST STUDENT13234206/30/2021
175.00 P&R BUS RENTAL
175.00 P&R BUS RENTAL

525.00 

4,293.17 SP ASSMT PAYOFF 35A & 35B #9333095 W274NFOSTER GROUP13234306/30/2021

1,791.00 HWY BOOST JUMP STARTHUMPHREY SERVICE PARTS, INC13234406/30/2021
1,108.93 HWY BATTERIES
124.50 HWY BATTERY CHARGER

(1,791.00)HWY CREDIT BOOST JUMPSTART

1,233.43 

330.00 P&R ZUMBA GOLD & TONING - SESSION 1JENNIFER SCHOLTKA13234506/30/2021

800.82 P&R TRIMMERJENSEN EQUIPMENT13234606/30/2021
1,370.58 FD TOOLS
766.00 HWY DIAMOND BLADE
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CHECK REGISTER FOR PEWAUKEE 7/11Page: 07/13/2021 02:59 PM
User: MCMILLIAN
DB: City Of Pewauke

CHECK DATE FROM 06/16/2021 - 07/13/2021

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckCheck Date

2,937.40 

77.25 HWY STONELAFARGE AGGREGATES ILLINOIS, INC.13234706/30/2021

102.30 FD DISINFECTING WIPESLIFE-ASSIST INC13234806/30/2021
408.04 FD SAFETY RESTOCK

510.34 

1,021.15 HWY EQUIPMENT REPAIRMACQUEEN EQUIPMENT13234906/30/2021
150.00 P&R DESIGN AND LAYOUT OF TSHIRTSMALECKI GRAPHIC ARTS SERVICES13235006/30/2021
53.61 PLC REIMBURSEMENT FOR BADGES AND BUDDIESMARC MOONEN13235106/30/2021
30.00 P&R YOGA CLASS SUBMARTHA FURST13235206/30/2021

50.00 CT LOAN REPAYMENT PAY DATE 6/4/21MATRIX TRUST COMPANY13235306/30/2021
50.00 CT LOAN REPAYMENT PAY DATE 6/18/21

100.00 

22.81 FD THREADLOCKER, HEX NUTS, WASHERS AND VMENARDS13235406/30/2021
31.49 FD WOOD LATH

54.30 

428.24 HWY BATTERY COREMILLER-BRADFORD & RISBERG, INC13235506/30/2021
449.76 HWY FILTER ENGINE
(72.00)HWY COREBIN

806.00 

201.92 HWY HOSEMOTION & CONTROL ENTERPRISES LLC13235606/30/2021
(24.84)HWY CREDIT PARTS

177.08 

6,475.00 P&R TENNIS AND BASKETBALL COURT RESURFACMUNSON INC13235706/30/2021
19.78 FD RV BLADE ADAPTERNAPA13235806/30/2021

1,829.09 CT RETIREMENT PAY DATE 6/4/21NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS13235906/30/2021
1,829.09 CT RETIREMENT PAY DATE 6/18/21

3,658.18 

90.00 HR EXAMSOCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS13236006/30/2021
146.64 HWY STONEPAYNE & DOLAN13236106/30/2021

96.00 P&R SEASONAL RESTROOMPORT-A-JOHN13236206/30/2021
96.00 P&R SEASONAL RESTROOM
96.00 P&R SEASONAL RESTROOM
96.00 P&R SEASONAL RESTROOM

384.00 

45.00 HWY WATERPREMIUM WATERS, INC13236306/30/2021

2,347.95 IT UPS BATTERY REPLACEMENTSQUALITY POWER SOLUTIONS13236406/30/2021
2,125.00 IT UPS MAINTENANCE

4,472.95 

33.50 HWY DRY SEED MULCHREINDERS, INC.13236506/30/2021
34.40 HWY SHORT FIBER WOOD
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CHECK REGISTER FOR PEWAUKEE 8/11Page: 07/13/2021 02:59 PM
User: MCMILLIAN
DB: City Of Pewauke

CHECK DATE FROM 06/16/2021 - 07/13/2021

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckCheck Date

67.90 

725.00 FD FLEET MAINTENANCE CONSULTINGRODNEY HOMERDING13236606/30/2021

200.00 HWY PARTS WASHER SERVICESAFETY-KLEEN CORP13236706/30/2021
257.00 HWY HAUL USED OIL FILTERS

457.00 

420.00 HWY DEER REMOVALSHAWNS DEER PICK UP13236806/30/2021
6,563.70 FD LARNGOSCOPESTRYKER SALES CORPORATION13236906/30/2021
630.94 HWY WELD ON LIFT POINT, VINYL HOOK, TIE SUPERIOR LIFTING SPECIALISTS13237006/30/2021
84.53 FD MATSUNIFIRST CORP13237106/30/2021

138.87 FD AIR CARDSVERIZON13237206/30/2021
96.48 FD AIR CARDS

235.35 

69,572.91 JULY 2021 JOINT LIBRARYVILLAGE OF PEWAUKEE13237306/30/2021

65.97 P&R PAINTING CLASSESVILLAGE OF SUSSEX13237406/30/2021
75.00 P&R HENNA PROGRAM

140.97 

4,253.65 HWY HAULING RECYCLABLEWASTE MANAGEMENT13237506/30/2021
26.55 CT 0943004008WAUKESHA CO TREASURER13237606/30/2021
668.90 HWY STONEWAUKESHA LIME & STONE CO.13237706/30/2021

50,000.00 QUARTERLY PAYMENTWAUKESHA PEWAUKEE CVB13237806/30/2021

1,468.30 HWY CMPAWESTERN CULVERT & SUPPLY13237906/30/2021
1,372.60 HWY BANDS
2,866.50 HWY CMPA

5,707.40 

318.86 HWY COLD MIXWOLF CONSTRUCTION COMPANY13238006/30/2021
15.04 HWY FUEL REIMBURSEMENTTOM ROGACZEWSKI13238106/30/2021

128,572.00 HWY SPIDER LIFTWELLBUILT EQUIPMENT13238207/01/2021
168.00 HR EXAMSADP SCREENING & SELECTION SERVICES13238307/08/2021

1,861.75 FD NECK STRAP, CHEST STRAP CONNECTORS ANAIR ONE EQUIPMENT13238407/08/2021
127.25 FD CHEST STRAP CONNECTORS

19,460.00 FD SCBA
4,800.00 FD PSI CYLINDER WITH CGA VALVE

26,249.00 

123.68 FD OXYGENAIRGAS USA13238507/08/2021
284.00 P&R JANITORIAL SERVICESALPHA OMEGA CLEANING, INC.13238607/08/2021
121.52 P&R MILEAGEAMY KORNOWSKI13238707/08/2021
84.15 HWY UNIFORMSAUCA CHICAGO MC LOCKBOX13238807/08/2021
59.98 P&R REFUND FOR WPRA TICKETSBARBARA BRANDT13238907/08/2021
68.00 P&R PEST CONTROLBATZNER PEST CONTROL13239007/08/2021
37.50 FD CARRY ACCESSORYBAYCOM13239107/08/2021
290.87 P&R ROTORSBUMPER TO BUMPER HARTLAND13239207/08/2021
44.00 P&R PROGRAM EXPENSESCAMP DOC13239307/08/2021
50.00 P&R MOBILE POP UP ARTCHERRIE LARSON13239407/08/2021

1,030.00 ENG 0911991 ALTA OWNERS POLICY CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY13239507/08/2021
1,030.00 ENG 0867998001 ALTA OWNERS POLICY
1,030.00 ENG 0866998 ALTA OWNERS POLICY
475.00 ENG 0868995 ALTA OWNERS POLICY
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CHECK REGISTER FOR PEWAUKEE 9/11Page: 07/13/2021 02:59 PM
User: MCMILLIAN
DB: City Of Pewauke

CHECK DATE FROM 06/16/2021 - 07/13/2021

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckCheck Date

475.00 ENG 0868996002 ALTA OWNERS POLICY
475.00 ENG 0867998 ALTA OWNERS POLICY
475.00 ENG 0867994004 ALTA OWNERS POLICY
475.00 ENG 0867994001 ALTA OWNERS POLICY
475.00 ENG 0867995 ALTA OWNERS POLICY

5,940.00 

124.28 HWY SAFETY RESTOCKCINTAS13239607/08/2021

374.76 CT PUBLICATION FEESCONLEY MEDIA13239707/08/2021
635.24 CT PUBLICATION FEES

1,010.00 

2,252.59 HWY CLEAR DIESELCOREY OIL13239807/08/2021
1,562.94 HWY UNLEADED GASOLINE

3,815.53 

216.00 P&R SOFTBALL UMPCRAIG POHL13239907/08/2021
329.15 JULY 2021 HRA ADMIN SERVICESDIVERSIFIED BENEFIT SERVICES, INC.13240007/08/2021

14,858.00 HWY #211 TRAILERELDORADO TRAILER SALES LLC13240107/08/2021
37.97 IT CAT5E CABLEELLIOTT ACE HARDWARE13240207/08/2021
550.00 FD AMBULANCE INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCEFIRE SERVICE INC13240307/08/2021

175.00 P&R BUS RENTALFIRST STUDENT13240407/08/2021
1,000.00 P&R BUS RENTAL

1,175.00 

2,955.00 FD REPAIRSHARTLAND OVERHEAD DOOR13240507/08/2021
4.00 P&R OIL FILTERHUMPHREY SERVICE PARTS, INC13240607/08/2021

340.00 ENG BUSSE ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENTIMEG CORP13240707/08/2021
39.83 P&R REIMBURSEMENTISABELLA PETOSKEY13240807/08/2021
144.00 P&R SOFTBALL UMPJOHN GAHAN13240907/08/2021

14,780.93 ENG MAY LANDFILL CHARGESJOHN'S DISPOSAL SERVICE13241007/08/2021
51,916.43 ENG CONTRACED BILLING GARBAGE

66,697.36 

83.79 HWY MAINT AND SOCKETKAESTNER AUTO ELECTRIC CO.13241107/08/2021
47,572.50 HWY #53 ONE TON DUMP TRUCKKAYSER AUTOMOTIVE GROUP13241207/08/2021

52.08 P&R MILEAGEKYLA STANLEY13241307/08/2021
144.56 HWY SHOVEL AND GUSSETLINCOLN CONTRACTORS13241407/08/2021
744.00 SW BILLING ENVELOPESLITHO-CRAFT13241507/08/2021
180.88 ENG MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENTMARIANNE HILTUNEN13241607/08/2021
50.00 PAY DATE 7/2/21MATRIX TRUST COMPANY13241707/08/2021

61.96 FD MEASURING WHEEL, WOOD GLUEMENARDS13241807/08/2021
33.98 FD LP TANK EXCHANGE
37.59 FD WASHERS AND BOLTS
83.77 HWY TOOL CADDY AND STORAGE ORGANIZER
145.28 HWY ADJ NOZZLE, CREVICE TOOL, PAPER FILT

362.58 

425.30 SW SWIVEL, ADAPTERMIDWEST METER INC.13241907/08/2021

16,042.20 CT LEGAL FEESMUNICIPAL LAW & LITIGATION GROUP S.13242007/08/2021
14,277.10 CT LEGAL FEES

30,319.30 
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User: MCMILLIAN
DB: City Of Pewauke

CHECK DATE FROM 06/16/2021 - 07/13/2021

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckCheck Date

V0.00 RETIREMENT PAY DATE 6/18/2021NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS13242107/08/2021

257.46 CT SHARP MX 7580N CONTRACTOFFICE COPYING EQUIPMENT, LTD13242207/08/2021
65.43 FD SHARP 3070N CONTRACT
132.08 ENG SHARP MX4070N CONTRACT
20.25 CRT SHARP MX 3571 CONTRACT

475.22 

199.95 CT JANITORIAL SUPPLIESOFFICE DEPOT13242307/08/2021
361.99 CT SUPPLIES
(61.61)CREDIT FOR JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

500.33 

30.80 P&R REIMBURSEMENTPAIGE KETTNER13242407/08/2021

5,800.00 HWY PAVE PER CONTRACTPARKING LOT MAINTENANCE13242507/08/2021
4,800.00 HWY PATCHING PER CONTRACT

10,600.00 

250.00 P&R PLANTSPEWAUKEE RIVER PARTNERSHIP13242607/08/2021
180.00 CT RENTAL INVOICEPITNEY BOWES GLOBAL13242707/08/2021
46.49 P&R WATERPREMIUM WATERS, INC13242807/08/2021
68.04 IT MILEAGE Q2ROBERT KEWAN13242907/08/2021

18,254.11 ENG WOODLEAF PH 4 CONSTRUCTIONRUEKERT & MIELKE, INC.13243007/08/2021
39,681.96 ENG OAK & PENINSULA CONSTRUCTION ADMIN

165.60 ENG CHRIST EVAN CHURCH EROSION CONTROL
8,899.95 ENG PAUL ROAD WATER
895.25 ENG NORTHMOUND
205.45 ENG ANGELUS EROSION CONTROL
205.45 ENG KLEIN DICKERT EROSION CONTROL

1,942.25 ENG NORTHVIEW ROAD DESIGN
205.45 ENG KINDERCARE EROSION CONTROL

30,563.43 ENG INLET REPAIR
1,707.25 ENG SWAN VIEW FARMS CONSTRUCTION REVIEW
784.15 ENG GLEN AT PARKWAY RIDGE CONSTRUCTION A

17,017.65 ENG JOSEPH ROAD DESIGN
739.10 ENG ZIGNEGO REPAIR CONSTRUCTION OBSERVAT
762.53 ENG SHADY LANE CSM

1,251.65 ENG PEWAUKEE SOUTH CONSTRUCTION REVIEW
535.45 ENG WATERS OF PEWAUKEE CONSTRUCTION REVI

123,816.68 

228.32 P&R HAWS DKG-FTN PARTRUNDLE-SPENCE13243107/08/2021

92.48 CT STAMPSSCHWAAB, INC13243207/08/2021
21.00 CT STAMP PADS

113.48 

38.00 P&R PROGRAM REFUNDSHARON BAGANZ13243307/08/2021
362,402.97 ENG OAK AND PENINSULA PAYMENT 6SOPER GRADING & EXCAVATING LLC13243407/08/2021

114.80 ENG JF MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT - DONATEDST. JUDE'S CHILDREN'S RESEARCH HOSP13243507/08/2021
7,095.18 CRT STATE'S SHARE OF COURT COSTS & ASSESSTATE OF WI COURT FINES & ASSMTS13243607/08/2021

3,528.41 ENG DUPLAINVILLE ROADStrand Associates, Inc13243707/08/2021
3,588.95 ENG DUPLAINVILLE RECONSTRUCTION DESIGN
8,331.80 ENG LINDSAY ROAD SURVEY
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CHECK REGISTER FOR PEWAUKEE 11/11Page: 07/13/2021 02:59 PM
User: MCMILLIAN
DB: City Of Pewauke

CHECK DATE FROM 06/16/2021 - 07/13/2021

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckCheck Date

15,449.16 

183.54 HR 2ND QTR FORM 720-VUNITED STATES TREASURY13243807/08/2021
351.00 ENG CONSULTING TREE ANALYSISWACHTEL TREE SCIENCE13243907/08/2021

328.00 FD TRAININGWAUKESHA CO TECHNICAL COLLEGE13244007/08/2021
320.00 FD TRAINING

648.00 

1,976.35 CRT COUNTY JAIL ASSESSMENTSWAUKESHA CO TREASURER13244107/08/2021

396.15 HWY STONEWAUKESHA LIME & STONE CO.13244207/08/2021
411.75 HWY STONE

807.90 

303.20 CT PROPERTY TAX PROCESSINGWAUKESHA STATE BANK13244307/08/2021
339.26 CT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES REFUND W338WELLS FARGO13244407/08/2021

3,767.05 HWY CMPAWESTERN CULVERT & SUPPLY13244507/08/2021
59.39 ENG DUPLAINVILLE ROAD DESIGNWI DEPT TRANSPORTATION13244607/08/2021
78.00 HR EXAMSWISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF13244707/08/2021
332.91 CT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX REFUND X446XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES13244807/08/2021

100 TOTALS:

2,464,855.80 Total of 237 Disbursements:
(1 Check Voided)

Page 12 of 12



CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 3.2.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Clerk/Treasurer

PROVIDED BY:

SUBJECT: 

Approve Common Council Meeting Minutes Dated May 3rd, 2021

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
CC Minutes 5-3-2021

Page 1 of 6



Common Council Meeting Minutes ~ May 3, 2021  Page 1 of 5 
 
 
 

City of Pewaukee           Common Council Meeting Minutes 
W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road        Monday, May 3, 2021 

  
  

 
In Attendance: 
Mayor Steve Bierce, Aldermen B. Bergman, C. Brown, I. Clark, B. Dziwulski, R. Grosch and J. 
Wamser. 
 

Also in Attendance: 
Attorney L. Martell, Administrator S. Klein, DPW Director M. Wagner, Utility Manager J. Mueller, 
Director of People and Culture K. Woldanski, City Planner & Community Development Director N. 
Fuchs, Library Director N. Champe and Clerk/Treasurer K. Tarczewski. 
 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Mayor Bierce called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. and asked everyone to stand for the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

 

2. Public Comment - None. 
 

3. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Accounts Payable Listing Dated May 3rd, 2021 
 

A motion was made and seconded (J. Wamser, C. Brown) to approve the accounts payable 
listing dated May 3rd, 2021.  Motion Passed: 6-For, 0-Against.  

 

4. Presentation by Ehlers Public Finance Advisors Regarding the City of Pewaukee's Financial 
Management Plan Update 

 

Greg Johnson from Ehlers was present for this item.  He stated the City’s long range financial forecast 
was completed based on recent discussions he had with staff.   
 

Mr. Johnson reported the large increase in general fund levy from 2020 to 2021 was primarily caused 
by adding seven additional staff members to public safety.  He said this is not a sustainable practice 
going forward under the levy limits as the model stands presently.  Mr. Johnson also said the additional 
increase in the operating levy combined with debt service for approximately $24 million in capital 
projects could potentially result in an average levy increase of 8.47% from 2022-2026.   
 

Mr. Johnson stated the City’s strength is in its capital equipment fund balance of approximately $4 
million.  It has transferred surpluses from the general fund into the capital fund over the years, which 
reduced the need to borrow.  Mr. Johnson stated the City has accumulated approximately $1.3 million 
of special assessment funds.   
 

He said the City will have challenges with the levy limits in 2022 and strategies will need to be 
implemented. He mentioned cutting operational costs, increasing non-levy revenue sources, and 
possibly needing to have a levy limit referendum for operational costs.  Mr. Johnson suggested the need 
for conducting broader policy discussions before the budget workshops. 

 

The Council members expressed their shock given the City’s current position and stated they don’t 
want to go to the taxpayers to ask for more money. 

 

5. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Implementation of the Provisions of the American Rescue 
Plan Act - Specifically the Emergency Paid Sick Leave and Family Medical Leave Expansion 
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Effective April 1, 2021 
 

Ms. Woldanski was present for this item.  She reminded the Council that they extended the provisions 
of the Families First for Coronavirus Response Act including emergency sick leave and the FMLA 
expansion through the end of April.  She stated there is a new act called the American Rescue Plan Act 
that allows employers to extend those provisions through September.  Ms. Woldanski stated the 10-
days emergency paid sick leave would be extended to everyone again, even those who have previously 
utilized the time.  It would also allow the employee to use this time to get vaccinated and stay home if 
they had any adverse reactions to the vaccination.   
 

Ms. Woldanski stated the City has a robust sick leave policy and vacation allotment.  She commented 
that there would only be possibly five employees that would require a sick leave donation if they were 
required to be off due to a Covid illness.   

 

Mayor Bierce stated a cure is available; and all the employee has to do is get a couple of shots.  He said 
the City should not pay for their choice not to be vaccinated.   
 

Mr. Wamser state private businesses pulled the plug on this as well and have offered their employees 
an extra vacation day incentive for getting vaccinated.   
 

No action was taken on this item.  
 

6. Presentation Regarding the 2020 Library Impact Report  
 

Library Director Nan Champe was present for this item.  She highlighted the services the library added in 
response to Covid in 2020.  She said they provided curbside pickup, virtual and outdoor programming, 
grab-and-go kits and expanded their Wi-Fi to the parking lot, using a federal grant.  Ms. Champe stated 
in person visits were down 49% from 2019, circulations were down 29%, and reference questions 
were down 26%.   

 

7. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Re-Approval of the 2-Lot Certified Survey Map for 
the Property Located at N27W25250 Bluemound Road (PWC 0925-990-001) With Public Street 
Dedications as Requested by Neumann Companies for The Glen at Parkway Ridge Condominium 
Development 

 

Ms. Wagner stated this CSM was originally approved by the Common Council on February 4, 2019, 
but according to Section 236.34(2) of the State Statutes, the Register of Deeds may not accept a 
certified survey map unless it is recording it within 12 months after the date of the last approval.  She 
said the applicant is requesting re-approval of the CSM.  Ms. Wagner stated no changes made.    
 

A motion was made and seconded (B. Bergman, J. Wamser) to re-approve the 2-lot certified 
survey map for the Glen at Parkway Ridge condominium development.  Motion Passed: 6-For, 
0-Against.   

 

8. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Greenland Subdivision Development 
8.1    Approval of the Grading Agreement. 
8.2    Establish the value of the guarantee as $100,000.00 for the Grading Agreement. 

 

Ms. Wagner reported the Greeenland Subdivision development was formerly Cardinal 
Meadows.  They are seeking to move forward with a grading and fill agreement.  The site needs 
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a large amount of fill which the owners have been able to secure.  As such, they would like to 
stockpile the fill on the site until such time that they start on the construction.   
 

Ms. Wagner stated it is a standard agreement and the City is requesting the letter of credit be 
established at $100,000.  
 

A motion was made and seconded (J. Wamser, B. Dziwulski) to approve the grading 
agreement for the Greenland subdivision development and establish the cash guarantee as 
$100,000.00 contingent upon the final approval of the City Attorney and City Engineer.  
Motion Passed: 6-For, 0-Against.   

 

9. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Fourth Reduction of the Swan View Farms Phase 1 
Letter of Credit from $1,128,075.56 to $595,595.80 (Reduction of $533,379.76).  
 

Ms. Wagner reported the development has been constructed through the binder asphalt layer.  She 
stated there is a small amount of grading that needs to be completed once the existing septic tanks are 
removed from the existing homes in the next few weeks.  Ms. Wagner recommended the reduction to 
the value of the letter of credit reflecting the remaining work, plus minor contingencies.    

 

A motion was made and seconded (C. Brown, R, Grosch) to reduce the Swan View Farms 
Phase I Letter of Credit down to $595,595.80.  Motion Passed: 6-For, 0-Against. 

 

10. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Duplainville Road Reconstruction and Trail Construction 
Including Lindsay Road Trail Construction 

 

Ms. Wagner stated a consultant was hired to put together an analysis of pavement options in that area.  
She said there are a great deal of trucking and construction companies that have impacted the condition 
of the road and will continue to do so.  Ms. Wagner stated the consultants came up with three 
alternatives in which there are varying opinions on what should be pursued.  The Public Works 
Committee would like to see the combination of concrete and asphalt, where City staff would like to 
pursue the concrete option.  Ms. Wagner stated it would hold up the best.  She did acknowledge that 
this is the most expensive option.  She stated most of the properties in that area are commercial and 
they would be assessed at 100% of the fees. 
 

Ms. Wagner stated the Bike and Pedestrian Path Planning Committee has recommended an off-trail 
system along the west side of Duplainville Road be considered, but she said the topography and 
existing impediments indicate the east side is a more economical location.  She estimated the cost to be 
approximately $361,500.  Ms. Wagner stated the off-road trail is not in the impact fee study and it 
would need to be amended to be able to use those funds.   
 

Ms. Wagner stated the Council also authorized the design of the trail along Lindsay Road from 
Duplainville Road to the Pewaukee Sports Complex to be completed as part of this project.  The Bike 
and Pedestrian Path Planning Committee wanted an off-road system on the north side of Lindsay Road 
at an initial estimate of $300,000 but there are several environmental concerns which will significantly 
increase the cost.  She said further analysis will be completed to look at the wetland, floodplain and 
creek crossing, as well as land acquisition costs. 
 

Ms. Wagner stated the project would be completed in 2022 and would coincide with the State’s bridge 
project over Spring Creek.  She said 80% of the project is being paid by the State and the City only has 
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to pay 20% of the cost for the bridge and would be responsible for the bike and pedestrian trails if they 
are added.   
 

The Common Council concurred with the Public Works Committee and directed staff to pursue a 
concrete roadway south of Capitol Drive and an asphalt roadway north of Capitol Drive and pursue an 
off-road trail along Duplainville Road and Lindsay Road. 

 

11. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Kathryn Court/Springdale Estates Flood Mitigation 
Project Alternatives 

 

Ms. Wagner stated there have been long standing flooding issues on the Zignego property and the City 
consistently receives complaints from the residents in the area.  She said the Engineers from AECOM 
came up with three solutions with alternative #1 being the most cost effective at the estimated cost of 
$274,000.   
 

Ms. Wagner stated this project would be funded by the stormwater utility.  It would take approximately 
three weeks to complete with the possible need for some restoration afterwards.  Ms. Wagner stated it 
would be a fall project.     
 

A motion was made and seconded (B. Dziwulski, J. Wamser) to pursue Alternative #1, 
constructing a 12-inch storm pipe from the ponding area along the Zignego property and 
through the existing public drainage easement on the north side of Kathryn Court, letting out 
into a 42-inch storm sewer system along Springdale Road.  Motion Passed: 6-For, 0-Against.   

 

12. Discussion Related to Preliminary Costs Estimates to Develop the Highway Campus 
 

Representatives from Wellspring Construction Group and Barrientos Design and Consulting were 
present via Zoom.   
 

Mr. Klein stated there was not enough space for future needs on the City Hall campus.  He also reported 
the prices for this project were originally estimated to be $10 million, but construction costs have soared 
and the estimate is closer to $12 million.  He recommended going out to bid on the materials to lock in 
prices before they go up any further.   
 

13. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Resolution 21-05-18 Rescinding the Personal Property 
Taxes for Prairie Grass Living LLC (PWC R513) Due to a Palpable Error  

 

Attorney Martell stated the items that were originally assessed were fixed appliances and are not 
considered personal property.  He recommended approval of the resolution.    
 

A motion was made and seconded (B. Bergman, B. Dziwulski) to approve Resolution 21-05-18 
rescinding the Prairie Grass Living LLC personal property taxes from 2020 in the amount of 
$776.77.  Motion Passed: 6-For, 0-Against.   

 

14. Public Comment - None. 
 

15. Closed Session – You are hereby notified that the Common Council and staff of the City of 
Pewaukee will convene into closed session after all regular scheduled business has been concluded 
and upon motion duly made and seconded and acted upon by roll-call vote as required under 
§19.85(1)(a), Stats.  The purpose of the closed session is for the following: 
 

• 19.85(1)(e): Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of 
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public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 
bargaining reasons require a closed session.  Specifically Related to the Request of Mr. & 
Mrs. Dodd to Purchase City Owned Property Located East of Their Property on Oak Street 
(PWC 0934-021) 

 

You are further notified that at the conclusion of the Closed Session, the Common Council may 
convene into open session pursuant to 19.85(2), Stats., for possible additional discussion and action 
concerning any matters discussed in closed session and for adjournment. 
 

A motion was made and seconded (J. Wamser, R. Grosch) to go into closed session at 8:51 
p.m.  Motion Passed: 6-For, 0-Against via roll call vote.   

 

16. Adjournment 
 

A motion was made and seconded (C. Brown, R. Grosch) to adjourn the meeting at 9:11 p.m. from 
closed session.  Motion Passed: 6-For, 0-Against.   

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 

Kelly Tarczewski 
Clerk/Treasurer 
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City of Pewaukee           Common Council Meeting Minutes 
W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road         Monday, May 17, 2021 

  

 
In Attendance: 
Mayor Steve Bierce, Aldermen B. Bergman, C. Brown, I. Clark, B. Dziwulski, and J. Wamser. 
R. Grosch was absent and excused. 
 

Also in Attendance: 
Attorney S. Riffle, Administrator S. Klein, DPW Director M. Wagner, Lieutenant M. Moonen, Lieutenant A. 
Sheckles and Clerk/Treasurer K. Tarczewski. 
 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Mayor Bierce called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 

2. Public Comment - None. 
 

3. Consent Agenda 
3.1.     Approve Common Council Meeting Minutes Dated April 5th, 2021 
3.2.     Approve Accounts Payable Listing Dated May 17th, 2021 
 

A motion was made and seconded (J. Wamser, B. Dziwulski) to approve the Consent 
Agenda.  Motion Passed: 4-For, 0-Against, 1-Abstain (B. Bergman). 

 

4. PUBLIC HEARING Regarding the Meadowbrook Farms Phase I Road Rehabilitation Project 
4.1     Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Preliminary Engineers Report and Proposed 
          Special Assessment. 
4.2     Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Awarding the Meadowbrook Farms Phase 1 Road 
          Rehabilitation Contract to the Lowest Qualified Bidder, Payne & Dolan, Inc. in the Amount of 
         $413,417.76.  

 

Ms. Wagner stated Meadowbrook Phase 1 paving project will be done in four phases. It will 
include Deer Haven Court, Shooting Star Court, and Shooting Star Road from Deer Haven Court 
to Shooting Star Boulevard. She noted the roads need rehabilitation including removal of existing 
asphalt pavement, curb repairs and stone base repair. Ms. Wagner stated the assessment cost for 
the road repairs are $5799.76 per residential unit and the 2021 paving cap rate for residential units 
is $2756.00. Ms. Wagner recommended we assess the properties that benefit from this project the 
paving cap. The repairs to inlets, half of the curb repairs and manholes will be paid for by either 
storm water utility, sanitary utility, or water utility. The assessment is only for the roadway and half 
of the curb. Ms. Wagner stated there were three bids for the project and she recommended 
approval of the preliminary Engineers report, the special assessments associated with it, and to 
award the contract to the lowest qualified bidder of Payne & Dolan. 
 

Mr. Bergman asked about the Glenwood Lane portion in Springdale Estates. Ms. Wagner stated 
there have been icing issues for several years and the catch basins were installed to far apart, which 
led to drainage issues. She noted the area also has a lot of sump pump discharges which cause 
icing issues in the winter and has become a safety issue. She said the City will add two inlets and 
tie it into the storm sewer system. 
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Mr. Clark asked how Ms. Wagner would rank this construction project. Ms. Wagner noted that 
roads are ranked annually on a scale of 1-10, 10 being a brand new road.  She ranked the road at a 
4 or 5 and said the City wants to catch the repairs before it is in failure.  
 

Mayor Bierce asked if this was the first time the roads have been repaired. Ms. Wagner noted they 
were originally done in the mid–90’s and haven’t had repairs since.  

 

Ms. Brown asked about the project being a quarter million dollars more than what was estimated. 
Ms. Wagner stated it is part of the LRIP (Local Road Improvement Project) which is a grant from 
the State government funding. She said she did not include it in the special assessment and about 
$20,000.00 will come off the assessable amount.  Ms. Wagner noted if the project is put off a year, 
the City will lose the funding for the year.  

 

Mayor Bierce opened the public hearing. 
 

Kevan Toby (W268 N2205 Shooting Star Road) stated he and his wife just built their house and 
he did not want the City to cut into his new driveway.  Ms. Wagner stated she would have to look 
at the curb and gutter in that area to determine if that was possible or not.  Mr. Toby added the 
street is a long stretch and people speed on it.  He recommended the City look into speed humps 
to slow down traffic. 

 

Christina Schilling (N20 W26499 Shooting Star Road) stated she owns a side-by-side condo that 
is not part of an association. She said she is being charged the same portion as the homes. Ms. 
Wagner noted that condos are assessed and considered individual units.  

 

Norman Mackowey (N22 W26579 Shooting Star Road) stated he owns a corner lot and asked if 
he would receive another assessment when Sawgrass was done.  Ms. Wagner stated no, it is 
based on what street his driveway exits upon and his address.   

 

Robert Brill (W264 N2062 Deer Haven Court) felt dividing by unit did not make sense and was 
not fair.  Ms. Wagner stated there are three ways to assess, front foot, unit, or acreage. Ms. Wagner 
noted when an assessment is done the City analyzes all three options to see which one is most fair 
and equitable. He feels he is paying double the rate for same amount of linear footage.  

 

Jim White (N22 W26497 Shooting Star Court) asked when the project would start and when the 
assessments would be due.  Ms. Wagner stated construction will start in 2021 but was unsure of 
the exact start because there is no signed contract at this time.  She assured him the City would send 
out a notice stating when construction will start. Ms. Wagner stated assessments lag a year and the 
City will send out a notice stating the project is finalized and the assessment is due. It will also lay 
out payment options. 

 

Jim Keys (N22W26648 Shooting Star Road) wanted to know how long the project would take 
and asked about the increase on the road repair project budget.  
 

Ms. Wagner stated the project will take 1½ - 2 months. Ms. Wagner noted the road repair budget 
was an Engineering estimate that was done a year and a half ago. She noted that costs have 
increased significantly, and it was not reflected in the budget. Ms. Wagner stated the City is 
requesting a budget amendment for the project. Further discussion took place regarding who 
would be paying for the repairs.   
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Mayor Bierce closed the public hearing. 
 

Mr. Bergman mentioned the federal money for infrastructure. He stated it must be allocated for regional 
projects and not a specific neighborhood project.  

 

Ms. Wagner added as part of the assessment policy, residential units are subject to the paving cap. All 
other non-residential properties would pay 100 percent of the assessment in the amount of $5799.76.   

 

Mr. Clark asked if the cap is a local ordinance or a state requirement.  
 

Attorney Riffle stated in 1984 there was a debate regarding if the City was going to be a municipality 
that assessed all costs in every local neighborhood or a municipality that has the general fund pay for all 
roads when they needed to be upgraded. He said the City decided to be hybrid, meaning the owners in 
subdivisions would pay part of it and the City would pay the rest. If a subdivision decided they did 
not want to do it, that was fine but when it goes to an absolute need, the cap was off, and they would 
be required to pay the full assessment. Attorney Riffle noted it is not an Ordinance, but a policy.  

 

Mr. Clark questioned speed humps and asked if the City has to cut into a homeowner’s driveway if it 
would be repaved or if it is the homeowner’s responsibility. Ms. Wagner stated the driveway would be 
repaired in kind.  She noted speed humps were installed in that subdivision and owners were assessed 
100 percent of cost. 

 

A motion was made and seconded (B. Dziwulski, J. Wamser) to approve the preliminary 
Engineer’s report including the proposed special assessments and award the Meadowbrook 
Farms Phase I road rehabilitation contract to Payne and Dolan, Inc in the amount of $413,417.76.  
Motion Passed: 5-For, 0-Against.   
 

5. Discussion Regarding the Springdale Estates Survey Results 
 

Mayor Bierce asked the Common Council members if they would entertain installing sidewalks or 
having no parking in the subdivision based on the responses of the survey.  Everyone concurred that the 
residents were strongly against such projects and were not willing to pursue any further discussion on 
the matter.   
 

6. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the 2020/2021 Deer Management Program  
 

Ms. Brown stated Jeff Kara and Mike Humcke were present for this item. 
 

Mr. Kara stated this program started in 2013 or 2015 in District #2. He noted there has been private 
and public cooperation with the program. He said it started in Rocky Point, then to Lake Pewaukee 
Sanitary District, and has now spread to Spice Creek, Meadowbrook Farms and Deer Haven. They are 
using sharp shooters and some volunteer bow hunters and have had dramatic results over the last year.  
Mr. Kara said they have also expanded the volunteer hunters to take advantage of the hunting season 
from September to the end of March. 

 

Mr. Humcke felt it was time to reassess where the deer management program is and where it is going in 
the future. He said the numbers have been stable and felt the homeowner’s associations have been 
helpful.  
 

Discussion took place regarding the deer herds and how the deer seemed to migrate into the 
Meadowbrook area. Sharp shooters estimated 100 deer in the area and took out 53 deer in three weeks.  
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Mr. Humcke felt the deer are actively being fed in that area. When sharpshooters set up the first night in 
Spice Creek the deer were coming in faster than they could be killed. Mr. Humcke noted that 
sharpshooters can bait deer but bow hunters cannot. He said he will talk to the DNR biologist about 
bow hunters being able to bait which he felt would improve the effectiveness.  
 

Mr. Humcke recommended another fly over to determine their location and the desired population. He 
said there were a lot of inquiries from the Meadowbrook area who were bow hunters and would like to 
hunt in the area. He noted that Delafield established the program a few years ago and used local 
residents to keep the costs down and feels Pewaukee could get a sizeable group of local residents 
together to do some of the hunting.  

 

Mr. Humcke recommended reauthorizing ordinance 6.02 3c to diminish bow hunting yards to 35, 
since it was particular to Rocky Point Road and not the rest of the City. He feels it should be 
reauthorized and looked at city-wide. He felt there are areas that need to be mapped and presented to 
the DNR as to where stands would be located. He noted only two deer ran after they were shot in three 
years. Mr. Humcke stated there was a clause that hunters could recover deer by notifying residents that 
it ran into their yard, or a resident could take care of it themselves. He noted there was a variation of the 
clause that if the resident did not want the hunter to come on their property, they could call the City 
police and they would remove the deer.   

 

Mr. Bergman asked if that was a proposal or part of the ordinance. Mr. Humcke noted it was part of 
ordinance 6.02 from 2018.  

 

Mr. Humcke stated the application permit goes from March 15 - March 31. He said it is important to 
discourage wildlife feeding and felt there needs to be more severe fines and possibly an anonymous 
hotline people can call. He suggested the City put information on the website about habitat control. He 
said part of deer management is cleaning out thickets and removing some of the habitat since deer do not 
like to be seen.  

 

Mayor Bierce asked if there has been a decrease in car versus deer incidents. Lt. Moonen stated it is 
similar to what it has been.  
 

Discussion took place regarding damage to plants and proper chemical sprays that can keep the deer at 
bay.  

 

Ms. Brown mentioned an incident in Meadowbrook Farms where residents approached sharpshooters 
while they were actively hunting. She noted that she received negative emails and phone calls against the 
hunt and asked what changes would be made moving forward.  
 

Mr. Humcke stated the most important issue is the feeding needs to stop. The feeding has also brought 
in turkeys who are eating the corn. He felt the sharpshooters should only be brought in when the herd 
gets above a certain level.  

 

Mr. Klein noted that Nathan Holoubek, the biologist from the DNR was on the phone and available for 
questions.  

 

Mr. Wamser asked if all the deer were tested for CWD. Mr. Holoubek stated that any meat that gets 
donated to the food pantry needs to be tested but fawns do not.  If an individual hunter keeps a deer 
and utilizes it personally, they are not required to have it tested.  
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Mr. Clark stated he has received emails and phone calls from concerned constituents. One issue was 
how close the blinds were set up to the homes and public spaces. Another concern was people heard 
guns with silencers. 
 

Mr. Humcke stated the sites that were selected were not far enough away. After the first night they 
were moved, and the area was resighted. He noted all sharpshooter guns have silencers.  
 

Mr. Clark asked if sharpshooting and bow hunting was the most ethical and efficient option. Mr. 
Holoubek stated this is the most ethical option and it is more stressful for the deer to die from capture.  
He also noted that sterilization drugs are not approved in Wisconsin. 

 

Mayor Bierce thought silencers were not going to be used. Discussion took place regarding the use of 
silencers and how it affects the program.  

 

Mr. Bergman thanked them for the work and said he initially did not support the project. He felt it was a 
state issue. He asked why the Lake Sanitary district property is not being used. Mr. Humcke stated they 
control the property and felt there needs to be better usage of the land. Mr. Klein stated they have their 
own hunting program and feels they look for trophy deer.  
 

Mr. Bergman stated he is against creating a system for Pewaukee residents to tattle on other residents. 
He said there is already a baiting hotline in place with the DNR. Mr. Bergman feels we can educate 
our residents through the City’s website.  

 

Debra Sonderhouse (N16W26553 Conservancy Drive) wanted to point out the beauty of living on a 
conservancy. The location of the shooting was deplorable, and the sounds of the gun shots were scary. 
All the animal carcasses were pulled out in front of people. There were blood and shell casings in the 
road. She does not want her taxes going towards killing deer.  She objected to the comments about 
feeding the deer and felt it was an excuse for what is happening. People need to do research to find out 
what deer eat and do not eat. There are repellants available for plants and other options available. This 
was the deer's land. 

 

Jenette Barton (N15W26518 Golf View Lane Unit E) had the unfortunate front row seat witnessing 
the deer killing directly in front of her condo. She called the warden and DNR to have the deer blind 
and killing moved, which moved it closer to the walking path and hotel pool. She said guns were used, 
not bow and arrows. She was asking to have the Spice Creek Condominium Conservancy land 
removed from future deer culls. The stress of witnessing baited deer is cruel and insensitive and feels it 
needs to be done away from the residents. 

 

Marge Wappler (N16W26443 Meadowgrass Circle) stated culling by baiting deer and then killing them 
is against her religious beliefs and other preventive measures should be taken.  

 

Sally Devriend (N16W26532 Meadowgrass Circle) stated she was a member of the Board of 
Directors at her HOA and were the last ones to be notified that this was going to happen.  She felt they 
were pushed into it and there was no room there to do a cull on the property. It was very frightening. 
She was concerned it will be more dangerous if you’re asking other volunteers to join in on a cull due 
to the dense area. She felt it needed to be better planned.   

 

Laura Connolly (N17W26851 E. Fieldhack Dr Unit E) moved out to the country area where there is a 
conservancy and wants to see and appreciate the wildlife. She made calls to Mr. Klein and Mr. 
Holoubek to get a better understanding about why the City was doing this, only to find out it was a 

Page 6 of 9



Common Council Meeting Minutes ~ May 17, 2021  Page 6 of 8 
 
 
 
 

nuisance kill. She stated she would like to get an educational team to work with the HOA.  She did not 
find out about this until the Saturday before the kill. She would like the City to alert her ahead of time so 
they have a voice before it happens. She asked to work together with the deer, DNR and the City to 
better coexist with the deer. 

 

Jim Keys (N22W26648 Shooting Star Road) has a wooded area behind him and there are a ton of deer 
in his area. All the plants are deer resistant, and sprays after every rain and put nets over them. Every 
year the deer population gets worse. He felt this year the deer are eating everything.  

 

Ron Sonderhouse (N16 W265533 Conservancy Drive) stated he was on the Board of Directors at 
Spice Creek. His biggest concerns with his constituents was the lack of communication. He found out 
three weeks before it happened. He felt future culls will probably be denied and should not be 
happening in subdivisions. 

 

Christine Howard (N16W26487 Meadowgrass Circle) stated she was on the Board and felt they didn't 
have control as to how it was done.  She said she lives on the golf course and still sees a multitude of 
deer who are eating their plants. She said this winter was hard on the deer and they were struggling. She 
felt deer hunting should be allowed and there would not be an issue and felt they need to keep the 
population under control. 

 

Mike Becker (N29 W26211 Steeplechase Court) felt the deer have not gotten better in his area and 
have gotten worse instead. He has as netted and sprayed to no avail. He thanked the City for their 
efforts and feels it needs to be done. But wanted better communication and better locations. There are 
also health issues associated with the deer. He hoped the efforts would continue. 

 

Debbie Brent (N20W26623 Sawgrass Lane) stated she was the president of Meadowbrook Farms 
HOA and thanked the City for their efforts. She said there was a 2 to 1 ratio in favor of doing the cull. 
She has been using the Deer Hotline for three years but is not getting a response.  She stated she will be 
putting out information on how to live with deer and felt education is important. 

 

James Vetro (W261 N2809 Deer Haven Drive) stated he was the President of Steeplechase HOA. He 
asked about proposing it to be a club hunt and questioned how that can be done when the deer 
management plan calls for the City to own and champion it. He asked about the target of 15-25 deer per 
square mile and the need to understand what is being measured. He also questioned cutting out 
underbrush and if they need approval since the property is adjacent to the Village.  
 

Mr. Bergman stated Urban Bow Hunting is an idea that worked in other communities. Hunters are 
vetted, need to qualify and there are a set of rules. He said we are acting off the opinion of the DNR 
biologist that there are too many deer in the area. Discussion took place regarding adjacent properties and 
municipal boundaries.  

 

Mr. Klein stated the City is the permit holder and issue the tags to the various groups. It was acted 
upon because there was a request of the homeowner’s association, and we are not forcing ourselves 
into the neighborhoods. He said the County is not involved and the State is only involved through the 
DNR who advises us and issues the permits.   

 

Ms. Brown suggested going over Ordinance 6.02 3C and bringing it back at some point to see if the 
Common Council would permanently make it 100 yards for bow hunters and sharp shooters for deer 
management.  
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7. Discussion Related to Reporting Illegal Wildlife Feeding Either Through the City of Pewaukee's 
Property Maintenance Complaint Form or the Department of Natural Resources' Hotline  
 

There was no additional discussion regarding this item. It was discussed as part of Item #6. 
 

8. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Award of the Bid for the Well No. 5 HMO Treatment 
Facility & Building Modification to the Lowest Qualified Bidder, J. H. Hassinger, Inc., in the Amount 
of $2,613,667.00 

 

Ms. Wagner stated the Northmound well #5 has had issues with radium violations.  Prework was done to 
determine if any treatment needed to be done to ensure the water quality was good and discovered a 
partial collapse in the bore hole. Previously, Common Council authorized the City to go in and remove 
the partial collapse. After working with a well driller and water quality specialist, the collapse cannot be 
removed. Ms. Wagner said the City needs to determine if the well is long term viable. Since it is located 
on the Waukesha fault line, it makes it an unstable well. She said the City needed more time to determine 
if they wanted to spend $3.5 million to put a treatment system in. It was submitted to the DNR and the 
City obtained a one-year extension on the consent order to bring the well into compliance. She noted the 
City is exploring the viability of the well for this year and will be doing additional testing and putting 
together studies looking for another well in the area that is more suitable so a new well can be drilled. 
Ms. Wagner is asking for Common Council to reject all bids for the treatment system.  

 

A motion was made and seconded (J. Wamser, B. Dziwulski) to reject all bids for the Well #5 
HMO Treatment Facility and Building modification. Motion Passed: 5-For, 0-Against.   

 

9. Public Comment - Please limit your comments to two (2) minutes, if further time for discussion is 
needed please contact your district Alderperson prior to the meeting. 

 

Jane Kopczynski (W222N2807 Timberwood Court) stated she personally spent ten hours of her own 
time surveying 83 households in her neighborhood. She reported 77 wanted no change, 4 homes 
wanted change and 2 did not care one way or the other.  Ms. Kopczynski stated the way the City 
worded the survey was interrupted as the residents had to choose one way or the other.   

 

Ed Liesman (N22W22215 Meadowood Court) asked for the nature of the complaints to facilitate the 
survey. 

 

10. Closed Session – You are hereby notified that the Common Council and staff of the City of 
Pewaukee will convene into closed session after all regular scheduled business has been concluded 
and upon motion duly made and seconded and acted upon by roll-call vote as required under 
§19.85(1)(a), Stats. The purpose of the closed session is for the following: 

 

• §19.85(1)(e): Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of 
public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 
bargaining reasons require a closed session, specifically for the consideration to acquire 
additional land for the Department of Public Works facilities at Green Road / Duplainville 
Road. 

 

You are further notified that at the conclusion of the Closed Session, the Common Council may 
convene into open session pursuant to 19.85(2), Stats., for possible additional discussion and action 
concerning any matters discussed in closed session and for adjournment. 
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A motion was made and seconded (B. Bergman, B. Dziwulski) to go into closed session at 8:39 
p.m.  The motion passed 5-For, 0-Against via roll call vote. 

 

11. Adjournment 
 

A motion was made and seconded to adjourn the meeting at 9:16 p.m. while still in 
closed session.  Motion Passed: 5-For, 0-Against. 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
 

Kelly Tarczewski 
Clerk/Treasurer 
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See notes to the financial statements
4

Business-
Governmental Type

Activities Activities Total

Assets
Cash and investments 19,490,980$     12,884,670$     32,375,650$     
Receivables (net):

Taxes 11,446,787       -                       11,446,787       
Delinquent personal property taxes 1,090                -                       1,090                
Accounts 418,866            1,084,895         1,503,761         
Accrued interest 49,931              -                       49,931              
Special assessments 1,154,152         475,361            1,629,513         

Due from other governments 138,932            -                       138,932            
Internal balances (202,439)          202,439            -                       
Investment in Pewaukee Public Library 382,332            -                       382,332            
Inventories and prepaid expenses 249,795            11,877              261,672            
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments -                       60,070              60,070              
Net pension asset 1,300,549         97,101              1,397,650         

Capital assets:
Land 3,723,769         530,387            4,254,156         
Construction in progress 644,290            1,570,374         2,214,664         
Other capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation 48,722,215       73,189,405       121,911,620     

Total assets 87,521,249       90,106,579       177,627,828     

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension related items 3,050,569         257,018            3,307,587         

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,864,928         1,908,147         3,773,075         
Deposits 349,950            26,177              376,127            
Current portion of long-term obligations 998,361            595,123            1,593,484         
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 5,155,668         7,543,081         12,698,749       

Total liabilities 8,368,907         10,072,528       18,441,435       

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenue 12,746,842       -                       12,746,842       
Pension related items 3,878,078         318,067            4,196,145         

Total deferred inflows of resources 16,624,920       318,067            16,942,987       

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 47,699,229       67,239,939       114,939,168     
Restricted 3,737,421         157,171            3,894,592         
Unrestricted 14,141,341       12,575,892       26,717,233       

Total net position 65,577,991$     79,973,002$     145,550,993$   

City of Pewaukee
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2020
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Nonmajor Total
Storm Water Debt Governmental Governmental

General Management Service Funds Funds

Assets
Cash and Investments 6,972,929$ 3,876,084$ 1,836,762$ 6,805,205$ 19,490,980$

Receivables (net):
Taxes 9,949,065 579,880 832,842 85,000 11,446,787
Delinquent personal property taxes 1,090 - - - 1,090
Accounts 323,205 22,161 - 73,500 418,866
Special assessments - - 1,154,152 - 1,154,152
Accrued interest 49,931 - - - 49,931

Due from other governments 138,932 - - - 138,932
Inventories 190,134 - - - 190,134
Prepaid items 56,051 3,610 - - 59,661

-
Total assets 17,681,337$ 4,481,735$ 3,823,756$ 6,963,705$ 32,950,533$

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable 748,509$ 142,253$ -$ 780,317$ 1,671,079$
Accrued liabilities 161,082 - - - 161,082
Deposits 349,950 - - - 349,950
Due to other funds 202,439 - - - 202,439

Total liabilities 1,461,980 142,253 - 780,317 2,384,550

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues 10,214,807 1,614,193 832,842 85,000 12,746,842
Unavailable revenues 94,375 - 1,154,152 - 1,248,527

Total deferred inflows of resources 10,309,182 1,614,193 1,986,994 85,000 13,995,369

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable 247,275 3,610 - - 250,885
Restricted - - 1,836,762 632,877 2,469,639
Committed - - - 5,465,511 5,465,511
Assigned - 2,721,679 - - 2,721,679
Unassigned 5,662,900 - - - 5,662,900

Total fund balances 5,910,175 2,725,289 1,836,762 6,098,388 16,570,614

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources and fund balances 17,681,337$ 4,481,735$ 3,823,756$ 6,963,705$ 32,950,533$

City of Pewaukee
Balance Sheet - Government Funds
December 31, 2020
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7

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 16,570,614$     

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of 
 Net Position are Different Because

Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds (See Note 2). 53,090,274       

The City's investment in the library joint venture is not a financial resource and,
therefore, is not reported in the fund statements. 382,332            

Some receivables that are not currently available are reported as unavailable
revenues in the fund financial statements but are recognized as revenue when
earned in the government-wide statements. 1,248,527         

The net pension asset does not relate to current financial resources and is not
reported in the governmental funds. 1,300,549         

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pension do not related to 
current financial resources and are not reported in the governmental funds. (827,509)          

Some liabilities, including long-term debt, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore, are not reported in the funds (See Note 2). (6,186,796)       

Net position of governmental activities 65,577,991$     

City of Pewaukee
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2020
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Nonmajor Total
Storm Water Debt Governmental Governmental

General Management Service Funds Funds

Revenues
Taxes 8,109,284$      -$                     1,743,346$      1,195,171$      11,047,801$     
Intergovernmental 1,783,343        -                       -                       16,763             1,800,106        
Licenses and permits 840,666           300                  -                       -                       840,966           
Fines forfeitures and penalties 324,529           -                       -                       -                       324,529           
Public charges for services 1,843,032        1,601,665        -                       55,746             3,500,443        
Intergovernmental charges for services 1,952,442        39,684             -                       -                       1,992,126        
Investment income 229,421           33,371             47,296             59,617             369,705           
Miscellaneous revenues 98,671             87,278             -                       15,000             200,949           

Total revenues 15,181,388      1,762,298        1,790,642        1,342,297        20,076,625      

Expenditures
Current:

General government 2,176,094        -                       -                       -                       2,176,094        
Public safety 8,128,524        -                       -                       10,297             8,138,821        
Public works 2,789,776        703,369           -                       -                       3,493,145        
Health and human services -                       -                       -                       31,916             31,916             
Culture and recreation 2,053,148        -                       -                       -                       2,053,148        
Conservation and development -                       -                       -                       220,812           220,812           

Capital Outlay -                       1,710,106        -                       2,416,101        4,126,207        
Debt Service:

Principal -                       -                       1,244,040        -                       1,244,040        
Interest, issuance costs and fiscal charges -                       -                       133,420           -                       133,420           

Total expenditures 15,147,542      2,413,475        1,377,460        2,679,126        21,617,603      

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
  over expenditures 33,846             (651,177)          413,182           (1,336,829)       (1,540,978)       

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 91,000             -                       -                       -                       91,000             
Transfers in 590,154           17,940             257,577           1,115,990        1,981,661        
Transfers out (992,810)          (257,577)          -                       (161,120)          (1,411,507)       

Total other financing sources (uses) (311,656)          (239,637)          257,577           954,870           661,154           

Net change in fund balances (277,810)          (890,814)          670,759           (381,959)          (879,824)          

Fund Balances, Beginning (as restated) 6,187,985        3,616,103       1,166,003       6,480,347       17,450,438     

Fund Balances, Ending 5,910,175$      2,725,289$      1,836,762$      6,098,388$      16,570,614$     

City of Pewaukee
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020
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See notes to the financial statements
9

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (879,824)$        

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are
Different Because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the 
statement of net position, the cost of these assets is capitalized and they are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense
in the statement of activities:

Capital outlay is reported as an expenditure in the fund financial
statements, but is capitalized in the government-wide statements 4,126,207          
Some items reported as capital outlay were not capitalized (395,976)           
Contributed assets 65,653               
Depreciation is reported in the government-wide statements (3,112,924)        
Net book value of assets retired (63,435)             

Receivables not currently available are reported as revenue when collected 
or currently available in the fund financial statements but are recognized as 
revenue when earned in the government-wide financial statements. 1,174,061          

The proportionate share of the change in net position related to joint ventures reported in the
statement of activities neither provides nor uses current financial resources and is not
reported in the fund financial statements. 15,809               

Debt issued provides current financial resources to governmental funds, 
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net
position. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of
net position.

Principal repaid 1,244,040          

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds. 

Compensated absences (102,348)           
Accrued interest on debt 9,578                 
Net pension liability/asset 2,670,107          
Deferred inflows/outflows of resources related to pension (2,654,367)        

Governmental funds report debt premiums and discounts as other financing 
sources (uses) or expenditures. However, in the statement of net position, these 
are reported as additions or deductions from long-term debt. These are allocated 
over the period the debt is outstanding in the statement of activities and are reported 
as interest expense:

Amortization of debt premiums 9,613                 

Change in net position of governmental activities 2,106,194$       

Year Ended December 31, 2020

City of Pewaukee
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
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Water Utility Sewer Utility Total

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and investments 237,500$         12,647,170$ 12,884,670$
Receivables: 

Accounts 424,832           660,063           1,084,895        
Special assessments 82,553             392,808           475,361           

Due from other funds 34,492             167,947           202,439           
Inventory 11,877             -                       11,877             
Restricted assets - cash and investments 60,070             -                       60,070             

Total current assets 851,324           13,867,988      14,719,312      

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets:

Land 530,387           -                       530,387           
Construction in progress 327,950           1,242,424        1,570,374        
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 36,931,297      36,258,108      73,189,405      

Restricted asset - net pension asset 62,906             34,195             97,101             
Advance to water -                       7,404,609        7,404,609        

Total noncurrent assets 37,852,540      44,939,336      82,791,876      

Total assets 38,703,864      58,807,324      97,511,188      

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension related items 170,779           86,239             257,018           

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 231,217           1,604,133        1,835,350        
Accrued liabilities 59,754             13,043             72,797             
General obligation debt 467,225           95,194             562,419           
Compensated absences 21,258             11,446             32,704             

Total current liabilities 779,454           1,723,816        2,503,270        

Noncurrent Liabilities:
General obligation debt 6,335,390        1,152,418        7,487,808        
Compensated absences 35,927             19,346             55,273             
Advance from sewer 7,404,609        -                       7,404,609        
Deposits 26,177             -                       26,177             

Total noncurrent liabilities 13,802,103      1,171,764        14,973,867      

Total liabilities 14,581,557      2,895,580        17,477,137      

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension related items 207,887           110,180           318,067           

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 30,987,019      36,252,920      67,239,939      
Restricted for radium capital projects 60,070             -                       60,070             
Restricted for pensions 62,906             34,195             97,101             
Unrestricted (deficit) (7,024,796)       19,600,688      12,575,892      

Total net position 24,085,199$ 55,887,803$ 79,973,002$

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

City of Pewaukee
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2020
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Water Sewer Total

Operating Revenues 2,271,457$ 3,453,260$ 5,724,717$

Operating Expenses
Operation and maintenance 1,260,303 2,976,745 4,237,048
Depreciation 1,307,869 787,184 2,095,053
Taxes 27,908 - 27,908

Total operating expenses 2,596,080 3,763,929 6,360,009

Operating income (loss) (324,623) (310,669) (635,292)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 5,881 48,244 54,125
Interest and fiscal charges (172,551) (31,075) (203,626)
Miscellaneous revenue - 144 144
Proceeds on sale of capital assets 8,425 8,425 16,850
Amortization 11,649 2,514 14,163

Total nonoperating income (expense) (146,596) 28,252 (118,344)

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (471,219) (282,417) (753,636)

Contributions and Transfers
Capital contributions 481,186 268,102 749,288
Transfers (570,154) - (570,154)

Total contributions and transfers (88,968) 268,102 179,134

Change in net position (560,187) (14,315) (574,502)

Net Position, Beginning (as restated) 24,645,386 55,902,118 80,547,504

Net Position, Ending 24,085,199$ 55,887,803$ 79,973,002$

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

City of Pewaukee
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds
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Water Sewer Totals

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers 2,249,805$ 3,504,899$ 5,754,704$
Paid to vendors for goods and services (1,226,272) (2,156,294) (3,382,566)
Paid to employees for services (95,559) (141,768) (237,327)

Net cash flows from operating activities 927,974 1,206,837 2,134,811

Cash Flows From Noncapital and
Related Financing Activities

Principal (paid)/collected on advances
from/to other funds 636,332 (636,332) -

Transfers to other funds (570,154) - (570,154)

Net cash flows from noncapital and 
related financing activities 66,178 (636,332) (570,154)

Cash Flows From Capital and 
Related Financing Activities

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (688,276) (688,654) (1,376,930)
Principal paid on long-term debt retirements (460,960) (89,663) (550,623)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 8,425 8,425 16,850
Collection of special assessments, net 13,097 141,722 154,819
Interest paid (175,372) (31,542) (206,914)

Net cash used by capital and 
related financing activates (1,303,086) (659,712) (1,962,798)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Investment income 5,881 48,244 54,125

Net Change in Cash and Investments (303,053) (40,963) (344,016)

Cash and Investments, Beginning (restated) 600,623 12,688,133 13,288,756

Cash and Investments, Ending 297,570$ 12,647,170$ 12,944,740$

City of Pewaukee
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds
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City of Pewaukee
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Water Sewer Totals

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash From Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) (324,623)$ (310,669)$ (635,292)$
Nonoperating income - 144 144
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

(loss) to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation expense 1,307,869 787,184 2,095,053

Changes in assets, deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (27,144) 31,052 3,908
Due from other funds 6,623 20,443 27,066
Pension related deferrals and assets 3,524 (2,351) 1,173
Accounts payable (23,862) 675,024 651,162
Prepaids 207 - 207
Customer deposits (1,131) - (1,131)
Inventory (3,391) - (3,391)
Accrued liabilities (10,098) 6,010 (4,088)

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 927,974$ 1,206,837$ 2,134,811$

Reconciliation of Cash and Investments to the
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds

Cash and investments - statement of net position 237,500 12,647,170 12,884,670
Restricted cash and investments - 

statement of net position 60,070 - 60,070

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending 297,570$ 12,647,170$ 12,944,740$

Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities
Amortization on premiums 11,649$ 2,514$

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Page 54 of 95



See notes to the financial statements
14

Custodial Fund
Tax Collection

Fund
Assets

Cash and investments 24,829,749$     
Taxes receivable 13,705,180       

Total assets 38,534,929       

Liabilities
Due to other taxing units 38,534,929       

Net Position

Total net position -$                     

City of Pewaukee
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
December 31, 2020
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Custodial Fund
Tax Collection

Fund

Additions
Tax collections 27,002,038$     

Deductions
Tax disbursements to other entities 27,002,038       

Change in fiduciary net position -                       

Net Position, Beginning -                       

Net Position, Ending -$                     

City of Pewaukee
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Year Ended December 31, 2020
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Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted net position

Unrestricted net position

Nonspendable

Restricted
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Committed

Assigned

Unassigned
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unavailable unearned revenue

unavailable revenue  unearned revenue 
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* No post-retirement adjustment is guaranteed. Actual adjustments are based on recognized
investment return, actuarial experience and other factors. 1.9 percent is the assumed annual
adjustment based on the investment return assumption and the post-retirement discount rate. 

Page 84 of 95



Page 85 of 95



Page 86 of 95



Leases

Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period

Conduit Debt Obligations

Omnibus 2020

Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates

Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements

Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32
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See notes to required supplementary information
47

Original and Variance With
Final Budget Actual Final Budget 

Revenues
Taxes 8,843,795$        8,109,284$       (734,511)$        
Intergovernmental 1,598,766          1,783,343         184,577           
Regulation and compliance 1,534,412          1,165,194         (369,218)          
Charges for services 2,785,980          3,795,475         1,009,495        
Interest 317,813             229,421            (88,392)            
Miscellaneous 128,272             98,671              (29,601)            

Total revenues 15,209,038        15,181,388       (27,650)            

Expenditures
Current:

General government 2,497,816          2,176,094         321,722           
Public safety 8,254,150          8,128,524         125,626           
Public works 2,966,836          2,789,776         177,060           
Culture and recreation 2,242,740          2,053,148         189,592           

Total expenditures 15,961,542        15,147,542       814,000           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (752,504)            33,846              786,350           
over expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 50,000               91,000              41,000             
Transfers in 600,000             590,154            (9,846)              
Transfers out (197,384)            (992,810)          (795,426)          

Total other financing sources (uses) 452,616             (311,656)          (764,272)          

Net change in fund balance (299,888)$          (277,810)         22,078$           

Fund Balance, Beginning 6,187,985         

Fund Balance, Ending 5,910,175$       

City of Pewaukee
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2020
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See notes to required supplementary information
48

Original and Variance With
Final Budget Actual Final Budget 

Revenues
Intergovernmental charges for services 20,000$            39,684$            19,684$            
Licenses and permits -                       300                   300                   
Public charges for services 1,585,000         1,601,865         16,865              
Investment income -                       33,371              33,371              
Miscellaneous revenues 51,400              87,278              35,878              

Total revenues 1,656,400         1,762,498         106,098            

Expenditures
Current:

Public works 723,405            703,369            20,036              
Capital outlay 5,717,181         1,710,106         4,007,075         

Total expenditures 6,440,586         2,413,475         4,027,111         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (4,784,186)       (650,977)          4,133,209         
over expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds of debt issued 1,300,000         -                       (1,300,000)       
Transfers in 17,916              17,940              24                     
Transfers out (257,377)          (257,577)          (200)                 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,060,539         (239,637)          (1,299,976)       

Net change in fund balance (3,723,647)$     (890,614)         2,833,233$       

Fund Balance, Beginning (as restated) 3,616,103         

Fund Balance, Ending 2,725,489$       

City of Pewaukee
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Storm Water Management Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2020
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See notes to required supplementary information
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Proportionate
Share of the Net Plan Fiduciary

Proportion Proportionate Pension Liability (Asset) Net Position
WRS of the Net Share of the as a Percentage as a Percentage

Fiscal Year Pension Net Pension Covered of Covered of the Total
Ending Liability (Asset) Liability (Asset) Payroll Payroll Pension Liability

12/31/14 0.03676663% (903,089)$        4,320,562$       -20.90% 102.74%
12/31/15 0.03685216% 598,841             4,450,859          13.42% 98.20%
12/31/16 0.03771766% 310,884             4,631,126          6.71% 99.12%
12/31/17 0.03933083% (1,167,779)        4,938,228          -23.70% 102.93%
12/31/18 0.04138922% 1,472,498          5,206,135          28.28% 96.45%
12/31/19 0.04334531% (1,397,650)        5,544,374          25.21% 102.96%

Contributions in
Relation to the Contributions

Contractually Contractually Contribution as a Percentage
City Required Required Deficiency Covered of Covered

Year Ending Contributions Contributions (Excess) Payroll Payroll

12/31/15 360,217$          360,217$          -$                     4,460,859$              8.08%
12/31/16 367,821             367,821             -                        4,631,126                 7.94%
12/31/17 424,351             424,351             -                        4,938,228                 8.59%
12/31/18 446,999             446,999             -                        5,206,135                 8.59%
12/31/19 468,041             468,041             -                        5,544,374                 8.44%
12/31/20 535,948             535,948             -                        5,889,107                 9.10%

Schedule of Employer Contributions - Wisconsin Retirement System

City of Pewaukee
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) - Wisconsin Retirement System
Year Ended December 31, 2020
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Changes in benefit terms

Changes in assumptions
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 5.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Clerk/Treasurer

PROVIDED BY:

SUBJECT: 

PUBLIC HEARING Regarding the Beer and Wine License Request of Urban Slopes and Naming Jared Masters as
Agent [Tarczewski]

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

If you decide to grant this license please make it contingent upon receiving a copy of their Wisconsin Seller's Permit.  

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Urban Slopes Application
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 6.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Planning

PROVIDED BY: Nick Fuchs

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Possible Action regarding the potential fundraising for an all-inclusive playground and splash pad at the
Pewaukee Sports Complex. [Phalin / Fuchs]

BACKGROUND: 

Staff has previously discussed the potential for an all-inclusive playground and splash pad project at the Pewaukee
Sports Complex. Below is an update and discussion regarding potential next steps related to this project.  
 
Staff efforts to date include research, creation of a marketing flyer and limited outreach to foundations and local businesses
for possible donations or sponsorships. 
 
Staff also spoke with McDonaldSchaefer, a firm that assists nonprofits with fundraising campaigns. Attached is a proposal
that outlines different levels of services and costs. If determined this type of assistance is needed to fundraise for this
project, staff would look into some initial fundraising opportunities to cover these costs.
 
 Coincidentally, staff was also recently approached by a City resident, Shana Belich, who inquired if the City would
consider the development of an all-inclusive playground and asked how she may assist with such a project. After meeting
with staff, Mrs. Belich met with the Joint Park-Recreation Board at their June 9, 2021 meeting. The Joint Board discussed
the project and had no objections to allowing fundraising to begin.
 
 Mrs. Belich is working with The Friends of the Parks of Pewaukee to begin fundraising; however, prior to any group
actually collecting funds, staff is recommending that the Common Council consider this project further, including the
proposed location and possible funding contributions from the City. Staff is anticipating that funding for this project would
come from a variety of sources, including fundraising, sponsorships, grants, impact fees, and funds that would have been
utilized for the two planned playgrounds at the Sports Complex.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

Recommended action and next steps:
 

1. Approval of the concept and location of an all-inclusive playground and splash pad project
2. Direct staff to continue to explore fundraising opportunities for this project
3. Allow staff to assist in public outreach and fundraising efforts with a City resident group led by Shana Belich and
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The Friends of the Parks of Pewaukee

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Playground & Splash Pad Marketing Flyer
PSC Playground & Splash Pad Concept
McDonaldSchaefer
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Overview
The Pewaukee Sports Complex is 59 acres and currently  
includes baseball fields, soccer fields, concessions, restrooms, 
and associated parking, landscaping, and lighting.

To further develop the park, the City is committed to  
providing an all-inclusive playground and splash pad 
to provide a regional destination for families.

PLAY FOR ALL 
OPPORTUNITIES FOR ALL

EWAUKEE
PARKS & RECREATION

DREAM BIG
PLAY HARD

ALL-Inclusive Playground and Splash Pad
Pewaukee Sports Complex 

The Playground
All-inclusive playgrounds are designed to accommodate and 
provide a safe place for children of all abilities to play together.  
The design of these playgrounds and the equipment provided 
are specifically intended to allow children with and without  
disabilities to use it.  As the name implies, all children and 
families are welcomed and accommodated by the playground.  
All-inclusive playgrounds invite individuals of all abilities to  
join in safe, fun, and welcoming play.  These playgrounds offer 
learning, challenges and exercise in many fashions.

- Commitment -
The estimated project cost is approximately $1.5 million  
dollars.  The City has committed over $4 million dollars  
for the land and development of the Pewaukee Sports  
Complex already.  The City continues to invest in the park  
and will utilize various funding opportunities to assist in the 
development of the all-inclusive playground and splash pad.

Pewaukee 
Sports Complex The Splash Pad

The splash pad in conjunction with an all-inclusive playground is 
a win for all children and families.  Beyond the typical enjoyment 
of a splash pad, those using inclusive playgrounds often have 
sensory needs.  Splash pads provide a wide range of comfort that 
allows children to explore.  Features such as dumping buckets 
and ground sprays are known to provide a sensory-rich play 
experience in water for children of all ages and abilities.

The splash pad will include different styles of equipment to 
actively stimulate individuals of any level and encourage  
children to experiment with new opportunities.

(262) 691-7275
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TEAM WORK MAKES

THE DREAM WORK

Community Build
The City envisions a community build approach to 
bring residents, businesses and their employees, 
and other volunteers to come together to bring this 
concept to fruition.

The Park
Youth sports tournaments, league play and practices 
bring youth athletes to Pewaukee Sports Complex.  
This park is a community hub with future special 
events and more tournaments.  The all-inclusive 
playground and splash pad will be a further reason 
to bring the Pewaukee area community and visitors 
together to Dream Big & Play Hard.

•  1,300+ soccer games & practices/year
•  2+ soccer tournaments/year 
•  �250+ baseball league games & practices/year 
•  6+ baseball tournaments/year 
•  Fall baseball league

- Vision -
To create a sensory-rich, state of the art 

playground and splash pad to 
provide recreational opportunities for 

children of ALL abilities.

Did You Know...
17% of children have a developmental disability (CDC, 2019) 

About 7% of youth have a diagnosed vision condition CDC, 2020) 

About 3% of babies are born with some birth defects (CDC, 2020) 

AND…100% of all-inclusive playgrounds are fun for ALL children!

EXPANDING 
          OUR 
        POSSIBILITIES

Please contact Nick Phalin, 
Pewaukee Parks & Recreation Director

phalin@pewaukee.wi.us or  
call (262) 691-7275 with any questions.
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INCLUSIVE

PLAYSCAPE

~15,000 SF

SPLASHPAD

~3000 SF
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www.mcdonaldschaefer.com 

 

 
 
 

 
Milwaukee | Madison 

 
Phase 1 
Proposal for Feasibility Study Services  
 
Prepared for  

City of Pewaukee 
June 2021 
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         2810 Crossroads Dr, Suite 4000, Madison WI 53718 
phone 414.272.1835 

 

www.mcdonaldschaefer.com 

 
 
June 2021 
 
Nick Fuchs 
The City of Pewaukee 
W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road 
Pewaukee WI 53072 
 
Dear Nick, 
 
Thank you for our recent discovery call.  It was very productive and helps us better understand your 
goals and objectives as well as your fundraising needs. 
 
We are pleased to present this proposal for feasibility study and campaign management services.   
 
We help nonprofits that need more money.  Experience has taught us that your successful capital 
campaign will begin with a thorough and in-depth study that identifies and engages potential 
donors, leaders and community advocates early on; weighs and considers any obstacles to success; 
and yields the type of qualitative and quantitative data that form the basis of an optimal campaign 
roadmap.   
 
The next step is to select a fundraising partner who knows the type of constituents you should 
engage, is familiar with the local philanthropic landscape (our team members live and work in 
Milwaukee and Madison), has a results-driven process and, perhaps most importantly, is 
distinguished by a record of success; we are presently directing capital and endowment campaigns 
with goals between $1 million and $30 million. 
 
By committing to the critical first phase of the campaign – the feasibility study – you have already 
positioned your organization for optimal success.  I am confident that we will be an able and 
committed partner, mindful of the challenges and opportunities you’re currently faced with and will 
be fully invested in your success. 
 
Sincerely, 

Dave Malone 
David Malone 
President 
 

Page 7 of 33



Proposal for Services | City of Pewaukee 
 

Milwaukee | Madison | mcdonaldschaefer.com 
 

1 

McDonald Schaefer Overview 
 
McDonald SchaeferLLC is pleased to provide this proposal for a fundraising feasibility study. 
 
Our firm specializes in capital campaign feasibility studies and directing multimillion-dollar capital 
campaigns.  While we provide other fund development services, our forte is all stages of capital 
campaigns – from testing (feasibility studies) to planning and directing until completion.  We are 
dedicated to working with our clients not only to achieve near-term goals but to implement a solid 
foundation for future fundraising success.   
 
Since 1996, McDonald Schaefer has helped a variety of nonprofit organizations throughout Wisconsin 
raise tens-of-millions in funds for operational, capital and endowment projects.  Please visit 
mcdonaldschaefer.com for more information.  
 
Project Team Credentials 
 

 
 
The depth and strength of our fundraising expertise can be attributed in large part to the diversity of 
skills and experiences shared by our firm’s employees.  We pride ourselves on a team that shares a 
varied set of development specialties and passions, comprehensive industry knowledge and a 
commitment to project success.  Our staffing model, which is customized to complement each client’s 
strengths and challenges, adds tremendous value to our work.  With our model, we can harness the full 
resources and knowledge of our team for the benefit of each organization with which we partner.  
 
For your engagement, McDonald Schaefer’s entire team may be involved in varied capacities although 
one consultant would be assigned as Study Director to ensure optimal communication and streamlined 
management.  Our team members are introduced below. 
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David Malone, President 
David’s 23 years of development experience combined with his earlier 13 years in sales and marketing 

positions make him one of the primary architects of McDonald Schaefer’s fundraising 
strategies.  His expertise includes capital campaigns, major gifts and feasibility studies.  
David has assisted a wide variety of organizations ranging from emerging nonprofits to 
large, well-established NPOs with statewide, national and even international 
constituencies.  He has planned and directed numerous successful capital campaigns 
and participated in securing several multimillion-dollar and six-figure major gifts.  
David has regularly advised clients in diverse fields such as healthcare, education, 
environment, religion, libraries, sports & recreation and more.  He believes donor-
centered fundraising can help nonprofits meet short-term and long-term funding 

needs.  He is creative and process-minded and is adept at blending the relationship side of development 
with the process of effective fundraising.  David earned a B.A. from the University of Wisconsin-Eau 
Claire with a double major in Business Administration and Management Information Systems.  He lives 
in Madison. 
   
Andrea Speth, Vice President 
Andrea has over 24 years’ experience working in marketing, communications and fundraising, with 

additional expertise in annual plan development and implementation, capital 
campaigns, feasibility studies and donor cultivation.  Throughout her career, she has 
worked exclusively with nonprofit organizations with special emphasis on those 
supporting individuals at the margins of society.  She is especially proud of her work 
with The Easter Seal Society of Wisconsin and St. Coletta.  At the latter, she 
consistently achieved annual goals in excess of $1 million.  Andi’s projects are guided 
by the principle that strong relationships are the key to successful outcomes, and her 
ability to assist her clients in identifying and nurturing these relationships has 
provided the bedrock for many of her successes.  Andrea earned a B.S. in secondary 

education with minors in Technical and Creative Writing from the University of Wisconsin-La Crosse.  
She loves to hike and spends as much time as she can with the people she loves, especially her husband 
and two dogs. 
 

Kim Koch, Sr. Consultant  
Over the course of 20 years, Kim has developed relationship-building expertise in a range of professional 

areas from advertising/public relations, event planning and nonprofit development.  
Kim understands the essential components of fundraising on every level and 
believes that listening to donors’ needs is the key to executing successful campaigns 
and projects.  Kim is a goal-oriented, strategic planner whose skills include working 
with clients on multimillion-dollar capital campaigns, feasibility studies, conducting 
in-depth prospect research, developing and coordinating communications pieces for 
solicitation efforts, managing donor prospects databases, tracking moves 
management, establishing campaign timelines and directing the logistics for 

successful campaign events.  Kim earned B.S. degrees in both Advertising and Public Relations from 
Southern Illinois University.  An active member of the local AFP chapter, she is the National Philanthropy 
Day Event Logistics Chair.  She lives in Wauwatosa and enjoys running, cycling, golf and painting but 
most of all, she enjoys spending time with her daughter.  
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Teresa Midthun, Sr. Consultant 
With more than 20 years of demonstrated success in raising major gifts and advancing organizational 

goals, Teresa’s accomplishments span a range of nonprofit engagements – large and 
small; global and local.  With extensive experience in nonprofit leadership, annual 
giving, planned giving and major gifts fundraising, Teresa brings a diverse and 
seasoned expertise to the McDonald Schaefer team.  Prior to joining McDonald 
Schaefer, she served as the Executive Director and VP of Advancement at the 
Oakwood Foundation; the Director of Philanthropy at the Nature Conservancy in 
Wisconsin; and Director of Development at the University of Wisconsin Foundation.  
Her capital campaign successes have spanned several sectors, including higher 
education, environmental welfare, healthcare and social services.  Teresa prides 

herself on her results-oriented, collaborative management and communication style, and is passionate 
about building productive donor and community partnerships.  Teresa earned her B.A. from the 
University of Wisconsin-Madison and her MBA from Edgewood College.  She holds a variety of 
memberships, including TEMPO Madison.  She lives in Waunakee with her husband and two daughters.   
 
James Hamilton, Consultant 
James’ diverse experience includes both direct development as well as development consulting for a 

wide variety of nonprofits over the last 15 years.  As a Consultant, he has led 
campaigns to raise more than $54 million for nonprofit clients in health care, 
education, human services and faith-based organizations.  James approaches each 
engagement as a partnership with a focus on helping organizations raise 
transformational gifts and build their capabilities for on-going increased gift income.  
His expertise includes campaign feasibility studies, campaign management, major 
gifts, foundation and corporate fundraising, leadership fundraising training, and 
volunteer management.  Prior to joining McDonald Schaefer, James led capital 
campaigns and other fundraising initiatives as President of Fox Advancement 

(Minneapolis, Minnesota) and as a consultant for Steier Group (Omaha, Nebraska).  Previously, he 
helped raise the first $5 million for the newly established Minnesota State Fair Foundation in St. Paul. 
James graduated from Macalester College and received his master’s degree in non-profit leadership and 
management from the University of Minnesota.  He and his wife live in Wauwatosa with their three kids. 
 
Julie Cotter, Consultant 
For more than 20 years, Julie has worked in the non-profit field including at the Milwaukee and Madison 

YMCAs, Carroll University and most recently at VIP Services, an agency for people with 
disabilities.  As Senior Advancement Officer at Carroll University, Julie was part of a 
small advancement team that raised $30 million in a comprehensive campaign for 
new facilities, scholarships and programming.  Through her work with the Wisconsin 
YMCAs she personally engaged dozens of potential donors and leaders during several 
feasibility studies for YMCA building projects around the state.  While Development 
Director at VIP Services, she managed a growing development program as a one-
person department.  Julie has broad and extensive experience with major gifts, 

feasibility studies, volunteer engagement, annual campaigns, prospect research, donor analytics and 
special event management.  Julie earned a B.A. degree in English from the University of Wisconsin-
Madison.  She is an active member with the Wisconsin Alumni Association: Milwaukee Chapter Alumni 
Board as the Communications Chair and Sponsorship Committee member. She lives in East Troy with her 
husband and son.   
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Dr. Kathleen Woit, Senior Associate for Mission Impact   
Dr. Kathleen Woit’s work with McDonald Schaefer is centered on strategic relationship building and 

leveraging partnerships in collaboration with, and for the benefit of, our clients.  Her 
16-year tenure as President of the Madison Community Foundation afforded her 
invaluable experience in exactly the type of community outreach and “friend-raising” 
that many of McDonald Schaefer’s clients benefit tremendously from.  As a result, her 
experience makes her extremely effective in this tactical role.  Dr. Woit has also 
demonstrated outstanding aptitude in organizational leadership and outreach, 
growing the Madison Community Foundation’s funds from $42 million to $165 million, 
and holding senior positions in external relations at the Meriter Foundation, UW-
Milwaukee, UW-Whitewater and at Arizona State University.  Her insight into 

maximizing mission impact for cross-sector organizations makes her an extremely valuable resource to 
our clients. 
  
Dr. Woit holds a doctorate and two master’s degrees from UW-Madison and a bachelor’s degree from 
UW-Whitewater.  She has served on the boards of numerous community organizations and is a member 
of the In Business Hall of Fame.  She has received the Association of Fundraising Professionals Visionary 
Award, YWCA Woman of Distinction Award, Urban League of Madison’s Whitney M. Young Award and 
Best of Madison Business Award.  
 
Dr. Thomas J. “Toby” Peters, Senior Associate for Mission Impact   
Dr. Peters has a distinguished track record of helping nonprofits strengthen their operations and 

enhance their strategic outcomes. He has extensive experience across diverse 
nonprofit sectors in community relations, fundraising, leadership development, 
human resources, operations, and planning. His past posts have included senior 
administrative and adjunct professor roles at Marquette University and Syracuse 
University. Most recently, he has served as a Loaned Executive for Milwaukee’s 
United Performing Arts Fund and the United Way of Greater Milwaukee and 
Waukesha County. He was honored as the Loaned Executive of the Year for United 
Way for his exemplary work with nearly ninety non-profit organizations. His record of 
civic engagement is similarly broad. He is a member of the cabinet for United Way 

and serves as a board member for Global Brigades in Seattle, WA and locally for In Tandem Theater and 
has been active in many other local non-profit organizations.   
Dr. Peters received his B.S. and M.B.A. from Southern Illinois University and his Ph.D. in Educational 
Policy and Leadership from Marquette University. He is recently married and now lives in Oconomowoc 
with his wife, Dr. Mary Kay Ellis. He enjoys biking, swimming, cross-country skiing, and many other 
outdoor activities.   
 
Client references are listed later in the proposal.  For more information about McDonald Schaefer please 
visit our website at mcdonaldschaefer.com. 
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Team Strength 
 
One of McDonald Schaefer’s strengths is how we will resource your feasibility study.  We implement a 
team approach for conducting studies, including: 
 

 
By assigning expert team members to support the feasibility study, we ensure the study achieves 
optimal results and stays on schedule.  Our executive leadership team, including Dave Malone 
(President) and Andrea Speth (Vice-President) will oversee the process.  Our experienced Study Director 
will provide primary services and our on-site consultation will be supported by an experienced team of 
project management and creative professionals.   
 
Feasibility Study Objectives 
 
Most successful capital campaigns can be traced back to an initial phase of thorough planning and 
testing.  Therefore, a strategically designed and well-executed feasibility study is not only a wise 
investment but the key to positioning your organization for optimal success.  The interaction with 
potential campaign leaders and donors during the study process is invaluable in building relationships 
with stakeholders, who will be the central players in a successful capital campaign.  This discussion 
provides a crucial opportunity for the organization to preview its ideas with key benefactors and receive 
their important feedback.  
 
In addition to building awareness, the study may reveal potential challenges to the campaign.  By 
uncovering these ahead of time, your organization will be equipped to develop strategies to address 
these challenges and avoid unwanted surprises. 
 
The study will test the key variables of all capital campaigns: Is the case for support compelling?  Is it 
relevant and urgent?  Are there sufficient donors?  Do the numbers work?  Is there a pool of willing and 
bold volunteers to lead the campaign? 
 

Study 
Director

Creative 
(Writing & Design) Project Manager

VP Consulting 
Services
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Of all the questions feasibility studies can answer, perhaps the most important one is, “How much 
money can we raise for this project?”   
 
To find out, we will preview your plans with selected major donor prospects and other key stakeholders, 
asking them: How do you feel about the organization?  What do you think of the proposed project?  
What do you like about the idea?  Does anything concern you?  Is this a project you would consider 
supporting with a gift?  What size gift?  Would you be involved in the campaign on behalf of the 
organization? 
 
When our research is complete, we will render a professional assessment consisting of quantitative data 
and qualitative analysis based on both the sampling of the constituency’s gift capacity, interest and 
timing as well as our considerable experience directing multimillion-dollar capital campaigns of this 
nature. 
 
It’s noteworthy that feasibility studies are generally the most beneficial when the people we engage on 
your behalf are already connected to the organization, such as donors, volunteers, beneficiaries or those 
with another type of involvement – rather than potential donors from the broader community who have 
no existing connection or even awareness of your nonprofit.   
 
Feasibility Study Methodology & Results  
 
Successful capital campaigns are the product of four main elements: 
 
1. An appealing project 
2. Bold leadership 
3. Committed major donors 
4. Campaign Infrastructure  
 
Our feasibility study will measure those primary variables and complete the study in three steps: 

 
  

1. Planning

2. Interviews

3. Analysis
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The process unfolds in the sequenced steps as shown in the timeline below.   

 
The most effective method we use for conducting feasibility studies is personal, face-to-face interviews 
with key constituents.  

 
To prepare for the interviews, we will begin with a 
thorough review of background information 
regarding your organization and the project.   
 
Next, we will discuss with you a profile of desired 
interview candidates and will work with your 
organization’s leadership to identify key 
constituents that fit that profile.  Interviewees 
would primarily include major donors and major 

donor prospects, potential campaign leaders, community leaders, local business leaders and selected 
board members. 
 
We will ask the organization to annotate the list with brief notes about each candidate’s connection to 
the organization to help us interact with each interviewee in ways that show we know something about 
them. 
 
McDonald Schaefer will develop a printed project summary (preliminary case for support).  A concise 
and compelling project summary will provide interviewees with a good understanding of the scope of 
the project and how it will benefit your organization and its constituents.  You’ll choose from one of 
several design options or can request a custom design for an additional charge.  Of course, your 
organization will have the opportunity to review and approve the piece, including up to three rounds of 
edits, which is included in our proposal.   
 
Once identified, McDonald Schaefer will prepare an interview request letter for interviewees which will 
explain why the study is being conducted and that your organization is seeking their feedback and 
advice.  Although we draft the letter, it is subject to your approval, signed by your Board Chair and/or 
Executive Director, and mailed on your letterhead with the project summary enclosed.  Our staff will 
produce the mailing at our office.    
 
A few days after the letters are mailed, your organization will contact interview candidates to schedule 
personal interviews on one of the several predetermined days when McDonald Schaefer is onsite.  

A Note on Timelines: It has been our 
experience in conducting feasibility studies 
that they typically take approximately four 
months to complete, depending on the 
number of interviews and the availability of 
study participants.  If timing is urgent, we 
can put multiple consultants in the field for 
interviews. 
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McDonald Schaefer will prepare an Interview Guide including key questions, which we will review with 
you prior to beginning the interviews.  The guide addresses the following key areas, necessary for a 
successful campaign:   
 

— Impressions of the organization 
— Impressions of the plans  
— Opinions on the dollar goal and on the organization’s potential for reaching it 
— Major donor prospects and leadership candidates 
— Personal interest in the project as a donor and/or campaign volunteer 
— Opinion on current philanthropic climate and its impact on this project 

 
McDonald Schaefer will then conduct the personal interviews.  This is the essence of the campaign 
feasibility study.  The interviews will focus on key campaign variables and will ask study participants 
about their preliminary interest in supporting the project.  We’ll ask them how likely they are to support 
the project, where this project would rank in their charitable priorities and how much they might 
consider giving while presenting the participant with a printed list of gift levels prepared specifically for 
this study.   

 
Thank-you letters are then sent promptly to 
participants after their interview.  Once the 
interviews are completed, our team will compile 
and analyze all the interview data and will prepare 
a final report that will contain quantitative and 
qualitative data, as well as analysis of both.  
 
At the study’s conclusion, we recommend you 
send an email or letter summarizing the study 
findings to all participants (we will provide a draft).  

This step is optional, but we encourage it, as it is an appropriate gesture for interviewees who spent 
their time on your behalf and will be interested in hearing about the outcome of the study.  Moreover, 
this point of contact serves as another form of cultivation, further engaging potential donor prospects 
and/or leadership candidates and deepening their interest in the project.   
 
  

A Note on Interview Location: Interviews will 
be held primarily at your offices or a central 
meeting location but may also be conducted 
at the participant’s home, office or a coffee 
shop if they prefer.  Most of the interviews 
will be conducted in person but when 
necessary, because of distance (e.g. if they 
winter out of state) or at the request of the 
interviewee, some may be conducted by 
phone.   
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Findings

• Impressions of the organization

•Reaction to the proposed 
project and opinions of the 
fundraising campaign

•Participants' personal interest in 
the project

•Preliminary gift intentions 

•Leadership candidates and 
major donor prospects

Analysis

• Internal campaign readiness

•External campaign readiness

•Quantitative analysis of gift 
intentions/components of 
potential campaign success

•Qualitative analysis of gift 
intentions/components of 
potential campaign success

•Key variables: case, leadership, 
major donors, organizational 
capacity

Recommendations

•Refinements to the case for 
support

•Strategies to avoid potential 
obstacles to success

•Recommended campaign goal, 
and a table of gifts for 
achieving it

•Campaign strategy: a roadmap 
to campaign success

•Projected campaign timeline

Feasibility Study Results 
With all relevant data in hand, we will develop a comprehensive Feasibility Study Report, which will 
prove invaluable to developing the best campaign strategy.  We will present our findings and 
recommendations to your board, and provide a comprehensive written report that includes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The study will provide answers to the key questions that must be answered to run a successful capital 
campaign and will enable you to proactively chart a successful course forward.  Although the report is 
comprehensive, one key graph summarizes the results, as shown in this sample: 
 

 
 
  

Key Readiness Variable

1 2 3 4 5
Weak Strong

Project 4

Major Donors 3

Campaign Leadership 2

Campaign Infrastructure 4

OVERALL READINESS

Current Status

3.25

Feasibility Study Conclusion
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Your Role in the Study 
The role of your board and staff during the feasibility study is summarized as follows:  
 

— Provide information about the organization’s initiatives  
— Identify interview candidates and provide short profiles for each including contact information 

and donor history* 
— Review and approve the following:  

o Interview request letter 
o Project summary 
o Interview guide 
o Thank-you note 
o Summary letter sent to participants when study is complete 

— Schedule feasibility interviews based on the availability of consultants   
— Sign interview request and thank-you letters 
— Review list of donor and leadership names compiled during study for clarification or correction 

 
*We will ask that selected board and staff be among those interviewed. 
 
Recorded Webinar  
To view an informative 30-minute webinar about the Feasibility Study experience, please visit our free 
resource page. 
 
Report Preparation 
Developing an accurate, thorough and meaningful Feasibility Study report for you takes time.  With 
volumes of data to compile and analyze, McDonald Schaefer requires three weeks after the last 
interview is completed to prepare the initial report draft.  The final report is our key deliverable and will 
ultimately be your organization's roadmap to future success.  Ensuring it is comprehensive and accurate 
is critical, and our commitment to its careful preparation is a hallmark of our firm's work.  When 
requested, McDonald Schaefer can provide a summary of the study findings earlier, however, the full 
report will not be available until three weeks after the last interview was completed yet. 
 
Feasibility Study Deliverables & Fees 
 
Deliverables 
Key deliverables include: 
 

— A midpoint phone conference with executive leadership halfway through the interviews to 
review early findings 

— A phone conference with executive leadership to preview final Findings, Conclusions and 
Recommendations when the interviews are completed and the report is written 

— One in-person presentation to summarize and discuss the report and its implications, commonly 
with Executive Leadership, Executive Committee and/or full board 

— Up to 3 printed and bound full Feasibility Study reports including Findings and 
Recommendations (additional printed copies are available at cost) 

— Up to 15 flash drives with a PDF of full report 
— A digital PDF of the report  
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Fees 
Feasibility study service and fee options: 

 
A Comprehensive Feasibility Study is recommended for most projects since it will produce the best 
results and engage the largest number of potential donors and campaign leaders.  Studies of more than 
40 interviews are sometimes appropriate for large campaigns and large constituencies and McDonald 
Schaefer can accommodate that.  Studies of 20 to 30 interviews may be appropriate for communities 
with smaller constituencies, or when the budget doesn’t allow for more.  Note that studies of 20 and 30 
participants provide less data for our calculations and may be less likely to validate larger campaign 
goals.   
 
Our goal will be to conduct the number of interviews you select above.  However, due to constituent 
interest and availability, occasionally more or fewer interviews are actually completed.  This proposal 
assumes a possible 10% +/- interview variance; for example, for a 40-person study, we may conduct as 
few as 36 and as many as 44 interviews without adjustments to fees.  If the number of interviews is 
outside of those margins in either direction, we will discuss an adjustment to fees, either up or down, 
commensurate with the actual number of interviews completed.   
 
Comprehensive reports are produced for Comprehensive and Standard studies, and provide thorough 
analysis and include detailed narrative, graphs, constituent comments, and various relevant appendices.  
A Summary report is produced for Basic studies and includes just a few pages and focuses more 
narrowly on a recommended campaign goal. 
 
Available Credits 
The following credits are available:  
 

Description Credit 

Develop the Project Summary - $1,000 

Process mailings  
Interview requests and thank-you letters - $500 

Summary Report in lieu of Comprehensive Report -$1,000 
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Payment Schedule 
First Payment  To initiate services 
Second Payment 30 days later 
Third Payment  60 days later 
Final Payment  90 days later 
 
Expenses 
Reimbursable travel expenses for Feasibility Study services include: 

• Mileage billed at then current IRS mileage reimbursement rate 
Should overnight or out-of-town travel be required, more than 60 miles outside of your community: 

• Airfare, rental car, taxi, parking, tolls, meals, lodging and other travel expenses as necessary 
• Travel-time, discounted by 50% to $75 per hour (½ our normal rate) 
 

Phone interviews may be considered for long distance constituents and/or to reduce travel expenses.  
Virtual video meetings with the client will also reduce travel expenses. 
 
The fees in this proposal assume interviews will be grouped together including a minimum of four 
interviews per day for efficiency and to minimize repeat travel.  Due to the inefficiencies of traveling 
repeatedly to a community for only one or two interviews, we must charge a travel fee of $75 per hour 
(½ our normal hourly billing rate) unless four or more interviews are scheduled on any given interview 
day.   
 
Expenses are billed at cost, subject to your approval, and submitted monthly. 
 
Availability 
McDonald Schafer’s availability is subject to change.  Should another client hire us before you do, we 
reserve the right to accept that new engagement, which may affect the start date of, or our availability 
for, your project.  We can reserve talent and resources for your project for 30 days with a signed 
agreement and for 60 days with a signed agreement and nonrefundable initial payment.   
 
Valid For 
This proposal is valid for 30 days and is thereafter subject to change. 
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Client References 
 
We invite you to contact these references or view short video testimonials at mcdonaldschaefer.com. 
 
Village of Menomonee Falls 
Feasibility Study and capital campaign capital campaign to build phase two of a master plan for Village 
Park, the community’s signature park.  Capital campaign now underway. 
 

Tyler Zwagerman, Planner 
(262) 532-4278 tzwagerman@menomonee-falls.org 

Mukwonago YMCA Mukwonago, WI 
$10 million Capital Campaign to build a new YMCA in Mukwonago with an all-volunteer group (no staff) 
in a community of just 7,500 people. 

Rick Swan, Vice President 
 (414) 303-8538  rmrjj@aol.com 

 
Chris Becker, Chief Executive Officer  

(262) 542-2557 | cbecker@gwcymca.org 
See short video testimonial at mcdonaldschaefer.com 

Pritchard Park, Racine WI 
$5 million capital campaign to fund Phase III of the community sports complex and athletic field 
development at The SC Johnson Community Sports Complex at Pritchard Park. The Phase III 
development will include a synthetic turf baseball field, synthetic turf softball field and expansion and 
completion of the entry plaza and team drop-off/pick-up area.  This campaign was suspended during 
Covid and is now resuming. 
 

MT Boyle, Racine County Assistant to County Executive 
(262) 977-1186MT.Boyle@racinecounty.com 

Milwaukee Rescue Mission 
Feasibility Study and $13 million capital campaign to build an institutional anchor for the neighborhood, 
including a Child Enrichment Center for infants and toddlers, education for grades K4-12, and Cradle-to-
Career Community Programming for adults and families (basic needs, career support, education and 
general resource).    
 

Barbara Vanderburgh, Vice President of Advancement 
(414) 935-0211 barb.vanderburgh@milmission.org 

See short video testimonial at mcdonaldschaefer.com 
Lutheran Home Foundation Wauwatosa, WI 
Feasibility study and capital campaign management for $10 million campaign for a new Memory Care 
unit. 
 

Heidi Mayer, Executive Director 
(414) 256-6836| Heidi.Mayer@thelutheranhome.org 

See short video testimonial at mcdonaldschaefer.com 
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Abbreviated Proposal 
 
In addition to this proposal, McDonald Schaefer has submitted a companion proposal for Feasibility 
Study Services (Phase 1).  To reduce redundancy, we have included our Firm Description, Team 
Credentials and Client References in that proposal.  This Phase 2 proposal will therefore be more 
abbreviated.   
 
What we Do 
 
McDonald Schaefer provides value to nonprofit organizations conducting capital campaigns in three 
significant ways: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Process – We specialize in planning and directing successful multimillion-dollar capital 
campaigns. Our years of experience in this field have propelled many of our clients to 
historically unprecedented campaign successes. Campaigns are made up of hundreds of 
moving parts and the systems and processes that we have developed in the field over the 

years dramatically improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the campaigns we direct, as well as 
markedly improving their probability of success.   
 
 

Discipline – Campaigns involve dozens of key stakeholders, from board members to donors 
to volunteer fundraisers and staff.  We are adept at directing the logistics of campaigns and 
engaging those involved and focusing their efforts to yield the productivity campaigns 
require. McDonald Schaefer drives the entire process. We provide the professional discipline 

that ensures a sustained rhythm and momentum – week to week and month to month – that carries the 
campaign all the way to its goal.     
 
 

Capacity – Few nonprofits could imagine taking on the considerable demands of a major 
capital campaign alone, in addition to regular staff duties. Most are working tirelessly just to 
meet the mission and budget needs of the organization. Nonprofits often need more 
bandwidth when taking on a campaign. By assigning a campaign team to the fundraising 

project, we effectively double or triple the resources dedicated to your campaign. This type of full and 
proper resourcing is often the difference between struggling campaigns that may never reach their goal 
– or take several years to do so – and campaigns that march steadily toward their goal with enough 
people to get the job done expeditiously. 
  

Page 22 of 33



Proposal for Services | City of Pewaukee 
 

Milwaukee | Madison | mcdonaldschaefer.com 
 

2 

Team Strength 
 
One of McDonald Schaefer’s strengths is how we will resource your campaign.  We will assign a team 
including a: 

 
 
By assigning expert team members to support the campaign, we ensure it achieves optimal results and 
stays on schedule.  Our executive leadership team, including Dave Malone (President) and Andrea Speth 
(Vice-President) will oversee the process.  Our experienced Campaign Director will provide primary 
services and our on-site consultation will be supported by an experienced team of project management 
and creative professionals.   
 
Capital Campaign Management Services 
 
For over 20 years, McDonald Schaefer has planned, tested and directed successful capital and 
endowment campaigns for hundreds of millions of dollars.  By applying best practices and a wealth of 
experience, we will develop and manage a detailed plan for your campaign and serve as Campaign 
Directors, overseeing the effective implementation of the plan and ensuring steady progress.  As 
Campaign Directors, we work in partnership with your organization’s staff and volunteer leadership, 
providing comprehensive campaign services that keep your campaign moving forward toward its goal.       
 
To use an analogy, we are something like the football quarterback on the field, calling the plays and 
managing the game.  Another apt analogy is a symphony conductor who sees the entire musical score 
before us and sets the tempo for the performance, queuing the right musicians at the right time and 
keeping everyone moving together in harmony.  In each of these analogies, successful outcomes depend 
on a team of people working together toward common goals and objectives; the same is true of capital 
campaigns. 
 
  

Campaign 
Director

Creative 
(Writing & Design) Project Manager

VP Consulting 
Services
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Your campaign will generally follow this sequence: 

 
 
As Campaign Directors, McDonald Schaefer will: 
 
— Work directly with staff to manage internal campaign objectives. 
— Meet regularly with board and campaign cabinet members individually to support their work cultivating 

prospects, soliciting gifts and stewarding donors.   
— Write and produce a substantial amount of campaign communications pieces including: letters, a master 

grant, website content, videos, progress reports and more.  
— Integrate prospect research into outreach strategies to ensure our cabinet is equipped with the right 

information and to ensure the maximum outcomes for gifts. 
— Track all campaign movement in our custom database that produces management reports used daily to 

advance hundreds of campaign moves simultaneously.     
— Develop report formats and frequencies for keeping key team members apprised of progress, and regularly 

produce and distribute such reports.  These include: campaign progress reports for the board, cabinet and 
staff; eNewsletters; and Campaign Flash emails sent periodically to announce important developments such as 
when major gifts are received or major campaign benchmarks are achieved. 

— Plan and manage various special events related to the campaign such as key cultivation events, the public 
campaign kickoff and groundbreaking ceremonies. 
 

  
  

Planning Tier I Gifts 
Phase

Tier II Gifts 
Phase

Public 
Campaign 

Kickoff

Tier III 
Gifts Phase

Goal 
Reached
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Innovative Campaign Management  
 
Through years of directing successful capital campaigns, we have developed a proprietary and 
comprehensive campaign management system called TABS©, for Task Assurance Benchmarking System.  
TABS© integrates several innovative tools we have designed for effective campaign management. 
 
Campaign Planning 
During the all-important planning phase, TABS© ensures that each important campaign variable and the 
many moving parts of a capital campaign are working together to achieve the best result.  Integrated 
into project management software, TABS© maps the entire campaign plan and schedule and regularly 
compares actual campaign progress against established performance benchmarks. 
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Campaign Management 
An important component of TABS© is our campaign management database that tracks and manages a 
substantial amount of donor data, as well as all significant donor contact and produces key management 
reports vital to volunteer involvement and donor engagement. 
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Campaign Performance 
The TABS© Digital Campaign Dashboard provides your leadership team with a simple visual presentation 
of the major campaign metrics in real-time, right from your computer.  This one-page summary of key 
variables gives a snapshot of the campaign’s status and health. 
 

 
 
Scope of Services 
 
McDonald Schaefer will develop a comprehensive plan that focuses on known campaign priorities.  
Having planned, tested and managed several multimillion-dollar capital campaigns, we know the four 
fundamentals common to successful campaigns: 
 
1. Communications (including an inspiring case for support) 
2. Bold leadership 
3. Committed major donors 
4. Campaign Infrastructure 
 
McDonald Schaefer can serve in different capacities, ranging from Campaign Director, where our 
campaign management team provides day-to-day, hands-on management of the campaign, to Campaign 
Advisor who provides high level strategic direction, helps establish performance benchmarks, sets 
current priorities, develops important strategies and regularly monitors campaign progress while your 
organization’s staff execute the campaign plan.   
 
To afford our clients the best match for their needs, we offer three levels of service as detailed in the 
Scope of Services in Appendix A.   
 
Please see Appendix A to review Scope of Service options. 
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Fees 
 
The overall expense of fundraising for a major capital campaign commonly runs in the range of 5% - 15% 
of the campaign goal.  This includes fees for professional campaign management and other campaign 
related expenses such as brochures, direct mail, campaign website, special events, etc.  Costs as a 
percent of the goal tend be higher for campaigns with smaller goals and lower for campaigns with larger 
goals.   
 
Capital campaigns are among the most cost-efficient strategies for fundraising.  Fees for professional 
fundraising services are among several fees for projects of this nature such as architectural fees, 
engineering fees, contractor fees, banking fees, legal fees, realtor fees, etc.  It is common to add the cost 
of fundraising to the campaign goal as a legitimate project cost. 
 
Please see Appendix A to review Fee options. 
 
Good-faith Estimate 
These fees are a good-faith estimate of the work that will be required for your campaign; we believe 
they are accurate and reliable.  However, if significantly less or more time is needed to help you achieve 
your goals, due to circumstances unknown to us now or that may develop during the course of our 
working relationship, we will notify you that an adjustment may be needed and will discuss a mutually 
agreeable fee adjustment. 
 
Contract Conclusion 
If the campaign goal should be met ahead of schedule, the agreement for campaign management 
services will conclude early and no further fees will be required other than fees for the month of 
termination.  If it should take longer than anticipated to meet the campaign goal, McDonald Schaefer’s 
involvement may be extended under new terms agreed upon by both parties at that time.  Either party 
may terminate the agreement without cause with 30 days’ written notice. 
 
Reimbursable Travel Expenses 
Reimbursable travel expenses include: 

• Mileage billed at then current IRS mileage reimbursement rate 
 
Should overnight or out-of-town travel be required (such as to visit a distant donor prospect or 
campaign leader) more than 60 miles outside of your community: 

• Airfare, rental car, taxi, parking, tolls, meals, lodging and other travel expenses as necessary 
• Travel-time, discounted by 50% to $75 per hour (½ our normal rate) 
• These expenses are subject to your approval 

 
Virtual meetings can reduce travel expenses. 
 
Expenses are billed at cost, subject to your approval, and submitted monthly. 
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Excluded Services 
McDonald Schaefer will participate in developing concepts for many of the important campaign tools 
listed below but the cost to produce these items is a campaign expense and the responsibility of the 
client:   
 

• Website development  
• Video design and production  
• Grant writing 
• Printing of campaign promotional materials (e.g. case for support, stationery, folders, note cards, 

envelopes, etc.)  
• Direct mail processing (e.g. mailing list, mail house services, postage)  
• Signage (e.g. promotional campaign signage, donor recognition signage) 
• Special events 
• Digital marketing (banner advertising, email fundraising, etc.) 
• Print and broadcast marketing, if any 

 
Recorded Webinar 
To view an informative 30-minute webinar about the Capital Campaign experience, please visit our free 
resource page. 
 
Valid For 
This proposal is valid for 30 days.  
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Appendix A
CAPITAL CAMPAIGN MANAGEMENT PROPOSAL
Scope of Services Options

Task MS Client MS Client MS Client

CAMPAIGN LEADERSHIP

1 Define the role of volunteer campaign leadership      

2 Develop job descriptions for all leadership positions   

3 Develop leadership profile   

4 Define Cabinet hierarchy   

5 Identify leadership candidates   - + 

6 Research (internal/external) leadership candidates   *

7 Evaluate leadership candidates      

8 Prioritize list of candidates      

9 Develop personal recruitment strategies      

10 Develop recruitment materials/tools   *

11
Recruit Honorary Chair(s), Working Chair(s), regular 
cabinet members   - + 

12 Develop cabinet orientation and training materials   - +

13
Conduct Relationship Mapping exercise to link 
cabinet members and donor prospects   

14
Provide group cabinet orientation and asking 
training for board, campaign cabinet and staff   

15
Provide one-on-one follow up training sessions 
after group session   *

16

Meet regularly with board and campaign cabinet 
members individually to support their work 
engaging prospects, asking for gifts and stewarding 
donors

   

17
Frequently update leadership team on campaign 
status and progress    *

This Scope of Services table summarizes the major steps in planning and running a capital campaign and outlines an initial 
division of tasks between McDonald Schaefer and our clients based on the Option selected. The Options are flexible to allow 
you to tailor our services to your particular needs and we may jointly elect to move some of the tasks from one column to 
another.  Note that this list summarizes broad topics and clients should cautiously consider the "right" option for them as 
many of these steps involve dozens of related substeps and require extensive experience, time, and resources.

Scope of Services OPTIONS
1 3

Campaign Director Campaign Manager Campaign Advisor

$11,900/mo.

2

$5,900/mo.$8,900/mo.

* McDonald Schaefer to provide guidance and/or samples.
+/- A plus sign indicates primary responsibility; a minus sign indicates secondary responsibility Page 1Page 30 of 33



Task MS Client MS Client MS Client

Scope of Services OPTIONS
1 3

Campaign Director Campaign Manager Campaign Advisor

$11,900/mo.

2

$5,900/mo.$8,900/mo.

18 MAJOR DONOR DEVELOPMENT

19 Develop gift chart   

20
Segment prospect list into tiers and recommend 
different engagement and asking strategies   

21
Compile initial prospect list based on the 
organization’s contacts, feasibility study results, 
and leads from new sources

    *

22
Conduct wealth screening and analytics for up to 
2,500 prospects   

23
Conduct research for selected top donors per a 
defined budget proportionate to selected Scope of 
Services

  

24
Conduct ongoing basic research for additional 
prospective donors    *

25
Conduct rating sessions with leadership team to 
evaluate donor prospects    

26
Develop Schedule of Asks by qualifying and 
prioritizing prospects based on projected gift, ask 
readiness and personal connections to prospect 

     

27
Assign major prospects to members of the 
leadership team      

28
Develop personalized engagement & asking 
strategies for lead gift prospects      

29
Develop personalized engagement & asking 
strategies for other major gift prospects for 
duration of campaign

     

30

Lead the active asking stage and serve as the 
driving force by coordinating engagement & asking 
strategies with leadership team throughout the 
campaign and serving as primary  contact for 
campaign cabinet

   

31
Accompany volunteers on selected asking calls 
when necessary   - + 

* McDonald Schaefer to provide guidance and/or samples.
+/- A plus sign indicates primary responsibility; a minus sign indicates secondary responsibility Page 2Page 31 of 33



Task MS Client MS Client MS Client

Scope of Services OPTIONS
1 3

Campaign Director Campaign Manager Campaign Advisor

$11,900/mo.

2

$5,900/mo.$8,900/mo.

32 COMMUNICATIONS

33 Develop campaign theme and tagline     *

34
Write communications pieces per a defined budget 
proportionate to selected scope of services     *

35

Design campaign logo, case statement, small 
brochure, stationery, envelopes, folders, notecards 
per a defined budget proportionate to selected 
scope of services

    *

36 Develop gift/pledge form   *

37 Define Giving Levels    *

38 Recommend/Develop Named Gift Opportunities    - +

39 Define on-site recognition program     *

40
Develop digital & multimedia campaign strategies 
(does not included finished products) including: 

41    Campaign website   - +

42    Campaign eNewsletter   - +

43    Campaign video   - +

44    Social media tools   - +

45 Develop press network strategy    *

46 Develop on-site signage strategy    *

47 Develop other campaign promotional materials    *

48 Develop comprehensive direct mail strategy    - +

49 Develop a PowerPoint presentation   *

50 Prepare press kits   *

51 Write a master foundation inquiry and proposal   

52 Grant-writing   

53
Prepare numerous campaign-related documents 
(letters, proposals, follow ups, etc.), ready for 
signature, for various volunteers and staff

   - +

54
Plan special events (campaign kickoff, 
groundbreaking event, grand opening), promotions 
and public outreach

    *

55 Write special event scripting    *

56
Develop concepts for special event graphics 
(programs, easel displays, PowerPoint)   *

57 Develop stewardship communication strategies    *

* McDonald Schaefer to provide guidance and/or samples.
+/- A plus sign indicates primary responsibility; a minus sign indicates secondary responsibility Page 3Page 32 of 33



Task MS Client MS Client MS Client

Scope of Services OPTIONS
1 3

Campaign Director Campaign Manager Campaign Advisor

$11,900/mo.

2

$5,900/mo.$8,900/mo.

58 CAMPAIGN OFFICE

59 Develop comprehensive campaign plan   

60 Update or develop Gift Acceptance policy    *

61 Update or develop Deferred Gift policy    *

62 Update or develop Named Gift policy    *

63 Confirm or develop Stock Transfer Instruction Sheet   *

64 Develop tiered gift acknowledgement plan    *

65 Develop pledge reminder system    *

66 Develop named gift system tracking system   *

67
Schedule recurring group and one-on-one meetings 
with cabinet members    *

68 Coordinate direct mail campaign with mail house    *

69
Prepare documents for campaign meetings 
including agendas, timelines, gift reports, forecasts, 
etc.

   *

70
Develop personalized proposals for individual 
donors when needed    *

71
Track all prospect data and moves management in 
campaign database   

72 Provide grant research   

73
Store and manage inventory of campaign 
promotional materials   

74
Routinely assemble campaign materials into 
campaign folders, ready for use by campaign 
volunteers

  

75
Coordinate campaign special events (engagement 
events/receptions, public campaign announcement, 
groundbreaking, campaign celebration) 

* * *

76
Manage production of campaign newsletter and/or 
other identified communication tools * * *

77
Record gifts, acknowledge donors, notify involved 
team leaders   

78 Track pledges, issue reminders when due   

79
Maintain campaign website, social media channels 
and other digital applications   

* McDonald Schaefer to provide guidance and/or samples.
+/- A plus sign indicates primary responsibility; a minus sign indicates secondary responsibility Page 4Page 33 of 33



CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 7.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Planning

PROVIDED BY:

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Ordinance 21-06 Rezoning the  Property Located at N6 W27539
Northview Road (PWC 0983-999-005) from Rs-1 Single-Family Residential to Rs-4 Single-Family Residential as
Requested by Debra Aukofer [Fuchs]

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Aukofer Rezoning & CSM Staff Report
Aukofer rezoning application & map
Ordinance 21-06 Aukofer Rezone

Page 1 of 6



   

 Office of the Planner & Community Development Director 
 W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road 
 Pewaukee, Wisconsin 53072 
 Phone (262) 691-0770      Fax (262) 691-1798 
                                        fuchs@pewaukee.wi.us 

 
 

 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of July 15, 2021 

 

Date:  July 8, 2019   

Project Name:  Aukofer Rezoning and Certified Survey Map  

Project Address/Tax Key No.:  N6W27539 Northview Road/Tax Key Nos. 0983999005 

Applicant:  Debra A. Aukofer 

Property Owner:  Debra A. Aukofer  

Current Zoning:  Rs-1 Single-Family Residential District 

Proposed Zoning:  Rs-4 Single-Family Residential District 

2050 Land Use Map Designation:  Low-Medium Density Residential (1/2 Ac. - 2 AC. / D.U.) 

Use of Surrounding Properties:  Single-family to the north, south, east and west 

Project Description 

At their June 17, 2021 meeting, the Plan Commission tabled the Aukofer Rezoning and Certified 

Survey Map as the applicant requested to make revisions to the configuration of the three proposed 

lots. Note that the rezoning public hearing was open and closed at this meeting.  

 

Below is a description of the requested rezoning and the most up-to-date Certified Survey Map.  

 

Rezoning: 

The applicant filed a Rezoning Application requesting approval to rezone property located at 

N6W27539 Northview Road from Rs-1 Single-Family Residential District to Rs-4 Single-Family 

Residential District.   

 

The property is designated as Low-Medium Density Residential on the City’s Year 2050 Land 

Use/Transportation Plan; therefore, the rezoning is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Master 

Plan. 

 

The rezoning also matches the zoning of the Arrowhead Trails Subdivision located directly to the east.  

 

Certified Survey Map: 

A Certified Survey Map was also submitted requesting to divide the existing 5.48-acre lot into three 

separate parcels. Lot 1 has an area of 1.010-acres and is vacant. Lot 2 has an area of 2.889-acres and 

consists of the existing home, detached garage, and barn. Lot 3 has an area of 1.577-acres and is also 

vacant.  

 

All proposed lots comply with the Rs-4 District minimum lot size of 20,000 square feet and minimum 

lot width at the setback line of 110-feet. The existing home and detached garage also meet the Rs-4 
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Planner & Community Development Director Nick Fuchs  

District development standards. Staff is recommending that all lots connect to public sewer, including 

the existing home on Lot 2.  

 

It can be noted, and the applicant has been made aware, that if land disturbance to develop these lots 

exceeds 1-acre, storm water management requirements must be met. Staff recommends that a separate 

plan illustrating the anticipated areas of land disturbance, including driveways and the area needed to 

construct the homes be provided to the Engineering Department for review and conceptual approval 

prior to recording the CSM. 

 

It can further be noted that the applicant has been made aware that Lot 1 and 3 will require access 

approval from the City. Staff also indicated that there are assessments that will be due prior to 

recording the CSM. 

 

Finally, staff is not necessarily opposed or concerned with the proposed lot configuration considering 

the existing lot size and location, but please be aware of the City’s lot design standard below. 

 

18.0800f.(5) Excessive Depth of Lots in relation to width shall be avoided and a proportion of 

two to one (2:1) shall be considered a maximum depth to width ratio under normal conditions. 

Lots shall normally be rectangular in shape and lots having more than five (5) sides shall be 

avoided. Depth of lots or parcels designated for commercial or industrial use shall be adequate 

to provide for all off-street service and parking required by the use contemplated. 

 

Recommendation 

A motion recommending approval of the rezoning request to rezone property located at N6W27539 

Northview Road from Rs-1 Single-Family Residential District to Rs-4 Single-Family Residential 

District.  

 

A motion recommending approval of a 3 Lot Certified Survey Map for property located at N6W27539 

Northview Road, subject to staff’s recommended conditions noted in this report.  
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Ordinance	21‐06	Aukofer	Rezoning	 Page 1 
 

STATE OF WISCONSIN    CITY OF PEWAUKEE WAUKESHA COUNTY 
 

ORDINANCE 21-06 

TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF 

THE CITY OF PEWAUKEE, WAUKESHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
 

 The Common Council of the City of Pewaukee, Waukesha County, Wisconsin do ordain 
that the Zoning Map of the City of Pewaukee, Wisconsin is hereby amended to change the 
zoning classification of the property described below as follows: 
 

 FROM:      M-6 Mixed Industrial District  
  
 TO:            M-1 General Wholesale Business / Warehouse District 
 

SECTION 1 - DESCRIPTION 
Common Description:  
 

LOT 1 CERT SURV 7955 VOL 68/328 REC AS DOC# 2102679 PT SW1/4 SEC 30 T7N R19E 
R2206/211 
 

Tax Key Number: PWC 0983-999-005              
 

Property Address: N6 W27539 Northview Road                                
 

This Amendment to the Zoning Map (Change in zoning) is being proposed for the purpose of: 
Splitting the property into three (3) separate lots in order to downsize the property.   
 

SECTION 2 –SEVERABILITY 
The several sections of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  If any section shall be 
declared by a decision of a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the other provisions of the Ordinance. 

SECTION 3 - ACTION 
This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and posting.  

Dated this 19th day of July, 2021. 
 
COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEWAUKEE 
 
  WAUKESHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
 

             

Attest: Steve Bierce, Mayor 
 
 
__________________________ 
Kelly Tarczewski, Clerk/Treasurer  
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 8.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Planning

PROVIDED BY:

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Possible Action Regarding a Certified Survey Map for Debra Aukofer for Property Located at N6
W27539 Northview Road (PWC 0983-999-005) for the Purpose of Dividing the Property Into Three Separate Lots 
[Fuchs]

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Aukofer Revised CSM
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 9.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Planning

PROVIDED BY:

SUBJECT: 

PUBLIC HEARING, Discussion and Possible Action Regarding a Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment to
Change the Year 2050 Land Use/Transportation Plan Use Designation for the City of Pewaukee for Property Located at
W225 N3131 Duplainville Road (PWC 0911-993-006) from Floodplains, Lowland & Upland Conservancy and Other
Natural Areas, Medium Density Residential, and Government/Institutional to Government/Institutional [Fuchs]

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
DPW Garage Staff Report & Exhibits
Resolution 21-07-27 Recommend Change
Ordinance 21-08 DPW Comp Plan
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 Office of the Planning & Community Development Director 
 W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road 
 Pewaukee, Wisconsin 53072 
 Phone (262) 691-0770      Fax (262) 691-1798 
                                        fuchs@pewaukee.wi.us 
 
 

 

 
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
Meeting of July 15, 2021 

 
Date:  July 7, 2021  
Project Name:  Pewaukee DPW Garage and Recycling Yard Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment 
& Rezoning      
Project Address/Tax Key No.:  W225N3131 Duplainville Road/PWC 0911993006 
Applicant:  City of Pewaukee 
Property Owner:  W225N3131 Duplainville Rd LLC  
Current Zoning:  I-2 Rural Institutional District and A-2 Agricultural District  
2050 Land Use Map Designation:  Floodplains, Lowland & Upland Conservancy and Other Natural 
Areas, Medium Density Residential, and Governmental/Institutional  
Use of Surrounding Properties:  Agriculture to the north, single-family residential and industrial to 
the south, industrial to the east and institutional and single-family residential to the west 

Project Description 
At their June 17, 2021 meeting, the Plan Commission approved Site & Building Plans for the 
construction of a new Department of Public Works garage and recycling yard upon property located at 
W225N3131 Duplainville Road. The approval was contingent upon approval of a Comprehensive 
Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning of the property. 
 
As such, attached are the needed applications and exhibits to amend the current future land use 
designation from Floodplains, Lowland & Upland Conservancy and Other Natural Areas, Medium 
Density Residential, and Governmental/Institutional to Government/Institutional and to change the 
zoning from I-2 Rural Institutional District and A-2 Agricultural District to I-2 Rural Institutional 
District.  
 
Note that the City is continuing discussions to purchase a portion of the property located to the east 
owned by Quad Graphics, Inc. If this purchase is made and the land incorporated into the City 
property, another Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning Application will be required 
to incorporate that area into the City’s property.  
 
Recommendation 
A motion to approve the Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment and Rezoning for the City’s DPW 
garage and recycling yard for property located at W225N3131 Duplainville Road.   
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PETITION FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN 

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEWAUKEE, WAUKESHA 

COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 The undersigned hereby petitions the Common Council of the City of Pewaukee, Waukesha County, Wisconsin to 

amend the City’s Year 2050 Land Use/Transportation Plan land use designation for the following property  

FROM ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

TO ______________________________________________________________________________________________. 

Legal description of property to be rezoned – Please attach. 

Common property description or name:  _______________________________________________________________ 

Property Address:  ________________________________________ Tax Key Number(s):  _______________________ 

Property owner(s) (Full Legal Name):  _________________________________________________________________ 

Owner’s Address: _________________________________________ City/State/Zip:  ___________________________ 

Phone:  ________________________________ Email:  ____________________________________________________ 

This amendment to the zoning map is being proposed in order to ____________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

Applicant (Full Legal Name):    

Name:  _______________________________________  

Company:  ____________________________________ 

Address:  _____________________________________ 

City/State/Zip:  ________________________________  

Phone:  _______________________________________  

Email:  _______________________________________ 

Contact Person (Full Legal Name): 

Name:  _______________________________________ 

Company:  ____________________________________   

Address:  _____________________________________  

City/State/Zip:  ________________________________  

Phone:  _______________________________________  

Email:  _______________________________________ 

Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment submittals must include and be accompanied by the following: 

� This Application form accurately completed with original signatures. 
� Application Filing Fee, payable to the City of Pewaukee: 

o $400.00, plus cost for publication, notice and all attorney fees related to Project 
� Five (5) complete collated sets of Application materials to include: 

o A written project narrative detailing the request and proposed amendment as well as any future development 
plans or any proposed site or building improvements. 

o A Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment Exhibit that illustrates the property boundaries, areas to be 
changed and specifically notes the existing and proposed future land use designation. 

o Building and Site Plans as may be applicable.  
� All application materials provided in a digital format (Adobe PDF). Materials may be submitted on a USB Flash 

Drive or emailed to hurd@pewaukee.wi.us. 
� Note twelve (12) additional sets of plans will be required for Plan Commission following staff review of the initial 

submittal. These plans should be revised in response to staff comments as may be necessary.   
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Office of the Planner & Community Development Director 
W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road 
Pewaukee, Wisconsin 53072 
Phone (262) 691-0770 
Fax (262) 691-1798 
fuchs@pewaukee.wi.us 
 

 

 

 

The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: 

1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best of 

applicant’s and property owner(s)’ knowledge;  

2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application; and  

3) the applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this 

Application and its submittal, and any subsequently issued building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked 

without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval.  

By execution of this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Pewaukee and/or its agents to enter upon the 

subject property(ies) between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. daily for the purpose of inspection while the application 

is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has been posted against trespassing 

pursuant to Wis. Stat. §943.13. 

 
(The applicant’s signature must be from a Managing Member if the business is an LLC, or from the President or Vice 

President if the business is a corporation. A signed applicant’s authorization letter may be provided in lieu of the applicant’s 

signature below, and a signed property owner’s authorization letter may be provided in lieu of the property owner’s 

signature[s] below. If more than one, all of the owners of the property must sign this Application).  

 

PETITIONER’S/APPLICANT’S SIGNATURE:  ________________________________________________________ 

NAME & TITLE (PRINT):  __________________________________________________________________________ 

 SIGN AND DATED this ___________ day of _______________________, _____________.  

 

PROPERTY OWNER’S SIGNATURE:  ________________________________________________________ 

NAME & TITLE (PRINT):  __________________________________________________________________________ 

 SIGN AND DATED this ___________ day of _______________________, _____________.  

 

PROPERTY OWNER’S SIGNATURE:  ________________________________________________________ 

NAME & TITLE (PRINT):  __________________________________________________________________________ 

 SIGN AND DATED this ___________ day of _______________________, _____________.  

 
City Staff- 

 RECEIVED at City Hall by:  ______________________________________ on ___________________________ 

 Fee paid:  $_______________.   Date:  _______________. 
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Office of the Planner & Community Development Director 
W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road 
Pewaukee, Wisconsin 53072 
Phone (262) 691-0770 
Fax (262) 691-1798 
fuchs@pewaukee.wi.us 
 

 

 

PETITION FOR A REZONING DISTRICT MAP AMENDMENT 

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEWAUKEE, WAUKESHA 

COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 The undersigned hereby petitions the Common Council of the City of Pewaukee, Waukesha County, Wisconsin to 

rezone the following property FROM ___________________________________________________________________ 

zoning district(s) TO __________________________________________________________________ zoning district(s): 

Legal description of property to be rezoned – Please attach. 

Common property description or name:  _______________________________________________________________ 

Property Address:  ________________________________________ Tax Key Number(s):  _______________________ 

Property owner(s) (Full Legal Name):  _________________________________________________________________ 

Owner’s Address: _________________________________________ City/State/Zip:  ___________________________ 

Phone:  ________________________________ Email:  ____________________________________________________ 

This amendment to the zoning map is being proposed in order to ____________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

Applicant (Full Legal Name):    

Name:  _______________________________________  

Company:  ____________________________________ 

Address:  _____________________________________ 

City/State/Zip:  ________________________________  

Phone:  _______________________________________  

Email:  _______________________________________ 

 

Contact Person (Full Legal Name): 

Name:  _______________________________________ 

Company:  ____________________________________   

Address:  _____________________________________  

City/State/Zip:  ________________________________  

Phone:  _______________________________________  

Email:  _______________________________________ 

Rezoning submittals must include and be accompanied by the following: 

� This Application form accurately completed with original signatures. 
� Application Filing Fee, payable to the City of Pewaukee: 

o $400.00, plus cost for publication, notice and all attorney fees related to Project 
� Five (5) complete collated sets of Application materials to include: 

o A written project narrative detailing the request and proposed zoning as well as any future development 
plans or any proposed site or building improvements. 

o A Rezoning Exhibit that illustrates the property boundaries, areas to be rezoned and specifically notes the 
existing and proposed zoning. 

o Building and Site Plans as may be applicable.  
� All application materials provided in a digital format (Adobe PDF). Materials may be submitted on a USB Flash 

Drive or emailed to hurd@pewaukee.wi.us. 
� Note twelve (12) additional sets of plans will be required for Plan Commission following staff review of the initial 

submittal. These plans should be revised in response to staff comments as may be necessary.   
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Office of the Planner & Community Development Director 
W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road 
Pewaukee, Wisconsin 53072 
Phone (262) 691-0770 
Fax (262) 691-1798 
fuchs@pewaukee.wi.us 
 

 

 

 

The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: 

1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best of 

applicant’s and property owner(s)’ knowledge;  

2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application; and  

3) the applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this 

Application and its submittal, and any subsequently issued building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked 

without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval.  

By execution of this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Pewaukee and/or its agents to enter upon the 

subject property(ies) between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. daily for the purpose of inspection while the application 

is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has been posted against trespassing 

pursuant to Wis. Stat. §943.13. 

 
(The applicant’s signature must be from a Managing Member if the business is an LLC, or from the President or Vice 

President if the business is a corporation. A signed applicant’s authorization letter may be provided in lieu of the applicant’s 

signature below, and a signed property owner’s authorization letter may be provided in lieu of the property owner’s 

signature[s] below. If more than one, all of the owners of the property must sign this Application).  

 

PETITIONER’S/APPLICANT’S SIGNATURE:  ________________________________________________________ 

NAME & TITLE (PRINT):  __________________________________________________________________________ 

 SIGN AND DATED this ___________ day of _______________________, _____________.  

 

PROPERTY OWNER’S SIGNATURE:  ________________________________________________________ 

NAME & TITLE (PRINT):  __________________________________________________________________________ 

 SIGN AND DATED this ___________ day of _______________________, _____________.  

 

PROPERTY OWNER’S SIGNATURE:  ________________________________________________________ 

NAME & TITLE (PRINT):  __________________________________________________________________________ 

 SIGN AND DATED this ___________ day of _______________________, _____________.  

 
City Staff- 

 RECEIVED at City Hall by:  ______________________________________ on ___________________________ 

 Fee paid:  $_______________.   Date:  _______________. 
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WAUKESHA COUNTY             CITY OF PEWAUKEE               STATE OF WISCONSIN 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-07-27 
 

A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THE ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND THE CITY OF PEWAUKEE 2035 COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN AND 

NEIGHBORHOOD PLANS 2015-2050 TO CHANGE THE YEAR 2050 LAND 
USE/TRANSPORTATION PLAN FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT W225 N3131 

DUPLAINVILLE ROAD (TAX KEY NO. PWC 0911-993-006) FROM FLOOD PLAINS, 
LOWLAND & UPLAND CONSERVANCY, AND OTHER NATURAL AREAS, 

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL AND GOVERNMENTAL/INSTITUTIONAL TO 
GOVERNMENTAL/INSTITUTIONAL, PURSUANT TO WIS. STAT. § 66.1001(4)(b) 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 62.23(2) and (3) and 66.1001(4), the City of Pewaukee 

is authorized to prepare and adopt and to amend a comprehensive plan as defined 
in Wis. Stat. §§ 66.1001(1)(a) and 66.1001(2); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.1001(4)(b), the Plan Commission may recommend the 

amendment of the Comprehensive Master Plan to the Common Council by 
adopting a resolution by a majority vote of the entire Commission, which vote 
shall be recorded in the official minutes of the Plan Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Pewaukee has applied for an amendment to the Comprehensive 

Master Plan to change the Year 2050 Land Use/Transportation Plan for property 
located at W225 N3131 Duplainville Road from Flood Plains, Lowland & Upland 
Conservancy, and Other Natural Areas, Medium Density Residential and 
Governmental/Institutional to Governmental/Institutional, more particularly 
described as follows: 

 
 PT S1/2 SEC 12 T7N R19E; COM AT A POINT ON S LI SEC 12, POINT 

BEING DUE W OF & 462.95 FT DISTANT FROM S1/4 COR OF SEC, POINT 
ALSO BEING CTRLI GREEN RD; W ALG S LI & CTRLI 816.14 FT; 
N03°07'50"W 1342.73 FT; N89°12'E 868.41 FT; S02°21'48"E 150.00 FT; 
N88°28'12"E 612.85 FT TO WLY R/W STH 164; S26°06'42"W ALG R/W LI 
589.34 FT; N63°53'18"W PERPENDICULAR TO R/W LI 400.00 FT; 
S26°06'42"W PARALLEL TO R/W LI 325.00 FT; S63°53'18"E 400.00 FT TO 
AFOREMENTIONED WLY R/W LI; S26°06'42"W ALG R/W LI 443.61 FT TO 
BGN :: EX DOC# 1047270 & EX DOC# 2097918 & EX DOC# 2435450 & EX 
DOC# 3487450 

  
WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having determined that the proposed amendment in form 

and content as presented to the Commission on July 15, 2021, is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Master Plan’s goals, objectives and policies and in proper 
form and content for adoption by the Common Council as an amendment to the 
Comprehensive Master Plan, subject to such modifications the Common Council 
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Resolution 21-07-27 Recommendation to Change Comprehensive Master Plan Page 2 of 2 
 
 

may consider reasonable and necessary, following public hearing, in order to 
protect and promote the health, safety and welfare of the City of Pewaukee. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Plan Commission of the City of Pewaukee, 

Wisconsin, that the application for and the proposed ordinance to amend the City 
of Pewaukee Comprehensive Master Plan to change the Year 2050 Land 
Use/Transportation Plan for property located at W225 N3131 Duplainville Road 
from Flood Plains, Lowland & Upland Conservancy, and Other Natural Areas, 
Medium Density Residential and Governmental/Institutional to 
Governmental/Institutional, such property bearing Tax Key No. PWC 0911-993-
006, be and the same is hereby recommended for adoption and incorporation into 
the Comprehensive Master Plan by the Common Council.:  

 
Passed and adopted this 15th day of July, 2021. 
 
    FOR THE PLAN COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
    PEWAUKEE, WAUKESHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN  
 
 
ATTEST:   ___________________________ 
    Steve Bierce, Mayor 
 
____________________________ 
Kelly Tarczewski, Clerk/Treasurer 
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WAUKESHA COUNTY               CITY OF PEWAUKEE             STATE OF WISCONSIN 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  21-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PEWAUKEE 2035 COMPREHENSIVE 
MASTER PLAN AND NEIGHBORHOOD PLANS 2015-2050 TO CHANGE THE YEAR 
2050 LAND USE/TRANSPORTATION PLAN FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT W225 

N3131 DUPLAINVILLE ROAD (TAX KEY NO. 0911-993-006) FROM FLOOD PLAINS, 
LOWLAND & UPLAND CONSERVANCY, AND OTHER NATURAL AREAS, 

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL AND GOVERNMENTAL/INSTITUTIONAL TO 
GOVERNMENTAL/INSTITUTIONAL 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 62.23(2) and (3) and 66.1001(4), the City of Pewaukee 

is authorized to prepare and adopt and to amend a comprehensive plan as defined 
in Wis. Stat. §§ 66.1001(1)(a) and 66.1001(2); and 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Pewaukee has applied for an amendment to the Comprehensive 

Master Plan to change the Year 2050 Land Use/Transportation Plan for property 
located at W225N3131 Duplainville Road from Flood Plains, Lowland & Upland 
Conservancy, and Other Natural Areas, Medium Density Residential and 
Governmental/Institutional to Governmental/Institutional; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of the City of Pewaukee by a majority vote of the entire 

Commission on July 15, 2021, recorded in its minutes, has adopted a resolution 
recommending to the Common Council the adoption of the Ordinance to Amend 
the City of Pewaukee Comprehensive Master Plan to change the Year 2050 Land 
Use/Transportation Plan for property located at W225N3131 Duplainville Road 
(Tax Key No. 0911993006) from Flood Plains, Lowland & Upland Conservancy, 
and Other Natural Areas, Medium Density Residential and 
Governmental/Institutional to Governmental/Institutional; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Pewaukee held a public hearing upon this proposed Ordinance, in 

compliance with the requirements of Wis. Stat. § 66.1001(4)(d); the Common 
Council having received input from the public at a duly noticed public hearing on 
July 19, 2021; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE,  the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Pewaukee, Wisconsin, 

do ordain as follows:  
 
SECTION 1: Adoption 
 
 The City of Pewaukee Comprehensive Master Plan is hereby amended to 

change the Year 2050 Land Use/Transportation Plan for property located at 
W225N3131 Duplainville Road (Tax Key No. 0911-993-006) from Flood Plains, 
Lowland & Upland Conservancy, and Other Natural Areas, Medium Density 
Residential and Governmental/Institutional to Governmental/Institutional.  

Page 13 of 14



Ordinance 21-08 Comprehensive Master Plan DPW Garage Page 2 of 2 
 

 
SECTION 2: Document Transmittal 
 
 The City Common Council hereby directs the City Clerk/Treasurer to transmit a 

copy of the amendment as well as a signed copy of both the Resolution No. 21-
07-27 and this Ordinance No. 21-08 to the Wisconsin Department of 
Administration, the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission, the 
Waukesha Park and Land Use Department, the Pewaukee Public Library and to 
each town, village and city that abuts the City of Pewaukee. 

 
SECTION 3: Severability 
 
 The several sections and portions of this ordinance are declared to be severable.  

If any section or portion thereof shall be declared by a decision of a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unlawful, or unenforceable, such decision 
shall apply only to the specific section or portion thereof directly specified in the 
decision, and shall not affect the validity of all other provisions, sections, or 
portions thereof of the ordinance.  The remainder of the ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect.  Any other ordinances whose terms are in conflict with the 
provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed as to those terms that conflict. 

 
SECTION 4: Effective Date 
 
 This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage and posting of 

publication as provided by law. 
 
Passed and adopted this 19th day of July, 2021. 
 
    FOR THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
    PEWAUKEE, WAUKESHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN  
 
ATTEST:   _______________________ 
    Steve Bierce, Mayor 
____________________________ 
Kelly Tarczewski, Clerk/Treasurer 
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 10.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Planning

PROVIDED BY:

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Ordinance 21-09 Rezoning the Property Located at W225 N3131
Duplainville Road (PWC 0911-993-006) from A-2 Agricultural and I-2 Rural Institutional to I-2 Institutional for the
Purpose of Constructing a New DPW Garage and Recycling Yard for the City of Pewaukee [Fuchs]

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
21.09 DPW Campus Rezone
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STATE OF WISCONSIN    CITY OF PEWAUKEE WAUKESHA COUNTY 
 

ORDINANCE 21-09 

TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF 

THE CITY OF PEWAUKEE, WAUKESHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
 

 The Common Council of the City of Pewaukee, Waukesha County, Wisconsin do ordain 
that the Zoning Map of the City of Pewaukee, Wisconsin is hereby amended to change the 
zoning classification of the property described below as follows: 
 

 FROM:      A-2 Agricultural & I-2 Rural Institutional  
  
 TO:            I-2 Rural Institutional 
 

SECTION 1 - DESCRIPTION 
Common Description:  
 

PT S1/2 SEC 12 T7N R19E; COM AT A POINT ON S LI SEC 12, POINT BEING DUE W OF 
& 462.95 FT DISTANT FROM S1/4 COR OF SEC, POINT ALSO BEING CTRLI GREEN 
RD; W ALG S LI & CTRLI 816.14 FT; N03°07'50"W 1342.73 FT; N89°12'E 868.41 FT; 
S02°21'48"E 150.00 FT; N88°28'12"E 612.85 FT TO WLY R/W STH 164; S26°06'42"W ALG 
R/W LI 589.34 FT; N63°53'18"W PERPENDICULAR TO R/W LI 400.00 FT; S26°06'42"W 
PARALLEL TO R/W LI 325.00 FT; S63°53'18"E 400.00 FT TO AFOREMENTIONED WLY 
R/W LI; S26°06'42"W ALG R/W LI 443.61 FT TO BGN :: EX DOC# 1047270 & EX DOC# 
2097918 & EX DOC# 2435450 & EX DOC# 3487450 
 

Tax Key Number: PWC 0911-993-006              
 

Property Address: W225 N3131 Duplainville Road                                
 

This Amendment to the Zoning Map (Change in zoning) is being proposed for the purpose of: 
Constructing a new DPW garage and recycling yard for the City of Pewaukee.   
 

SECTION 2 –SEVERABILITY 
The several sections of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  If any section shall be 
declared by a decision of a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the other provisions of the Ordinance. 

SECTION 3 - ACTION 
This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and posting.  

Dated this 19th day of July, 2021. 
 
COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEWAUKEE 
 
  WAUKESHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
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Attest: Steve Bierce, Mayor 
 
 
__________________________ 
Kelly Tarczewski, Clerk/Treasurer  
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 11.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Planning

PROVIDED BY:

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Action Regarding the Woodleaf Reserve Addition #3 Final Plat Located on Weyer Road (PWC 0865-
139 & PWC 0868-998) [Wagner]

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Woodleaf Reserve Addition #3 Final Plat Staff Report
Woodleaf Reserve Addition #3 Final Plat
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 Office of the Planner & Community Development Director 
 W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road 
 Pewaukee, Wisconsin 53072 
 Phone (262) 691-0770      Fax (262) 691-1798 
                                        fuchs@pewaukee.wi.us 

 
 

 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of July 15, 2021 

 

Date:  July 8, 2021 

Project Name:  Woodleaf Reserve Addition No. 3 Final Plat    

Project Address/Tax Key No.:  Not Assigned/PWC 0865139 and 0868998 

Applicant:  Woodleaf Investments LLC 

Property Owner:  Woodleaf Investments LLC 

Zoning:  

PWC 0865139 - Rs-6 Single-Family Residential District, LC Lowland Conservancy District, and F-1 

Floodplain District 

PWC 0868998 – UC Upland Conservancy District and F-1 Floodplain District 

2050 Land Use Map Designation:  

PWC 0865139 – Medium Density Residential and Floodplains, Lowland & Upland Conservancy and 

Other Natural Areas 

PWC 0868998 – Floodplains, Lowland & Upland Conservancy and Other Natural Areas 

Use of Surrounding Properties:  Single-family residential to the north and single-family, vacant 

agricultural and LC, F-1 and UC district zoning to the south, east and west  

Project Description 

The applicant, Woodleaf Investments, LLC, filed a Final Plat Application for Addition No. 3 of the 

Woodleaf Reserve single-family residential subdivision development located to the south of Woodleaf 

Way and Boxleaf Lane. This phase of the development consists of 34 lots and 1 outlot.  

 

More specifically, this phase will include the construction of Timber Circle and a further extension of 

Timber Drive. Lots 140 through 145 are located along the Timber Drive extension and Lots 146 

through 152, as well as Outlot 8, surround Timber Circle. Outlot 8 contains a wetland. The extension 

of Planetree Trail is also part of this phase and includes lots 119 through 131.  

 

Note Lot 131 is zoned UC Upland Conservancy District. Any proposed development must meet the 

UC District development standards. It can be further noted that single-family dwellings are a permitted 

use within the UC District and as a Special Regulation within the District all building permits must be 

reviewed and approved by the Plan Commission.  

 

Otherwise, all lots conform to the Rs-6 minimum lot area of 12,500 square feet and a lot width of at 

least 90 feet at the building setback line. Overall, staff finds that the Final Plat is in substantial 

conformance with the Preliminary Plat, subject to: 
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Planner & Community Development Director Nick Fuchs  

1. All road dedications shall be identified on the plat and shall be identified as “dedicated to the 

public.” 

2. The Subdivision statistics note shall be revised to include the required minimum wetland and 

floodplain setbacks.  

3. References to the floodplain shall be removed from the preservation restrictions (see Note H). 

There are no areas of the subject plat within the 100-year floodplain. Note that needed 

restrictions applicable to the 75-foot floodplain setback may remain.  

4. Lot 48 setbacks shall be revised to meet the required minimum wetland setback of 25-feet. 

5. Note E. under Utility and Stormwater Management Notes shall be revised to read as follows: 

 

Landscaping shall be restricted to ground cover, which will not retard surface water 

drainage. Shrubs and trees may not be placed within the drainage easement areas. Any 

perennials, flowers or other plantings located within these areas shall be placed at the 

risk of the lot owner and lot owner may be requested to remove shrubs and trees at the 

lot owners sole cost. The City will not replace landscaping removal is necessary.  

 

6. The following restriction shall be added as a note on the plat.  

 

Any tree, shrub, or landscaping placed with the City’s right-of-way may be pruned, 

trimmed, or removed at any time at the Homeowner’s Association expense. The City 

will not be responsible for the maintenance or replacement of landscaping upon 

removal. 

 

7. Lot 131 setbacks shall be revised to include the required minimum 100-year floodplain setback 

of 75-feet.  

 

Recommendation 

A motion to recommend approval of the Woodleaf Reserve Addition No. 3 Final Plat, subject to the 

conditions noted above.  
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 12.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: PW - Engineering

PROVIDED BY: Magdelene Wagner

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Deer Haven Phase 2 Road Reconstruction Project [Wagner]

BACKGROUND: 

In 2018 the Common Council conducted the Public Hearing and awarded the paving project. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The adoption of the Resolution enacts the special assessments. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

Common Council approve the Final Engineers Report and Resolution levying the final special assessments.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Deer Have Phase 2 Final Engineers Report
Resolution 21-07-25 Deer Haven Phase II
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Preliminary Report of the Engineer 
 

On The Proposed Deer Haven Subdivision Phase 2 
 

Pavement Rehabilitation Assessments 
 

In The City of Pewaukee 
 

 
In accordance with the resolution passed by the City Council of the City of Pewaukee, we herewith 
submit our report on assessments for the rehabilitation of Deer Haven Subdivision Phase 2 and 
drainage improvements made in the City of Pewaukee.  All data shown here is based on bid prices. 
 
This report consists of the following Schedules: 
 

Schedule “A”: Summary of options for assessments and related costs. 
 
Schedule “B”: Legal descriptions, dated March, 2018, and maps, dated January, 2017, of all 

parcels within the assessment district. 
 
Schedule “C”: Assessment for each parcel affected. 

 
The properties against which the assessments are proposed are benefited and the improvements 
constitute an exercise of Police Powers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Magdelene J. Wagner, P.E. 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
City of Pewaukee 
W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road 
Pewaukee, WI  53072 
July 19, 2021 
 
Prepared by: 
Brian G. Leightner, E.I.T. 
Civil Engineer 
July 14, 2021 
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Schedule “A” – Deer Haven Subdivision Phase 2 
 
The City of Pewaukee rehabilitated the pavement of Deer Haven Subdivision Phase 2 including Bucks 
Island Court, Deer Haven Drive, Fawn Court, Whitetail Court, and Wilderness Way.  The 
improvements consisted of road rehabilitation, curb repair, inlet repair, water repair, and sewer repair, 
and related facilities.   
 
The cost of the road improvements and 50% of curb repairs are apportioned to all property owners 
abutting the street with direct or indirect access.  The City of Pewaukee caps the road assessments to 
the single family, duplex residential, residential condominium, and lowland conservancy properties.  
All other properties shall pay the full road assessment. 
 
Inlet repairs, 50% of the curb repairs, and drainage improvements are paid by the Storm Water 
Management Utility.   
 
Water repairs are paid by the Water Utility.  Sewer repairs are paid by the Sewer Utility. 
 
The costs for the improvements in Deer Haven Subdivision Phase 2 are determined on a unit basis.   
 

UNIT RATE COMPUTATIONS 
 
Road Rehabilitation Unit Rate – Deer Haven Subdivision Phase 2 
 
Final Road Reconstruction Costs (see attached breakdown) $398,314.46 
Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies $47,662.14 
Total Final Road Reconstruction Assessable Cost $445,976.60 

 
 
$ 445,976.60

97 units
 = $4,597.70/unit 

 
Use $4,597.70 as the Road Rehabilitation Unit Rate1. 
1A maximum assessment of $2,562.00 (2018 Pavement Cap) will be assessed to single family, duplex, and 
condominium residential properties.  A maximum assessment of $811.00 (2018 Paving Cap) will be assessed to 
lowland conservancy properties. 
 

 
Storm Water Management – Deer Haven Subdivision Phase 2 
 
 
 
Final Drainage Improvement Costs (see attached breakdown)  $30,370.17 
Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies       $3,634.08 
Total Final Drainage Improvement Costs    $34,004.25 
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City of Pewaukee Sewer Utility 
 
Final Sewer Utility Costs (see attached breakdown)  $28,245.67 
Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies       $3,379.86 
Total Final Sewer Utility Costs    $31,625.53 

 
 
City of Pewaukee Water Utility 
 
Final Water Utility Costs (see attached breakdown)  $23,165.14 
Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies       $2,771.93 
Total Final Water Utility Costs    $25,937.07 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
COST SUMMARY 

 
Cost Summary 
 
Total Project Costs    $537,543.45 
Total Deer Haven Phase 2 Assessable Costs (deduct)    $249,083.40 
Total Water Utility Costs (deduct)    $25,937.07 
Total Sewer Costs (deduct)    $31,625.53 
Total Storm Water Utility Costs (deduct)       $34,004.25 
Net Non-assessable and City Costs   $196,893.21 
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Computation of Costs 
Total Rehabilitation Project Costs 

Item 
No. Description Unit 

Final 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price Cost 

1 Mobilization L.S. 1 $1,302.75 $1,302.75 
2 Traffic Control L.S. 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 
3 Inlet sediment guards type "C" EA. 48 $45.00 $2,160.00 

4 Dust Control with water 
1000 
GAL 7.5 $300.00 $2,250.00 

5 Full depth saw cut pavement L.F. 182.5 $3.50 $638.75 
6 Full depth pavement milling S.Y. 10,400 $5.05 $52,520.00 

7 
1 1/4 inch crushed limestone T.B. base 
aggregate TON 278.86 $17.00 $4,740.62 

8 Excavation below subgrade C.Y. 768 $13.00 $9,984.00 
9 Excavation below subgrade backfill TON 1,536 $13.00 $19,968.00 
10 Geo-grid subgrade stabilization material S.Y. 2,229.5 $0.05 $111.48 
11 3 1/4 inch asphaltic concrete binder course TON 1,493 $47.00 $70,171.00 
12 Tack coat GAL. 1,100 $0.05 $55.00 

13 
1 3/4 inches asphaltic concrete surface 
course TON 1,878.76 $50.00 $93,938.00 

20 Concrete Curb and gutter replacement L.F. 988 $40.00 $39,520.00 

21 
HES concrete curb and gutter replacement 
for driveways L.F. 280.1 $40.00 $11,204.00 

22 3" asphaltic concrete driveway repair S.F. 159.07 $15.00 $2,386.05 

23 
Sanitary sewer manhole frame and cover 
replacement EA. 3 $1,250.00 $3,750.00 

24 
Sanitary sewer manhole internal seal 
replacement and testing EA. 1 $675.00 $675.00 

25 Storm manhole chimney ring replacement V.I. 7.75 $250.00 $1,937.50 
26 Storm manhole frame and grate replacement EA. 1 $850.00 $850.00 
27 Water Valve box top section replacement EA. 20 $600.00 $12,000.00 
28 Water valve box cleaning EA. 9 $350.00 $3,150.00 

29 
Water valve box adjustment: straighten top 
section EA. 3 $750.00 $2,250.00 

30 Topsoil, seed, fertilizer, and hydromulch S.Y. 314 $12.50 $3,925.00 

31 
Full depth pavement milling (in addition to 
bid item 14) S.Y. 7,620 $5.02 $38,252.40 

35 
3 1/4 inch asphaltic concrete binder course 
(in addition to bid item 11) TON 1,494.54 $47.00 $70,243.38 

36 
Sanitary sewer manhole chimney ring 
replacement V.I. 58.25 $250.00 $14,562.50 

37 
Sanitary sewer manhole internal/external 
seal replacement and testing EA. 12 $750.00 $9,000.00 
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Item 
No. Description Unit 

Final 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price Cost 

38 
Water Valve box middle section 
replacement EA. 6 $775.00 $4,650.00 

39 
Water Valve box bottom section 
replacement EA. 1 $900.00 $900.00 

 Subtotal of Contract    $480,095.43 
  Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies       $57,448.02 

 Total Project Costs    $537,543.45 
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Total Road Rehabilitation & Assessment Costs – Deer Haven Subdivision Phase 2 
Item 
No. Description Unit 

Final 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price Cost 

1 Mobilization L.S. 0.83 $1,302.75 $1,081.28 
2 Traffic Control L.S. 0.83 $3,000.00 $2,490.00 
3 Inlet sediment guards type "C" EA. 48 $45.00 $2,160.00 

4 Dust Control with water 
1000 
GAL 7.5 $300.00 $2,250.00 

5 Full depth saw cut pavement L.F. 182.5 $3.50 $638.75 
6 Full depth pavement milling S.Y. 10,400 $5.05 $52,520.00 
7 1 1/4 inch crushed limestone T.B. base aggregate TON 278.86 $17.00 $4,740.62 
8 Excavation below subgrade C.Y. 768 $13.00 $9,984.00 
9 Excavation below subgrade backfill TON 1,536 $13.00 $19,968.00 
10 Geo-grid subgrade stabilization material S.Y. 2,229.5 $0.05 $111.48 
11 3 1/4 inch asphaltic concrete binder course TON 1,493 $47.00 $70,171.00 
12 Tack coat GAL. 1,100 $0.05 $55.00 
13 1 3/4 inches asphaltic concrete surface course TON 1,878.76 $50.00 $93,938.00 
20 Concrete Curb and gutter replacement L.F. 494 $40.00 $19,760.00 

21 
HES concrete curb and gutter replacement for 
driveways L.F. 140.05 $40.00 $5,602.00 

22 3" asphaltic concrete driveway repair S.F. 159.07 $15.00 $2,386.05 
30 Topsoil, seed, fertilizer, and hydromulch S.Y. 157.00 $12.50 $1,962.50 

31 
Full depth pavement milling (in addition to bid 
item 14) S.Y. 7,620.00 $5.02 $38,252.40 

35 
3 1/4 inch asphaltic concrete binder course (in 
addition to bid item 11) S.Y. 1,494.54 $47.00 $70,243.38 

 Subtotal of Contract    $398,314.46 
  Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies       $47,662.14 

 Total Project Costs    $445,976.60 
 
 
Total Units abutting the Road   = 97 units 
 
Computation of Unit Cost: $ 445,976.60

97 units
 = $4,597.70/unit 

 
Use $4,597.70 as the Road Rehabilitation Unit Rate1. 

1A maximum assessment of $2,562.00 (2018 Pavement Cap) will be assessed to single family, duplex, and 
condominium residential properties.  A maximum assessment of $811.00 (2018 Paving Cap) will be assessed to 
lowland conservancy properties. 
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Total Storm Water Utility Costs – Deer Haven Subdivision Phase 2 
Item 
No. Description Unit 

Final 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price Cost 

1 Mobilization L.S. 0.06 $1,302.75 $78.17 
2 Traffic Control L.S. 0.06 $3,000.00 $180.00 
20 Concrete Curb and gutter replacement L.F. 494 $40.00 $19,760.00 

21 
HES concrete curb and gutter replacement for 
driveways L.F. 140.05 $40.00 $5,602.00 

25 Storm manhole chimney ring replacement V.I. 7.75 $250.00 $1,937.50 
26 Storm manhole frame and grate replacement EA. 1 $850.00 $850.00 
30 Topsoil, seed, fertilizer, and hydromulch S.Y. 157.0 $12.50 $1,962.50 

 Subtotal    $30,370.17 
  Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies       $3,634.08 

 Total Project Costs    $34,004.25 
 
Total Storm Water Utility Project Costs – Deer Haven  = $34,004.25 
 
Total Sewer Utility Costs  

Item 
No. Description Unit 

Final 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price Cost 

1 Mobilization L.S. 0.06 $1,302.75 $78.17 
2 Traffic Control L.S. 0.06 $3,000.00 $180.00 

23 
Sanitary sewer manhole frame and cover 
replacement EA. 3 $1,250.00 $3,750.00 

24 
Sanitary sewer manhole internal seal 
replacement and testing EA. 1 $675.00 $675.00 

36 
Sanitary sewer manhole chimney ring 
replacement V.I. 58.25 $250.00 $14,562.50 

37 
Sanitary sewer manhole internal/external seal 
replacement and testing EA. 12 $750.00 $9,000.00 

 Subtotal of Contract    $28,245.67 
  Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies       $3,379.86 

 Total Project Costs    $31,625.53 
 
Total Sewer Utility Project Costs   = $31,625.53 
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Total Water Utility Costs 
Item 
No. Description Unit 

Final 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price Cost 

1 Mobilization L.S. 0.05 $1,302.75 $65.14 
2 Traffic Control L.S. 0.05 $3,000.00 $150.00 
27 Water Valve box top section replacement EA. 20 $600.00 $12,000.00 
28 Water valve box cleaning EA. 9 $350.00 $3,150.00 

29 
Water valve box adjustment: straighten top 
section EA. 3 $750.00 $2,250.00 

38 Water Valve box middle section replacement EA. 6 $775.00 $4,650.00 
39 Water Valve box bottom section replacement EA. 1 $900.00 $900.00 

 Subtotal of Contract    $23,165.14 
  Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies       $2,771.93 

 Total Project Costs    $25,937.07 
 
Total Water Utility Project Costs     = $25,937.07 
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Schedule “B”:  Legal Description 
 
March 9, 2018 
 
 
All that part of Southeast ¼ of Section 17, Township 7 North, Range 19 East, City of Pewaukee, 
Waukesha County, Wisconsin, more fully described as follows: 
 
All lands abutting Bucks Island Court, Deer Haven Drive, Fawn Court, Whitetail Court, and 
Wilderness Way. 
 
 
 
Magdelene J. Wagner, P.E. 
Assistant City Engineer 
City of Pewaukee 
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July 19, 2021
PREPARED July 14, 2021

SCHEDULE C
FINAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

DEER HAVEN SUBDIVISION PHASE 2 2018 PAVING
RD-18-57423

CITY OF PEWAUKEE

P:\City\Road Construction Projects\Deer Haven\2018\Assessment\final\Final Assessment Roll Page 1 of 9

NO. OWNERS NAME AND ADDRESS TAX KEY NO. DESCRIPTION Unit COST/Unit COST ASSESSMENT CAP TOTAL ASSESSMENT

1
MICHAEL RODGERS AND JENNIFER 
RODGERS PWC 0932022 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2522 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4556

2 MARK W GLOVER & AMBER M GLOVER PWC 0932023 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2530 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4556

3 TOM CASANOVA AND MERRICK PEARSON PWC 0932024 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2544 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4556

4
PATRICK M FETHERSTON & TRICIA 
FETHERSTON PWC 0932025 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2552 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

5 NATHAN GOODMAN & CARRIE GOODMAN PWC 0932026 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2566 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4556

6
RAJENDRA K KOTHARI & YASMIN K 
BHATHENA PWC 0932027 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2588 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4556

7 KEITH AKERS & KATHERINE AKERS PWC 0932028 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2620 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

8
ANN DEE AUSTIN & JOHN R AUSTIN FAMILY 
TRUST PWC 0932029 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2642 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4557

9 JAMES M THOMPSON PWC 0932030 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2653 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4595

10
KAREN A AND DREW J BROOKS REVOCABLE 
LIVING TRUST PWC 0932031 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2641 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4595

11 SEAN V CARNEY & JOYCE M CARNEY PWC 0932055 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2587 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4556
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July 19, 2021
PREPARED July 14, 2021

SCHEDULE C
FINAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

DEER HAVEN SUBDIVISION PHASE 2 2018 PAVING
RD-18-57423

CITY OF PEWAUKEE

P:\City\Road Construction Projects\Deer Haven\2018\Assessment\final\Final Assessment Roll Page 2 of 9
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12 MICHAEL J VIGNEAU AND CARA A VIGNEAU PWC 0932056 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2559 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4556

13 STEPHEN E MONROE & BROOKE M MONROE PWC 0932057 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N26W26242 FOXCROFT DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

14 LOT OWNERS OF DEER HAVEN PWC 0932069 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $811.00 $811.00
PO BOX 644
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

15 MICHAEL HACKNEY & MARILYN HACKNEY PWC 0932072 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2521 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4558

16 PATRICK HEEREY & KRISTINE HEEREY PWC 0932073 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2513 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

17 JEROME BRUCHERT & NANCY BRUCHERT PWC 0932074 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2518 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

18 ANDREW STOKER AND AMANDA SIMMONS PWC 0932075 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W261N2512 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4556

19 KAREN A STARICH PWC 0932076 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2476 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4572

20 JOHN WARCZAK & JACALYN WARCZAK PWC 0932077 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2464 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

21
ROBERT VANWILLIGEN & PATRICIA 
VANWILLIGEN PWC 0932078 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2442 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

22 BENJAMIN A WILKEY AND BUFFY WILKEY PWC 0932079 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2438 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4572

23 THOMAS HACKL & KRISTIN HACKL PWC 0932080 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2426 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072
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24 MARTIN DEMETER & JUDITH DEMETER PWC 0932081 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2418 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

25
JOHN H FARROW JR & MARGARET A 
FARROW PWC 0932082 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2402 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4572

26 CYNTHIA A ROKUS PWC 0932083 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2366 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

27
EDWARD J & ELIZABETH A GAFFNEY 
REVOCABLE TRUST PWC 0932084 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2350 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

28 KEVIN L JOHNSTON PWC 0932085 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2348 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-5490

29
     

LIVING TRUST PWC 0932086 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2336 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-5490

30 EMIL MAYER & HELEN MAYER PWC 0932087 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2324 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

31
JAMES ROLFSMEYER & ANNETTE 
ROLFSMEYER PWC 0932088 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2312 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

32 DAVID FUNKE & TRISHA FUNKE PWC 0932089 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2300 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

33 PETER DAHLQUIST PWC 0932090 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2310 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-5489

34 FRANK J PACOCHA PWC 0932091 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2321 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072
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35
JOSHUA J RADOMSKI & HEATHER M 
RADOMSKI PWC 0932092 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2333 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

36 JARED AND LANA PIEPER LIVING TRUST PWC 0932093 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2345 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-5490

37 PETER D KNOKE & JENNIFER L KNOKE PWC 0932094 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2351 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

38 MARK R JOHNSON & CAROL M JOHNSON PWC 0932095 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2367 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

39 BRIAN RIPP & CARRIE RIPP PWC 0932096 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2379 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-5490

40 DAVID ROSEN & ANGELA LIBRIZZI PWC 0932097 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2381 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

41 CYNTHIA K GRAN PWC 0932098 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2405 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

42 KEVIN P MOLONEY & SANDRA C MOLONEY PWC 0932099 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2413 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

43 ROSE M FADROW PWC 0932100 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2421 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

44 MILLER REVOCABLE TRUST PWC 0932101 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2437 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

45
JOHN J & NANCY S CIANCIOLO REVOCABLE 
TRUST PWC 0932102 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N24W26321 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072
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46 LEIGH ANN ZIMMER PWC 0932103 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N24W26339 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

47 JASON NAVARRO & LORI NAVARRO PWC 0932104 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N24W26357 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4568

48
TERRY ZIMMERMAN & MARY JANE 
ZIMMERMAN PWC 0932105 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2426 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

49 CHAD BURKS & DEBRA BURKS PWC 0932106 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2416 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

50 YUJIAO TAO PWC 0932107 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2390 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

51 WILLIAM DUBIEL & KATHLEEN DUBIEL PWC 0932108 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2382 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

52 HOOMAN HAKAMI & CHRISTINE HAKAMI PWC 0932109 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
9485 N VALLEY HILL RD
MILWAUKEE WI 53217-1038

53 JAMES BECKER & BEVERLY BECKER PWC 0932110 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2366 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

54
ALAN S & ANN S MEYERS REVOCABLE 
TRUST PWC 0932111 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2354 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

55 KURT SCHUSTER & LYNN SCHUSTER PWC 0932112 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2342 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

56
CLINTON R SATYAVELU & KRISTIN L 
SATYAVELU PWC 0932113 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2338 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-5489
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57 DREW GALOW & MELINDA GALOW PWC 0932114 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W263N2322 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-5489

58 PETER J IKUSZ PWC 0932115 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2303 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

59 LOGAN W WEHKING & KARI A WEHKING PWC 0932116 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2309 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

60 SHANE M PIEPER & LISA J PIEPER PWC 0932117 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2323 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-5489

61 BRIAN P SNIFF AND LESLIE A SNIFF PWC 0932118 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2337 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-5489

62 SCOTT MORGAN & SUSAN MORGAN PWC 0932119 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2341 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

63
RICHARD R TALKOWSKI & KRISTINA M 
TALKOWSKI PWC 0932120 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2355 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

64 JAMES P PLEWA & JESSICA L PLEWA PWC 0932121 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2359 FAWN CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-5488

65
JEFFREY & MARSHA FALLOWS LIVING 
TRUST PWC 0932122 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2363 FAWN CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

66 SAMUEL W ECOFF & KARA B ECOFF PWC 0932123 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2377 FAWN CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-5488

67 DANIEL BAAR & CHRISTINE BAAR PWC 0932124 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2381 FAWN CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072
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68 JESSE M BEWER & DANIELLE S BEWER PWC 0932125 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2343 FAWN CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-5488

69 MICHAEL LANKO & PATRICIA LANKO PWC 0932126 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2399 FAWN CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

70 MATTHEW T TRAPP PWC 0932127 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N24W26405 BUCKS ISLAND CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4569

71 RICHARD ZIPPERER & RITA ZIPPERER PWC 0932128 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N24W26419 BUCKS ISLAND CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

72
RANDALL J & LINDA C REESE REVOCABLE 
TRUST DATED MARCH 18, 2013 PWC 0932129 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N24W26427 BUCKS ISLAND CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

73 T SCOTT BENTLEY & NANCY J CHANDER PWC 0932130 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N24W26455 BUCKS ISLAND CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

74 BRADLEY D SERVAIS & MICHELLE S SERVAIS PWC 0932131 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N24W26461 BUCKS ISLAND CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

75 GERALD QUERIO & MARGUERITE QUERIO PWC 0932132 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N24W26489 BUCKS ISLAND CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

76 ROBERT HERMAN & STACEY HERMAN PWC 0932133 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N25W26490 BUCKS ISLAND CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

77
RICHARD K WAGNER & DEBORAH M 
WAGNER PWC 0932134 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N25W26466 BUCKS ISLAND CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4569

78 JOSEPH H MEHRING PWC 0932135 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N25W26444 BUCKS ISLAND CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4569
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79 MARK J GOYETTE & JULIE J GOYETTE PWC 0932136 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N25W26420 BUCKS ISLAND CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

80 DONALD TIGHE & KERRY TIGHE PWC 0932137 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2464 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

81 ADEBUKOLA O BENSON PWC 0932138 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W264N2477 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4573

82 CHAD HENDRICKS AND ANNA HENDRICKS PWC 0932139 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N25W26473 WHITETAIL CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

83
ANTHONY D PETERSEN & DEBORAH E 
PETERSEN PWC 0932140 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N25W26481 WHITETAIL CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

84 BRYAN S DAVIS & COURNTEY B DAVIS PWC 0932141 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N25W26378 WHITETAIL CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

85 BARR TRUST PWC 0932142 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N25W26362 WHITETAIL CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

86 JEREMY HORBERT AND SHIRLEY HORBERT PWC 0932143001 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N25W26352 WHITETAIL CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4574

87 ALANKAR TANDON AND SUCHARITA TANDON PWC 0932144001 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N25W26342 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4568

88 ERIC S EKLUND & JENNIFER R EKLUND PWC 0932145 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N25W26336 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

89 MATTHEW R MELBY & KATHLEEN M VARANI PWC 0932146 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N25W26324 WILDERNESS WAY
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4568

90 PAN TAE OH & SUSAN OH PWC 0932147 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2467 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072
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91 KEVIN M JOHNSON PWC 0932148 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2477 DEER HAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

92 LOT OWNERS OF DEER HAVEN III PWC 0932150 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $811.00 $811.00
PO BOX 644
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

93 STEVEN F HAAS AND COLLEEN F HAAS PWC 0932151001 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N2450 DEERHAVEN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4572

94 AMANDA L BROWN PWC 0932151002 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
3030 HIDDEN LAKE DR
BROOKFIELD WI 53005-4014

95 CITY OF PEWAUKEE WATER UTILITY PWC 0941994003 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $4,597.70
W240N3065 PEWAUKEE RD
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

96 CITY OF PEWAUKEE WATER UTILITY PWC 0941994006 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $4,597.70
W240N3065 PEWAUKEE RD
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

97 MARLENE FADROW CAREW PWC 0941994007 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $4,597.70 $4,597.70 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
26922 HONEYMOON AVE
LEESBURG FL 34748-9127

TOTAL CONTRIBUTION IN AID OF ROAD CONSTRUCTION 97.00 $249,083.40

The properties against which contributions in aid of construction are proposed are benefited and the improvements constitute an exercise in Police Powers.
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STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF PEWAUKEE WAUKESHA COUNTY 
 

RESOLUTION 21-07-25 
FINAL RESOLUTION FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 

DEER HAVEN PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION PAVEMENT RECONDITIONING AND 
RELATED FACILITIES 

UNDER SECTION 66.0703, WISCONSIN STATUTES 
 

 WHEREAS, The Common Council of the City of Pewaukee has adopted a special 
assessment policy in regard to improvement of all streets, roads, and related facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Common Council of the City of Pewaukee did authorize previously 
the cost of the road rehabilitation, drainage improvements, and appurtenances of Deer Haven 
Phase 2; and  
 
 WHEREAS, The Common Council of the City of Pewaukee, Waukesha County, 
Wisconsin held a public hearing at City Hall Council Chambers, located at W240N3065 
Pewaukee Road, Pewaukee, WI at 6:00 pm on the 6th day of February, 2017 to receive comments 
from those property owners directly affected by such improvements; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BET IT HEREBY RESOLVED: That the Common Council of 
the City of Pewaukee, to adopt this resolution as follows: 
 

1. That the final report prepared by the City Engineer dated July 14, 2021, is hereby adopted 
and made a part of this resolution. 

2. That the total cost of said improvement of $537,543.45 including engineering and 
contingency fees, be paid by assessing the cost to the properties benefited as indicated in 
said report and based upon the adopted special assessment policies of the City of 
Pewaukee. 

3. That the benefit shown on the report, as modified, is true and correct and has been 
determined on a reasonable basis and is hereby confirmed. 

4. That this assessment is an exercise of the police power of the City of Pewaukee and have 
been determined on a reasonable basis and will result in a benefit to each and every 
property being assessed. 

5. That the Common Council has previously determined that the bid for the drainage 
improvements of and road rehabilitation of Deer Haven Phase 2 to Payne & Dolan, 
Incorporated, based on the lowest qualified bid be accepted and that the contract was 
thereupon let to aid bidder in the bid amount of $474,000.00. 

6. That the payment for the debt incurred for the road be made by assessing the cost to the 
property benefited and on the following terms and conditions: 

a. Road Assessment: 
i. The Road Assessment is $4,597.70 per unit that is capped at $2,562.00 per 

unit for single family, duplex, and condominium residential properties.  
That the assessments may be paid in cash in full on or before October 31, 
2021 or in ten annual installments to the City Treasurer, installment 
payments to bear annual simple interest at the rate of 2.49% per annum on 
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the unpaid balance and said first installment being due on the date when 
real estate taxes are due and annually by October 31st thereafter.  All 
assessments or installments which are not paid by the date specified shall 
be extended upon the tax roll as a delinquent tax against the property and 
all proceedings in relation to the collection, return and sale of property for 
delinquent real estate taxes shall apply to such special assessment, except 
as otherwise provided by statute. 

ii. If there exists the potential for future units within the local road 
assessment area.  Additional units may become payable per the Special 
Assessment of Street and Street Related Improvements Policy (Resolution 
06-02-1 or as otherwise revised/updated) for a period of 5 years from the 
date of final resolution.  The additional assessment will be due at the time 
of subdivision (via Certified Survey Map (CSM), Plat or Survey, or other 
land division methods). 

7. That the City Clerk shall publish this Final Resolution as a Class 1 Notice in the area 
upon which this assessment is levied and shall mail a copy of this Resolution and a 
statement of the final assessment against the benefited properties to each property owner 
who appears on the assessment roll, whose post office address is known or can with 
reasonable diligence, be ascertained.  In the notice published and mailed, a map shall be 
enclosed and shall be published and mailed with the notice as will reasonably describe 
the area upon which this assessment is being levied.  This assessment is levied upon all 
properties within the project area having direct access to Deer Haven Subdivision Phase 
1.  Each of said property owners shall be assessed in accordance with the Engineer’s 
Report. 

 
This Final Resolution passed and adopted this 19th day of July, 2021. 
 
      CITY OF PEWAUKEE 
 
 

      

X
Steve Bierce
Mayor

 
ATTEST: 

X
Kelly M. Tarczewski
Clerk/Treasurer
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 13.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: PW - Engineering

PROVIDED BY: Magdelene Wagner

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Steeplechase Phase 1 Road Rehabilitation Project [Wagner]

BACKGROUND: 

In 2018 the Common Council conducted the Public Hearing and awarded the paving project.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The adoption of the Resolution enacts the special assessments. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

Common Council approve the Final Engineers Report and Resolution levying the final special assessments.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Steeplechase Phase 1 Final Engineers Report
Resolution 21-07-26 Steeplechase
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Final Report of the Engineer 
 

On The Proposed Steeplechase Subdivision Phase 1 
 

Pavement Rehabilitation Assessments 
 

In The City of Pewaukee 
 

 
In accordance with the resolution passed by the City Council of the City of Pewaukee, we herewith 
submit our report on assessments for the rehabilitation of Steeplechase Subdivision Phase 1 and 
drainage improvements made in the City of Pewaukee.  All data shown here is based on bid prices. 
 
This report consists of the following Schedules: 
 

Schedule “A”: Summary of options for assessments and related costs. 
 
Schedule “B”: Legal descriptions, dated February, 2018, and maps, dated February 2018, of all 

parcels within the assessment district. 
 
Schedule “C”: Assessment for each parcel affected. 

 
The properties against which the assessments are proposed are benefited and the improvements 
constitute an exercise of Police Powers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Magdelene J. Wagner, P.E. 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
City of Pewaukee 
W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road 
Pewaukee, WI  53072 
July 19, 2021 
 
Prepared by: 
Brian G. Leightner, E.I.T. 
Civil Engineer 
July 14, 2021 
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Schedule “A” – Steeplechase Subdivision Phase 1 
 
The City of Pewaukee is rehabilitated the pavement of Steeplechase Subdivision Phase 1 including 
Coachman Drive, Homestead Road, Steeplechase Court, and Steeplechase Drive.  The improvements 
consisted of road rehabilitation, curb repair, inlet repair, water repair, and sewer repair, and related 
facilities.   
 
The cost of the road improvements and 50% of curb repairs are apportioned to all property owners 
abutting the street with direct or indirect access.  The City of Pewaukee caps the road assessments to 
the single family, duplex residential and residential condominium properties.  All other properties shall 
pay the full road assessment. 
 
Inlet repairs, 50% of the curb repairs, and drainage improvements are paid by the Storm Water 
Management Utility.   
 
Water repairs are paid by the Water Utility.  Sewer repairs are paid by the Sewer Utility. 
 
The HOA requested the outlot assessments be placed on each lot therefore, the assessments for Outlots 
will be included on the 2019 Paving project assessments.   
 
The costs for the improvements in Steeplechase Subdivision Phase 1 are determined on a unit basis.   
 

UNIT RATE COMPUTATIONS 
 
Road Rehabilitation Unit Rate – Steeplechase Subdivision Phase 1 
 
Road Reconstruction Costs (see attached breakdown) $307,893.91 
Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies $44,475.33 
Total Road Reconstruction Assessable Cost $352,369.24 

 
$ 352,491.12

55 units
 = $6,406.71/unit 

 
Use $6,406.71 as the Road Rehabilitation Unit Rate1. 
1A maximum assessment of $2,562.00 (2018 Pavement Cap) will be assessed to single family, duplex, and 
condominium residential properties. 

 
Storm Water Management – Steeplechase Subdivision Phase 1 
 
 
Drainage Improvement Costs (see attached breakdown) $16,332.36 
Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies $4,899.71 
Total Drainage Improvement Costs $21,232.07 
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City of Pewaukee Sewer Utility 
 
 
Sewer Utility Costs (see attached breakdown) $12,234.74 
Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies $1,767.31 
Total Sewer Utility Costs $14,002.05 

City of Pewaukee Water Utility 
 
 
Water Utility Costs (see attached breakdown) $17,391.24 
Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies $2,512.17 
Total Water Utility Costs $19,903.40 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
COST SUMMARY 

 
Cost Summary 
 
Total Project Costs $    404,966.28  
Total Steeplechase Phase 1 Assessable Costs (deduct) $ (140,910.00) 
Total Water Utility Costs (deduct) $   (19,903.40) 
Total Sewer Costs (deduct) $   (14,002.05) 
Total Storm Water Utility Costs (deduct) $   (21,232.07) 
Net Non-assessable and City Costs $    208,918.75  
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Computation of Costs 
Total Rehabilitation Project Costs 

Item 
No. Description Unit 

Final 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price Cost 

1 Mobilization L.S. 1.00 $ 2,324.75 $    2,324.75 
2 Traffic Control L.S. 1.00 $ 3,000.00 $     3,000.00 
3 Inlet sediment guards type "C" EA. 28.00 $      45.00 $     1,260.00 

4 Dust Control with water 
1000 
GAL 15.00 $    300.00 $     4,500.00 

5 Full depth saw cut pavement L.F. 156.80 $        3.50 $        548.80 
6 Full depth pavement milling S.Y. 5,765.00 $        5.05 $   29,113.25 

7 
1 1/4 inch crushed limestone T.B. base 
aggregate TON 127.00 $      17.00 $     2,159.00 

8 Excavation below subgrade C.Y. 805.34 $      13.00 $   10,469.42 
9 Excavation below subgrade backfill TON 3,281.04 $      13.00 $   42,653.52 
10 Geo-grid subgrade stabilization material S.Y. 1,620.00 $        0.05 $          81.00 
11 3 1/4 inch asphaltic concrete binder course TON 933.95 $      47.00 $   43,895.65 
12 Tack coat GAL. 650.00 $        0.05 $          32.50 

13 
1 3/4 inches asphaltic concrete surface 
course TON 1,246.15 $      50.00 $   62,307.50 

20 Concrete Curb and gutter replacement L.F. 397.60 $      40.00 $   15,904.00 

21 
HES concrete curb and gutter replacement 
for driveways L.F. 113.30 $      40.00 $     4,532.00 

22 3" asphaltic concrete driveway repair S.F. 10.20 $      15.00 $        153.00 
23 6" HES concrete Driveway repair S.F. 16.80 $      30.00 $        504.00 

24 
Unbury sanitary sewer manhole and allow 
for inspection EA. 1.00 $    300.00 $        300.00 

25 Storm manhole chimney ring replacement V.I. 14.00 $    250.00 $     3,500.00 
26 Water Valve box top section replacement EA. 16.00 $    600.00 $     9,600.00 
27 Water valve box cleaning EA. 3.00 $    350.00 $     1,050.00 
28 Water valve box raising EA. 2.00 $    225.00 $        450.00 
29 Topsoil, seed, fertilizer, and hydromulch S.Y. 103.70 $      12.50 $     1,296.25 

CO-
2 

230: Full depth pavement milling (in lieu of 
Bid Item 214). S.Y. 6,395.00 $        4.67 $   29,864.65 

CO-
2 

231: Excavation below subgrade (in 
addition to Bid Item 208). C.Y. 835.18 $      13.00 $   10,857.34 

CO-
2 

233: Geo-grid subgrade stabilization 
material (in addition to Bid Item 210). S.Y. 2,033.31 $        0.05 $        101.67 

CO-
2 

234: 3 1/4 inch asphaltic concrete binder 
course (in addition to Bid Item 211). TON 1,146.68 $      47.00 $   53,893.96 

CO-
3 

236: Sanitary sewer manhole internal seal 
replacement and testing. EA. 13.00 $    675.00 $     8,775.00 
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Item 
No. Description Unit 

Final 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price Cost 

CO-
3 

237: Sanitary sewer manhole chimney ring 
replacement. V.I. 12.00 $    250.00 $     3,000.00 

CO-
3 

239: Water valve box middle section 
replacement. EA. 5.00 $    750.00 $     3,750.00 

CO-
3 

240: Water valve box bottom section 
replacement. EA. 1.00 $    775.00 $        775.00 

CO-
3 

243: Storm manhole frame and grate 
replacement. EA. 2.00 $    850.00 $     1,700.00 

CO-
3 

Water valve box adjustment: straighten top 
section. EA. 2.00 $    750.00 $     1,500.00 

 Subtotal of Contract    $ 353,852.26 

  
Engineering, Administration, & 
Contingencies       $   51,114.02 

 Total Project Costs    $ 404,966.28 
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Total Road Rehabilitation & Assessment Costs – Steeplechase Subdivision Phase 1 
Item 
No. Description Unit 

Actual 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price Cost 

1 Mobilization L.S. 0.87 $ 2,324.75  $     2,022.53 
2 Traffic Control L.S. 0.87 $ 3,000.00  $     2,610.00 
3 Inlet sediment guards type "C" EA. 28.00 $      45.00  $     1,260.00 

4 Dust Control with water 
1000 
GAL 15.00 $    300.00  $     4,500.00 

5 Full depth saw cut pavement L.F. 156.80 $        3.50  $        548.80 
6 Full depth pavement milling S.Y. 5,765.00 $        5.05  $   29,113.25 

7 
1 1/4 inch crushed limestone T.B. base 
aggregate TON 127.00 $      17.00  $     2,159.00 

8 Excavation below subgrade C.Y. 805.34 $      13.00  $   10,469.42 
9 Excavation below subgrade backfill TON 3,281.04 $      13.00  $   42,653.52 
10 Geo-grid subgrade stabilization material S.Y. 1,620.00 $        0.05  $          81.00 
11 3 1/4 inch asphaltic concrete binder course TON 933.95 $      47.00  $   43,895.65 
12 Tack coat GAL. 650.00 $        0.05  $          32.50 

13 
1 3/4 inches asphaltic concrete surface 
course TON 1,246.15 $      50.00  $   62,307.50 

20 Concrete Curb and gutter replacement L.F. 198.80 $      40.00  $     7,952.00 

21 
HES concrete curb and gutter replacement 
for driveways L.F. 56.65 $      40.00  $     2,266.00 

22 3" asphaltic concrete driveway repair S.F. 10.20 $      15.00  $        153.00 
23 6" HES concrete Driveway repair S.F. 16.80 $      30.00  $        504.00 
29 Topsoil, seed, fertilizer, and hydromulch S.Y. 51.85 $      12.50  $        648.13 

CO-2 
230: Full depth pavement milling (in lieu of 
Bid Item 214). S.Y. 6,395.00 $        4.67  $   29,864.65 

CO-2 
231: Excavation below subgrade (in 
addition to Bid Item 208). C.Y. 835.18 $      13.00  $   10,857.34 

CO-2 
233: Geo-grid subgrade stabilization 
material (in addition to Bid Item 210). S.Y. 2,033.31 $        0.05  $        101.67 

CO-2 
234: 3 1/4 inch asphaltic concrete binder 
course (in addition to Bid Item 211). TON 1,146.68 $      47.00  $   53,893.96 

  Subtotal of Contract       $ 307,893.91 
  Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies       $   44,475.33 

 Total Project Costs    $ 352,369.24 
 
Total Units abutting the Road   = 55 units 
 
Computation of Unit Cost: $ 352,491.12

55 units
 = $6,406.71/unit 

 
Use $6,406.71 as the Road Rehabilitation Unit Rate1. 
1A maximum assessment of $2,562.00 (2018 Pavement Cap) will be assessed to single family residential, duplex family 
residential, residential condominium properties. 
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Total Storm Water Utility Costs – Steeplechase Subdivision Phase 1 

Item 
No. Description Unit 

Final 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price Cost 

1 Mobilization L.S. 0.05 $ 2,324.75  $      116.24 
2 Traffic Control L.S. 0.05 $ 3,000.00  $      150.00 
20 Concrete Curb and gutter replacement L.F. 198.80 $      40.00  $   7,952.00 

21 
HES concrete curb and gutter replacement for 
driveways L.F. 56.65 $      40.00  $   2,266.00 

25 Storm manhole chimney ring replacement V.I. 14.00 $    250.00  $   3,500.00 
29 Topsoil, seed, fertilizer, and hydromulch S.Y. 51.85 $      12.50  $      648.13 

CO-3 
243: Storm manhole frame and grate 
replacement. EA. 2.00 $    850.00  $   1,700.00 

  Subtotal       $ 16,332.36 
 Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies       $   4,899.71 

  Total Project Costs    $ 21,232.07 
 
Total Storm Water Utility Project Costs – Steeplechase  = $21,232.07 
 
 
 
 
Total Sewer Utility Costs  

Item 
No. Description Unit 

Final 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price Cost 

1 Mobilization L.S. 0.03 $ 2,324.75  $        69.74 
2 Traffic Control L.S. 0.03 $ 3,000.00  $        90.00 

24 
Unbury sanitary sewer manhole and allow for 
inspection EA. 1.00 $    300.00  $      300.00 

CO-3 
236: Sanitary sewer manhole internal seal 
replacement and testing. EA. 13.00 $    675.00  $   8,775.00 

CO-3 
237: Sanitary sewer manhole chimney ring 
replacement. V.I. 12.00 $    250.00  $   3,000.00 

  Subtotal of Contract       $ 12,234.74 
 Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies    $   1,767.31 

  Total Project Costs       $ 14,002.05 
 
Total Sewer Utility Project Costs   = $14,002.05 
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Total Water Utility Costs 
Item 
No. Description Unit 

Final 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price Cost 

1 Mobilization L.S. 0.05 
 $  
2,324.75  $116.24 

2 Traffic Control L.S. 0.05 
 $  
3,000.00  $150.00 

26 Water Valve box top section replacement EA. 16.00 
 $      
600.00  $9,600.00 

27 Water valve box cleaning EA. 3.00 
 $      
350.00  $1,050.00 

28 Water valve box raising EA. 2.00 
 $      
225.00  $450.00 

CO-3 
239: Water valve box middle section 
replacement. EA. 5.00 

 $      
750.00  $3,750.00 

CO-3 
240: Water valve box bottom section 
replacement. EA. 1.00 

 $      
775.00  $775.00 

CO-3 
Water valve box adjustment: straighten top 
section. EA. 2.00 

 $      
750.00  $1,500.00 

 Subtotal of Contract $17,391.24 
  Engineering, Administration, & Contingencies $2,512.17 

 Total Project Costs $19,903.40 
 
Total Water Utility Project Costs     = $19,903.40 
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LEGEND

DATE: FEB., 2018

ROAD ASSESSMENT

WAUKESHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

CITY OF PEWAUKEE

ROAD ASSESSMENT

STEEPLECHASE PHASE 1 2018 PAVING PROGRAM

ROAD RECONDITIONING
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July 19, 2021
PREPARED July 14, 2021

SCHEDULE C
FINAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

STEEPLECHASE SUBDIVISION PHASE 1 2018 PAVING
RD-18-57424

CITY OF PEWAUKEE

P:\City\Road Construction Projects\Steeplechase 2018\Assessment\Final\Final Assessment Roll Steeplechase 2018 Page 1 of 6

NO. OWNERS NAME AND ADDRESS TAX KEY NO. DESCRIPTION Unit COST/Unit COST ASSESSMENT CAP TOTAL ASSESSMENT

1 DAVID C DECKER & DIAN K DECKER ET AL PWC 0929039 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W262N3030 PROSPECT AVE
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

2
THE BENJAMIN WALLER AND DENISE 
WALLER REVOCABLE TRUST PWC 0929040 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26230 HOMESTEAD RD
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4591

3 ARDALAN NOORDEH & CHERYL NOORDEH PWC 0929041 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26255 COACHMAN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

4 JOSEPH NAMES & MARILYN NAMES PWC 0929042 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26247 COACHMAN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

5 DONALD KOZELEK AND LISA NEVINSKI PWC 0929043 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26221 COACHMAN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4592

6 HONG WEI YU & FAN FAN PWC 0929044 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
329 KINGS RIDGE CIR
BRANDON MS 39047-6031

7 JAMES HIGH & ROBIN HIGH PWC 0929045 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26153 COACHMAN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

8 STEVEN F HAAS & COLLEEN F HAAS PWC 0929046 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26151 COACHMAN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

9
    

EDWARD CHUKWUMA UGWA PWC 0929047 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26183 STEEPLECHASE CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

10 MICHAEL BECKER & RITA BECKER PWC 0929048 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26211 STEEPLECHASE CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

11 WYSOCKI REVOCABLE TRUST PWC 0929049 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26231 STEEPLECHASE CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072
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SCHEDULE C
FINAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

STEEPLECHASE SUBDIVISION PHASE 1 2018 PAVING
RD-18-57424

CITY OF PEWAUKEE
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NO. OWNERS NAME AND ADDRESS TAX KEY NO. DESCRIPTION Unit COST/Unit COST ASSESSMENT CAP TOTAL ASSESSMENT

12
JAMES R KIECKHAEFER AND MICHELE C 
KIECKHAEFER PWC 0929050 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26269 STEEPLECHASE CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-6804

13 DORA KABRICH PWC 0929051 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26192 STEEPLECHASE CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

14
WALTER CHRISTENSEN & JUDITH 
CHRISTENSEN PWC 0929052 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26180 STEEPLECHASE CT
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

15 BRADLEY M DEJA AND MONA E DEJA PWC 0929053 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26147 COACHMAN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4971

16 JOHN R LOEW & PAULA M VERBOOMEN PWC 0929054 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26138 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4580

17 DYLAN R RABL AND EMILY R RABL PWC 0929055 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26110 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4577

18 ANDREW V GILSON & KATE C GILSON PWC 0929056 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2984 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4576

19 MICHAEL RUCKI & LINDA A LUTZ PWC 0929057 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2978 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4576

20

MICHAEL J & JOANNE A MIKELONIS 
REVOCABLE TRUST DATED FEBRUARY 9, 
2013 PWC 0929058 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2972 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

21 KIP RITCHIE & NANCY RITCHIE PWC 0929059 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2968 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

22 ROBERT DEMPSEY & CARRIE DEMPSEY PWC 0929060 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2950 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072
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FINAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

STEEPLECHASE SUBDIVISION PHASE 1 2018 PAVING
RD-18-57424

CITY OF PEWAUKEE

P:\City\Road Construction Projects\Steeplechase 2018\Assessment\Final\Final Assessment Roll Steeplechase 2018 Page 3 of 6

NO. OWNERS NAME AND ADDRESS TAX KEY NO. DESCRIPTION Unit COST/Unit COST ASSESSMENT CAP TOTAL ASSESSMENT

23 MICHAEL KEBER & SUSAN KEBER PWC 0929061 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2938 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

24 JOHN L FLECKENSTEIN PWC 0929062 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2914 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

25 THOMAS SANDVIK & NICOLE SANDVIK PWC 0929063 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2888 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4575

26 PATRICK DAWSON & JENNIFER DAWSON PWC 0929064 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2866 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

27 JAMES D HUEBNER & LISA F HUEBNER PWC 0929065 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2848 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

28 MATTHEW R BIEBEL & TAMMY J BIEBEL PWC 0929066 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2832 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

29
JUSTIN A SCHWEIKERT & LINDSAY A 
SCHWEIKERT PWC 0929067 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2824 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4575

30
SAMANTHA HOPPE AND GREGORY D HOPPE 
JR PWC 0929068 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N27W26015 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4599

31 CRAIG D OLINGER & TRISH M OLINGER PWC 0929069 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N27W26021 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4599

32 DAVID LINSMEIER & PATRICIA LINSMEIER PWC 0929070 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N27W26033 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

33 MICHAEL R LUND & JILL C COSTELLO PWC 0929071 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N27W26059 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4599
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NO. OWNERS NAME AND ADDRESS TAX KEY NO. DESCRIPTION Unit COST/Unit COST ASSESSMENT CAP TOTAL ASSESSMENT

34
JASON R AND KIMBERLY A EISENDRATH 
REVOCABLE TRUST PWC 0929072 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N27W26081 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4599

35 KELLY BRADLEY & JOANNE BRADLEY PWC 0929073 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N27W26093 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

36
KYLE J SODERSTROM AND STACY L 
SODERSTROM PWC 0929075 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N27W26060 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4599

37 CHARLES LEWIN & CYNTHIA LEWIN PWC 0929076 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N27W26030 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

38
JOHN K SMOKOVICH AND KATHLEEN M 
PEREZ REVOCABLE TRUST OF 2017 PWC 0929077 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N27W26012 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4599

39 VINCENT LAMBERT & SEVERINE GIRAUD PWC 0929078 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2821 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4575

40 JIMMY A KIMBO & TRACY L KIMBO PWC 0929079 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2833 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4575

41 CHAD KNUTSON & MARIE LIBRIZZI PWC 0929080 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2847 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

42 RICHARD CLINE & BARBARA CLINE PWC 0929081 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2877 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

43
JAMES E & KAREN L MADERSKI REVOCABLE 
TRUST PWC 0929082 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2889 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

44 DANIEL HEXT & KRISTEN HEXT PWC 0929083 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2909 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4576
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45 COREY A HONL & DEBRA S HONL PWC 0929084 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2931 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

46 SCOTT KOZLIK & DAWN KOZLIK PWC 0929085 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2949 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

47 RUSSELL W ROBERTS & KAREN M ROBERTS PWC 0929086 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2961 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

48 THOMAS G POELZER & SALLY A POELZER PWC 0929087 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
W260N2977 STEEPLECHASE DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4576

49 BRIAN R SHERMAN & ADRIANE N SHERMAN PWC 0929088 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26140 COACHMAN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4972

50 DAVID F BOGIE & LORI J BOGIE PWC 0929089 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26144 COACHMAN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

51 SHELDON L MOYSIS & KATHY J MOYSIS PWC 0929090 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26152 COACHMAN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

52 DANIEL DETTLAFF PWC 0929091 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
N29W26160 COACHMAN DR
PEWAUKEE WI 53072-4587

53 LOT OWNERS OF STEEPLECHASE PWC 0929114 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
PO BOX 451 **
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

54 LOT OWNERS OF STEEPLECHASE PWC 0929115 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
PO BOX 451 **
PEWAUKEE WI 53072
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55 LOT OWNERS OF STEEPLECHASE PWC 0929116 Road Reconstruction 1.00 $6,406.71 $6,406.71 $2,562.00 $2,562.00
PO BOX 451 **
PEWAUKEE WI 53072

TOTAL CONTRIBUTION IN AID OF ROAD CONSTRUCTION 55.00 $140,910.00

** The HOA requested the outlot assessments be placed on each lot therefore, the assessments for Outlots will be included on the 2019 Paving project assessments.  

The properties against which contributions in aid of construction are proposed are benefited and the improvements constitute an exercise in Police Powers.
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Resolution 21-07-26 Steeplechase Phase 1 Road Final Page 1 of 2 

STATE OF WISCONSIN    CITY OF PEWAUKEE WAUKESHA COUNTY 
 

RESOLUTION 21-07-26 
FINAL RESOLUTION FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 
STEEPLECHASE PHASE 1 SUBDIVISION PAVEMENT RECONDITIONING AND 

RELATED FACILITIES 
UNDER SECTION 66.0703, WISCONSIN STATUTES 

 
WHEREAS, The Common Council of the City of Pewaukee has adopted a special 

assessment policy in regard to improvement of all streets, roads, and related facilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Common Council of the City of Pewaukee did authorize previously 

the cost of the road rehabilitation, drainage improvements, and appurtenances of Steeplechase 
Subdivision Phase 1; and  
 

WHEREAS, The Common Council of the City of Pewaukee, Waukesha County, 
Wisconsin held a public hearing at City Hall Council Chambers, located at W240N3065 
Pewaukee Road, Pewaukee, WI at 6:00 pm on the 18th day of February, 2018 to receive 
comments from those property owners directly affected by such improvements; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED:  That the Common Council of 

the City of Pewaukee, to adopt this resolution as follows: 
 
1. That the final report prepared by the City Engineer dated July 14, 2021, is hereby 

adopted and made a part of this resolution. 
2. That the total cost of said improvement of $404,966.28 including engineering and 

contingency fees, be paid by assessing the cost to the properties benefited as indicated 
in said report and based upon the adopted special assessment policies of the City of 
Pewaukee. 

3. That the benefit shown on the report, as modified, is true and correct and has been 
determined on a reasonable basis and is hereby confirmed. 

4. That this assessment is an exercise of the police power of the City of Pewaukee and 
have been determined on a reasonable basis and will result in a benefit to each and 
every property being assessed. 

5. That the Common Council has previously determined that the bid for the drainage 
improvements of and road rehabilitation of Steeplechase Phase 1 to Payne & Dolan, 
Incorporated, based on the lowest qualified bid be accepted and that the contract was 
thereupon let to said bidder in the bid amount of $284,000.00. 

6. That the payment for the debt incurred for the road be made by assessing the cost to 
the property benefited and on the following terms and conditions: 

a. Road Assessment: 
i. The Road Assessment is $6,406.71 per unit that is capped at $2,562.00 

per unit for single family, duplex, and condominium residential 
properties.  That the assessments may be paid in cash in full on or 
before October 31, 2021 or in ten annual installments to the City 
Treasurer, installment payments to bear annual simple interest at the 
rate of 2.49% per annum on the unpaid balance and said first 
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Resolution 21-07-26 Steeplechase Phase 1 Road Final Page 2 of 2 

installment being due on the date when real estate taxes are due and 
annually by October 31st thereafter.  All assessments or installments 
which are not paid by the date specified shall be extended upon the tax 
roll as a delinquent tax against the property and all proceedings in 
relation to the collection, return and sale of property for delinquent real 
estate taxes shall apply to such special assessment, except as otherwise 
provided by statute. 

ii. If there exists the potential for future units within the local road 
assessment area.  Additional units may become payable per the Special 
Assessment of Street and Street Related Improvements Policy 
(Resolution 06-02-1 or as otherwise revised/updated) for a period of 5 
years from the date of final resolution.  The additional assessment will 
be due at the time of subdivision (via Certified Survey Map (CSM), 
Plat of Survey, or other land division methods). 

7. That the City Clerk shall publish this Final Resolution as a Class 1 Notice in the area 
upon which this assessment is levied and shall mail a copy of this Resolution and a 
statement of the final assessment against the benefited properties to each property 
owner who appears on the assessment roll, whose post office address is known or can, 
with reasonable diligence, be ascertained.  In the notice published and mailed, a map 
shall be enclosed and shall be published and mailed with the notice as will reasonably 
describe the area upon which this assessment is being levied.  This assessment is 
levied upon all properties within the project area having direct access to Steeplechase 
Subdivision Phase 1.  Each of said property owners shall be assessed in accordance 
with the Engineer’s Report. 

 
This Final Resolution passed and adopted this 19th day of July, 2021. 
  

       CITY OF PEWAUKEE 
 
             

       

X
Steve Bierce
Mayor

ATTEST:    
 

X
Kelly M. Tarczewski
Clerk/Treasurer
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 14.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Public Works

PROVIDED BY: Magdelene Wagner

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Possible Action for Reconsideration of the Sharing the Municipal Water Main Oversizing Cost with
Westridge Builders for the Swan View Farms Development Phase 2 [Wagner]

BACKGROUND: 

Recall the Common Council took action to cost share the municipal sewer with Westridge Builders, but declined to cost
share in the municipal water main upsizing at the June 21, 2021 Common Council meeting.  The Developer has
requested to revisit this item.
 
Below is the text included that was part of the June 21st agenda packet.
On a related but separate issue, the Developer is now also seeking a cost share for the Water Main upsizing.  Staff
required the Developer to install a 12" water main through the subdivision to Balmer Park.  This would allow the City to
connect through Balmer Park and a small stretch of Lindsay Road to the existing water main at the Sports Complex. 
This creates a secondary loop for the Northeast Quadrant of the City (Woodleaf Reserve, Victoria Station, etc.) and
bolsters the fire protection in this area.  Originally this loop would extend from Swan Road (installed in 2014), but this
subdivision gives us the opportunity to make this connection sooner and at a considerable shorter distance and cost. 
The loop to Swan Road will still be installed, but it gives the Utility some time to allow the development of this corridor
and perhaps shared construction costs with a further Developer in the area.  
 
The requested cost share is $51,772.50.  This cost would be included in our next rate case and paid through the rates of
the water utility since it would be a benefit to the system overall.  In the short term, this would be added to our
borrowing for 2021 for the Water Utility projects.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

Common Council agrees to the the cost share of the water main upsizing in the Swan View Farms Development Phase 2
contingent on an agreement for the terms of the cost share (to be drafted by our City Attorney for execution by the
Developer and the City), and the cost be recovered through the water rates in a future rate case.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Water Main Cost Share
Cost Share Request
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1

Wagner, Magdelene

From: Carl Tomich <carlt@westridgebuilders.com>
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 12:14 PM
To: Wagner, Magdelene; Fuchs, Nick
Subject: Swan phase 2
Attachments: 0201_001.pdf; 0079_001.pdf; 0083_001.pdf

Maggie  
 
Attached is a cost to upsize the rest of Swan phase 2 water main to 12” from 8”, clearly this isn’t needed for our 
subdivision and I assume you all want this for future expansion.  Please confirm that this is something you all requested 
and I request this is added for reimbursement.  Attached is also the new pricing (and old) for doing the extra deep 
utilities that was approved last year, keep in mind these prices could go up again because the manufacture will not hold 
pricing until the pipe is actually made.  We have put in the order because the lead time is longer than normal as you 
might imagine . 
 
Carl 
 
Carl P Tomich 
President/C.E.O. 
P262.547.0326 F262.542.4361 
carlt@westridgebuilders.com 
www.westridgebuilders.com 
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 15.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Public Works

PROVIDED BY: Magdelene Wagner

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Last Mile Facility Escrow Agreement for Improvement to Roundy Drive
and Roundy Circle to Support the Project [Wagner].

BACKGROUND: 

Last Mile is re-developing an existing parcel on Roundy Circle East which requires some additional improvements to the
intersection of Roundy Drive and Roundy Circle East and intersection pavement markings at the intersection of Roundy
Drive and Redford Boulevard (CTH F).  
 
The City has bid and is currently under construction for a road rehabilitation project for Roundy Drive and Roundy
Circle.  The Developer requested the City complete the road improvements as part of its rehabilitation project.  
 
The design of these improvements and estimated construction costs have been completed by the City's Engineer and
Contractor.  Staff agree this is the most logical and economical means to complete these improvements and recommend
approving the agreement and establish value of the deposit required at a value of $89,377.38 ($74,481.15 construction
and engineering plus 20%).

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The Developer is paying all costs associated with the improvements required for their development.  The City will have
future maintenance costs associated with the maintenance of these improvements in the future.

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

Common Council approve the escrow agreement and guarantee value of $89,377.38 contingent on City Attorney and
City Engineer's review and approval.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Last Mile Escrow Agreement
Last Mile Guarantee
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AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
 CITY OF PEWAUKEE AND LAST MILE FACILITY CTH F 

FOR RELOCATION OF SEWER MAIN  
 

 City of Pewaukee (City) and Last Mile Facility CTH F (Last Mile), hereby agree as 
follows: 

WHEREAS, Last Mile, is the owner of real property located at W232N2950 Roundy 
Circle East, Pewaukee, Wisconsin; and  

WHEREAS, the City is constructing highway and street improvements to Roundy Drive 
and CTH F adjacent to Last Mile property; and 

WHEREAS, Last Mile has asked the City to construct additional highway and street 
improvements to Roundy Drive and Redford Boulevard (CTH F) and Roundy Drive and Roundy 
Circle East to specifically benefit Last Mile, said additional improvements being detailed in 
Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to construct additional highway and street improvements 
to Roundy Drive and CTH F and Roundy Drive and Roundy Circle East conditioned upon an 
agreement for payment of the costs associated with the additional highway and street 
improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the City has estimated the costs for the additional highway and street 
improvements; and 

WHEREAS, Last Mile has agreed to pay the costs for the additional highway and street 
improvements; and 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The parties agree that the additional highway and street improvements will occur as 
soon as practicable.  

2. The additional highway and street improvements shall be constructed generally as 
depicted on the attached Exhibit A. 

3. The City shall be solely responsible for bidding, contracting and supervising the 
highway and street improvements project.  

II. PAYMENT 

1.  Last Mile shall pay all costs of the engineering and construction of said 
improvements.  
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2. To ensure payment to the City, Last Mile shall provide a cash deposit in the amount of 
$___________. The cash deposit shall only be utilized to pay the invoices related to the 
additional highway and street improvements in a timely manner.   

4.  In the event the cash escrow is insufficient to pay all costs of the additional highway 
and street improvements the City shall invoice Last Mile for the balance of the charges, and Last 
Mile shall pay the City within 10 business days of the date of the City invoice. 

5.  In the event Last Mile fails to pay all costs when due, any amount remaining shall be 
processed as a special charge and ultimately placed on the tax bill for the property as provided 
for under §66.0627, Stats. 

 

III. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 1. This Agreement contains the complete terms agreed to by the parties and anything not 
contained herein as a result of discussions, meetings or other documents is specifically excluded. 

 2. This Agreement is not transferable by Last Mile to any other person or entity without 
the written approval of the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

 3. This Agreement is effective as of the date of the last signature contained herein. 

 

LAST MILE FACILITY CTH F 
CORPORATION 

 

________________________________ 
Signature 

______________________ 
Printed name 

________________________________ 
Title 

______________________ 
Date 

Attest (if required): 
 
________________________________ 
Signature 

______________________ 
Printed name 

________________________________ 

CITY OF PEWAUKEE 

 

 

________________________________ 

Steve Bierce, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 

______________________ 
Kelly Tarcziewski, Clerk 
 
______________________ 
Date 
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Title 

______________________ 
Date 
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~Pewaukee City 26-10095 Paul Road Water Main Relay > 200 - Design > Correspondence > Roundy Circle East Proposal > Wagner-
20210713-Roundy Circle Roundy Drive Construction Estimate.doc~ 
Your Infrastructure Ally ruekertmielke.com 

W233 N2080 Ridgeview Parkway, Waukesha, WI 53188-1020 262-542-5733 

July 14, 2021 

Ms. Magdelene J. Wagner, P.E. 
Director of Public Works 
City of Pewaukee 
W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road 
Pewaukee, WI   53072 

Re: Roundy Circle East/Roundy Drive Intersection Improvements – Construction Costs 

Dear Maggie: 

As stated in your email dated June 9, 2021, improvements to the intersections of Roundy Drive and 
Roundy Circle East, as well as Roundy Drive and Redford Blvd. (CTH F) as necessitated by future 
development will be incorporated into the City’s Paul Road Reconstruction project. Ruekert & Mielke has 
requested estimated construction costs for the improvements from Wolf Paving, Inc. for the City to 
establish a letter of credit for the developer. Construction costs as received from Wolf and their 
subcontractors are listed below. Ruekert & Mielke previously provided a proposal for the engineering 
services on June 14, 2021. 

Description Total Price 
Roundy Drive/Roundy Circle Intersection Improvements $35,474.90 
Roundy Drive/Redford Blvd Intersection Improvements $23,006.25 

Total Construction Costs $58,481.15 
Engineering Costs $16,000.00 

Total Costs $74,481.15 

The construction cost estimate received from Wolf is attached to this letter. If you have any questions on 
the above, please contact this office.  

Respectfully, 

RUEKERT & MIELKE, INC. 

Gregory R. Calhoun, P.E. (WI) 
Project Manager 
gcalhoun@ruekert-mielke.com 

GRC:grc 
Enclosures 
cc: Magdelene J. Wagner, P.E., City of Pewaukee 

Brian Leightner, City of Pewaukee 
Ken Ward, P.E., Ruekert & Mielke, Inc. 
DeLeah Willman, E.I.T., Ruekert & Mielke, Inc. 
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To: Contact:City Of Pewaukee Madgelene Wagner

Paul Road Reconstruction And Joseph Road ReconstProject Name: Bid Number: 26-10125.200

Fax:Pewaukee, WI  53072   2626910770

Address: W240 N3065 Pewaukee Road Phone:

Project Location: Paul Rd And Joseph Rd, Pewaukee, WI Bid Date: 3/30/2021

Total PriceUnit PriceUnitItem DescriptionItem # Estimated Quantity

Exhibit 1 - Roundy Drive/Roundy Circle East Intersection Impr
$9,750.00$9,750.001.00CO1.0 LS Mobilization

$10,539.75$44.85235.00CO1.1 LF 30-inch Concrete Curb And Gutter Remove And Replace

$3,375.00$3.75900.00CO1.2 SFRemove Median

$2,400.00$15.00160.00CO1.3 SFReplace Concrete Bull Noses

$1,250.00$125.0010.00CO1.4 LF12-inch RCP Storm Sewer

$3,260.15$3,260.151.00CO1.5 EACHStorm Sewer Inlet W/Fabric Wrap

$4,900.00$2,450.002.00CO1.6 EACHMove Signs

$35,474.90Total Price for above Exhibit 1 - Roundy Drive/Roundy Circle East Intersection Impr Items:

Exhibit 2 - Roundy Drive/Redford Blvd Intersection Improv.
$19,760.00$104.00190.00CO1.10 SYRemove And Replace Concrete Pavement 9-Inch

$1,785.00$5.25340.00CO1.7 LFPavement Marking, Epoxy 4-Inch Solid Yellow

$892.50$5.25170.00CO1.8 LFPavement Marking, Epoxy 4-Inch Solid White

$568.75$16.2535.00CO1.9 LFPavement Marking, Epoxy 18-Inch Solid White

$23,006.25Total Price for above Exhibit 2 - Roundy Drive/Redford Blvd Intersection Improv. Items:

$58,481.15Total Bid Price:

Notes:

• Estimator Notes:  <Enter bids notes here, do not remove blank lines>

.
• Parties:  Wolf Paving Co., Inc./Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc. ("Wolf" or "Wolf Paving") and the Customer (identified below) hereby

mutually agree to be bound by these General Terms and Conditions ("Terms"), which are made part of and incorporated into the foregoing
Proposal.  These Terms and the Proposal are collectively referenced below as "the "Agreement" or "this Agreement".

• Customer Obligations:  Customer shall be solely responsible for the following:
· Providing Wolf with specifications and plans for the work to be performed by Wolf under this Agreement (the "Specifications"), and said

Specifications shall be subject to Wolf's approval;
· Back filling all edges of paved areas;
· Notifying Wolf of the presence of any underground utilities or other concealed conditions that would not be identified by a Digger's

Hotline search and identification and/or unusual conditions or restrictions during excavation;
· Furnishing Wolf with a suitable subgrade/aggregate base having the ability to support the maximum axle loads transmitted from the

heaviest construction and/or vehicle traffic anticipated as to not to cause any deformation to the subgrade/aggregate base;
· Rough grading the subgrade within +/- 0.1' of the proposed plan subgrade elevations;
· If the Proposal provides for completion of fine grading by Wolf, furnishing a subgrade to within +/- 0.1' of the proposed plan aggregate

base course elevations;
· Arranging for any changes in landscaping needed to insure proper drainage flow from the project site;
· Securing all necessary permits and approvals required by any regulatory agencies to perform Wolf's work (collectively the "Permits"); and
· All requirements imposed by any regulatory agency and/or pertaining to compliance with any such Permits.
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• Work of Others:  Prior to Wolf commencing its work, the work of all others shall be completed to an extent that it will not in any way conflict or
interfere with Wolf's operations or timely completion of Wolf's work.  In the event Wolf is directed to begin operations prior to completion of any
other contractor's work, Customer shall pay Wolfs' costs related to any additional mobilizations or reduced productivity attributable to obstructions
or delays caused by the failure to complete the work of others prior to commencement of Wolf's work.

• Site Drainage: Wolf reserves the right to refuse to perform the paving work unless minimum grades of 2.0% are attainable for surface
drainage.  If Customer directs construction with less than a minimum of grade of 2.0% or if the Specifications do not provide for 2.0% drainage in
all directions, it is understood and agreed that water ponding may occur and that no warranty will attach to the paving work.

• Fine Grading of Aggregate/Unforseen Conditions:  If the surface to be paved is to be fine graded by Customer or others, Wolf may require
additional work to said surface, at Customer's sole cost, to correct deficiencies in the surface for stability, surface drainage, slope, elevation and
other matters.  In addition, in the event that a proof roll conducted by Wolf identifies "soft spots" in the aggregate base of the project site, such
aggregate base will need to be stabilized at the sole cost of Customer; provided, however, any additional work to provide aggregate base
stabilization will not be performed without the Customer's written consent.

• Limitations of Scope of Work:  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement to the contrary, Wolf shall not be responsible for the
following:

· Damage, restoration and/or changes to landscaping as a result of project preparation, execution or completion or base course repairs of
landscaping restoration;

· Insuring the proper continuation of drainage flow from the project site;
· Movement or damage to any concrete, retaining walls, pavers or other structures during excavation or compaction on or near the project

site;
· Pavement damage due to normal construction equipment traffic;
· Damage to any unmarked underground utilities;
· Redesigning of plan grades in order to establish a minimum grade of 2.0% for surface drainage.

• Change Orders/Changed Conditions:  Any changes to the scope of Wolf's work or any changes to the project conditions which require
adjustment in the price of Wolf's work under this Agreement must be documented in written change order signed by Customer and Wolf prior to
commencement of any extra work by Wolf.

• Acceptance of Materials:  All labor and materials are conclusively accepted as satisfactory unless written objection is submitted to Wolf within
seven (7) days of performance.

• Termination/Cancellation:  Customer has the right to unilaterally cancel performance of this Agreement by notifying Wolf within three (3)
business days after executing this Agreement.  If Customer terminates this Agreement  at any time after said three (3) day period, Wolf shall be
entitled to retain all payments made before the date written notice of termination is received by Wolf and to be paid all sums owed for all other
portions of Wolf's work that has been performed but not yet paid for or invoiced, along with an administrative fee in the amount of 10% of the total
price for Wolf's work.

• No Liquidated Damages:  Wolf shall not be liable under any circumstances for actual, special, consequential and/or incidental damages of any
kind should Wolf's progress be substantially delayed by unanticipated changes, omissions or additions, by fire or other unavoidable casualty, by
unusually severe weather conditions, or by strikes, labor trouble or lockouts not caused by the acts of Wolf or any supplier of Wolf, by reason of
acts, omissions, neglect or default of Customer, other subcontractors or any other third party, by any cataclysmic event or act of God, or by reason
of any other events or caused beyond the direct control of Wolf or any supplier of Wolf.  In such event or circumstance, Wolf shall have the right to
extend the time to complete the work by the amount of any such delay caused by such events or circumstances.

• Insurance:  Customer shall maintain any necessary property insurance coverage on the work.  Wolf shall maintain Worker's Compensation
insurance to the extent required by law.  Wolf will meet the required insurance limits of liability by using a combination of primary insurance policies
and umbrella/excess policies.

• Indemnification:  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Customer shall indemnify, defend and hold Wolf and its shareholders, officers,
employees, agents, subcontractors, and material suppliers harmless of, from and against any and all actions, causes of action, claims, demands,
damages, injuries, losses, liabilities, loss of services, penalties, assessments, attorneys' fees, other professional fees, expenses and other costs and
charges of every kind and nature (collectively, "Claims") resulting form or in any way relating to the negligence, misconduct, or violation of law by
Customer in the performance of, or its failure to perform, any of Customer's obligations under the Agreement including, but not limited to, Claims
attributable to (a) bodily injury, sickness, diseases or death; and/or (b) damage injury to or destruction of property (including, but not limited to,
the loss of use of such property resulting therefrom).

• Limited Warranty:  Wolf warrants to Customer that Wolf's work shall be in conformity with the Specifications and free from defects in
workmanship and material for a period of one (1) year from the date of substantial completion of Wolf's work.  Wolf shall not be liable for any
breach of warranty unless Customer gives written notice to Wolf within fourteen (14) days of discovery of a claimed defect and said written notice
is received by Wolf within one (1) year after substantial completion of the work.  Customer shall permit Wolf the opportunity to examine or test the
alleged defect as reasonably requested by Wolf.  If Wolf in its reasonable discretion determines that the alleged defect was due to faulty
workmanship or defective material and not due to other causes, Wolf in its sole discretion will repair or replace said defects at no cost to Customer.
This Limited Warranty does not include or extend to: (a) remedies for defects or damages caused by work of Customer, other contractors or third
parties; (b) errors or inaccuracies in the Specifications or defects in the design or engineering of Wolf's work; (c) normal wear and tear, including,
without limitation, defects or damages caused by the natural expansion or contraction of the construction materials; (d) use for a purpose for which
the work was not intended; (e) improper or insufficient maintenance; (f) modifications performed by Customer, other contractors or any other third
party; (g) sealcoat damage from snow plows; (h) drainage problems on the project site including, but not limited, to standing water; (i)
construction traffic; (j) pavement overlays due to the potential of reflective cracking or expansion joints; (k) abuse; or (l) acts of God, casualty,
catastrophe or other force majeure.  This Limited Warranty shall be in effect only if Wolf receives final payment in full of the total invoiced amount
to Customer upon completion of Wolf's work.  This Limited Warranty shall extend solely to Customer.
THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES CONTAINED HEREIN ARE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, HABITABILITY, OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE., ALL OF WHICH ARE HEREBY
DISCLAIMED BY WOLF.  THIS LIMITED WARRANTY ALSO EXCLUDES CONSEQUENTIAL AND INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
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• Notice of Lien Rights:  AS REQUIRED BY WISCONSIN CONSTRUCTION LIEN LAW, WOLF HEREBY NOTIFIES OWNER (IF CUSTOMER IS OWNER
OF THE PROPERTY ON WHICH WOLF'S WORK IS PERFORMED) THAT PERSONS OR COMPANIES PERFORMING, FURNISHING, OR PROCURING
LABOR, SERVICES, MATERIALS, PLANS, OR SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION ON OWNER'S LAND MAY HAVE LIEN RIGHTS ON OWNER'S
LAND AND BUILDINGS IF NOT PAID.  THOSE ENTITLED TO LIEN RIGHTS, IN ADDITION TO WOLF, ARE THOSE WHO CONTRACT DIRECTLY WITH
THE OWNER OR THOSE WHO GIVE THE OWNER NOTICE WITHIN 60 DAYS AFTER THEY FIRST PERFORM, FURNISH, OR PROCURE LABOR,
SERVICES,MATERIALS, PLANS OR SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION.  ACCORDINGLY, OWNER PROBABLY WILL RECEIVE NOTICES
FROM THOSE WHO PERFORM, FURNISH, OR PROCURE LABOR, SERVCIES, MATERIALS, PLANS, OR SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION,
AND SHOULD GIVE A COPY OF EACH NOTICE RECEIVED TO THE MORTGAGE LENDER, IF ANY.  WOLF AGREES TO COOPERATE WITH THE OWNER
AND THE OWNER'S LENDER, IF ANY, TO SEE THAT ALL POTENTIAL LIEN CLAIMANTS ARE DULY PAID.

• Severability/Governing Law:  If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, such
determination shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.  The validity, interpretation and
performance of the parties hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin, without regard to the conflict of laws principles
thereof.

• Incorporation:  In the event any other agreement is entered into between the parties, these Terms shall be incorporated into any such
agreement and shall supersede any conflicting terms contained therein unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing by Wolf and Customer.  In the
event of a conflict between the Proposal and these Terms, these Terms shall govern unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing by Wolf and
Customer.

• Acceptance:  Customer acknowledges and agrees that the prices and specifications set forth in the Proposal and these Terms are satisfactory and
are hereby accepted.  Customer authorizes Wolf to do the work as specified in the Proposal, subject to and in compliance with the Terms set forth
above.  The conditions of this proposal will be honored for 15 days, after that time Wolf Paving Co., Inc. reserves the right to adjust the terms of
this proposal.  All agreements entered through this proposal/contract contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control – Wolf Paving
Co., Inc. reserves the right to adjust the terms of this contract is work is not completed within 14 days of authorization date or if the contract items
are not completed within the stated time frame.  Also, within the duration of the contract, Wolf Paving Co., Inc. reserves the right to pass along AC
oil and other operation costs increases that occur prior to construction phase operations.

• Pricing:  Prices are only good for work completed during the 2021 Construction Season.  Work that is carried over to the 2022 season is subject to
change based on oil prices.

Payment Terms:

Payment: Payment is due to Wolf upon substantial completion of the work, unless otherwise specified by the parties in writing. If
performance of Wolf's work will extend beyond thirty (30) days, Wolf may issue progress billings on the project and each progress billing will be due
and payable upon receipt of the progress billing.  Any amounts remaining unpaid when due may be subject to late charges of 1.5% per month, 18%
annually or the maximum interest rate permitted by law, whichever is less.  Any credit card payments are subject to a 3% surcharge.

ACCEPTED:

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory
and hereby accepted.

Buyer:

Signature:

Date of Acceptance:

CONFIRMED:

Wolf Paving Co., Inc.

Authorized Signature:

Estimator: Matt Horness

(262) 490-7961
Matthew.Horness@wolfpaving.com
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 16.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Clerk/Treasurer

PROVIDED BY:

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Alderman Bergman's Letter of Resignation [Mayor Bierce]

BACKGROUND: 

There potential options to fill the vacancy.
1)     Do nothing.
2)     Appoint a new Alderman.
3)     Hold a special election.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Letter from Alderman Bergman
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July 6, 2021 

City of Pewaukee 
W240N3065 Pewaukee Road 
Pewaukee WI 53072 

RE: Brandon Bergman Aldermanic Resignation – July 20th, 2021 

To whom it may concern, 

Let this letter serve as notice that as of July 20th, 2021, I resign my elected position as Alderman 
of district #1 in the City of Pewaukee.  My resignation is due to the fact that I will no longer 
reside at my current address (N36W23407 Oak Hill Lane, Pewaukee, WI 53072) as of that date.  
Andrea and I have decided to move to the other side of the City of Pewaukee, but no longer in 
the district in which I was elected. 
 
It has been my privilege to serve the people of Pewaukee over the past 6+ years.  I thank the City 
of Pewaukee electorate for entrusting me with the position to represent them.  I thank the City of 
Pewaukee’s staff for working so diligently with me over the past 20+ years to make our 
community the special lake country municipality that we each appreciate and love.  I thank my 
fellow elected officials for working beside me to ensure that we continue to provide the highest 
level of municipal service at one of the lowest tax rates for a city in the state of Wisconsin.  I 
thank the citizen volunteers who have worked beside me on the Plan Commission, Finance 
Committee and other various boards who have volunteered their time and knowledge to make 
Pewaukee a better place. 
 
I look forward to seeing all of you in and around the city in the near and long term.  Andrea and I 
don’t plan on living anywhere else. 

Sincerely, 

Brandon V. Bergman 
Alderman, District #1

CC: Common Council 
Plan Commission 
City Staff 
Finance Committee 

Sincerely,

Brandon V. Bergman 
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 17.

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Clerk/Treasurer

PROVIDED BY:

SUBJECT: 

Discussion and Possible Action to Appoint Members to Various Boards, Commissions and Committees [Mayor
Bierce]

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Appointments Needed
Long Letter of Interest
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Original

PLAN COMMISSION Appointment From To

     Doug Kiser 6/1/2020 6/1/2020 5/1/2022
     Sullivan, Sean (Engineer) 9/4/2007 5/15/2017 5/1/2018
     Janka, Ted 5/1/2003 5/4/2015 5/1/2018
     Linsmeier, Dave (Park & Recreation Board) 4/3/2006 5/20/2019 5/1/2020
     Wunder, Christine 7/1/2004 5/15/2017 5/1/2020
     Bierce, Steve - Mayor 6/6/2016 4/17/2017 Indefinitely
     Bergman, Brandon - Alderman 5/17/2017 5/17/2017 Indefinitely

According to Section 1.03(2) of the Pewaukee Municipal Code the membership should be as follows:
consisting of (7) members; the mayor (presiding officer), (1) Alderman, (1) representative from the Joint 
Park & Recreation Board (selected by the Park & Recreation Board) and (4) citizen members with 
experience and qualifications related to planning matters (1) of which needs to be a full-time City
Engineer.  (3) of the citizen members are to serve an alternating 3-year term.  The 4th citizen 
engineer member, the alderman and Joint Park & Recreation Board representative shall be appointed   
annually in April .  Citizen members are compensated.  

Original

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS Appointment From To

     Marlin, Katie - Chairperson (appointed 1/7/2019) 7/18/2016 8/6/2018 5/1/2021
     Thomas Matt 5/7/2012 5/21/2018 5/1/2021
     Welcenbach, Robert 6/1/2015 5/15/2017 5/1/2020
     Tredwell, Jim 2/15/2016 5/20/2019 5/1/2022
     VACANCY 5/1/2022
     VACANCY - Alternate 5/1/2023
     VACANCY - Alternate 5/1/2022

It consists of (5) regular members.  Their terms shall be for a staggered three (3) year period.  The 
Mayor shall appoint the Chairperson.  There shall also be (2) alternates for staggered three (3) year
term.  The Mayor shall annually designate as 1st and 2nd Alternate.  The 1st alternate will fill any 
vacancy and complete the regular appointee's term and the 2nd alternate will fill the 1st alternate's 
term, leaving the 2nd alternate position need to be filled.  On 1/2/2007 Ordinance 06-24 was passed
revising the membership.  

Original

FIRE COMMISSION Appointment From To

     Farley, Thomas 3/2/2020 3/2/2020 5/1/2023
     Goff, Bob 7/18/2011 6/1/2015 5/1/2020
     Novack, Kathleen 9/15/2014 5/20/2019 5/1/2024
     Wells, Larry 6/7/2021 6/7/2021 5/1/2026
     Elaine Kroening 11/5/2014 5/15/2017 5/1/2022

The Fire Commission was originally part of the Police & Fire Commission that was created by  
Ordinance 04-10 on 4/19/2004.  With the anticipated disbanding of the Police Department on 1/1/2010 
ordinance 9.21 was created and passed on 12/21/2009.  The membership remains as a five (5)  
citizen members; each to serve an alternating 5 - year term.  Compensation is $20 per meeting.

Current Term

Current Term

Current Term
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Original

JOINT LIBRARY BOARD Appointment From To

     Noll, Dale 5/2/2016 5/21/2018 5/1/2021
     Muchowski, Laura (nominated by Pewaukee School District) 2/21/2005 5/15/2017 5/1/2020
     Wildman, Karen 7/15/2013 5/20/2019 5/1/2022
     Clark, Ian - Alderman 6/7/2021 6/6/2021 Indefinitely
     Village Resident
     Village Resident
     Village Trustee

This Board was created by Ordinance 05-4 on 1/17/2005.  The Board consists of (3) members appointed
by the Village Board and (3) members appointed by the City Common Council.  No more than (1)
member from each municipality shall be an elected official.  (1) additional member shall be a City of 
Pewaukee resident and shall be nominated by the Superintendent of the Pewaukee School District and
appointed by the Common Council.   Members shall serve a staggering 3-year term.

Original

JOINT PARK & RECREATION BOARD Appointment From To

     Majeskie, Gary 2/19/2018 5/20/2019 1/1/2022
     Kaatz, Del 1/20/2003 7/20/2020 1/1/2023
     Linsmeier, Dave 4/3/2006 8/6/2018 1/1/2021
     Dziwulski, Brian - Alderman 7/17/2017 7/17/2017 Indefinitely
     Village Resident
     Village Resident
     Village Trustee

This Board was created by Ordinance 96-19 on 11/4/1996.  The Board consists of (7) voting members 
and (2) non-voting ex-officio members.  The breakdown of members is as follows: (1) Village Trustee,
(2) Village citizens, (1) City Alderman, and (3) City residents.  In addition the Administrators from the 
Village and City may attend meetings and take part in discussions.  The terms are 3-years with 
appointments in January.  Although no compensation was listed in the ordinance, citizen members
are being paid $20 for each meeting they attend.

Original

ETHICS BOARD Appointment From To

     Farley, Tom 2/7/2008 5/15/2017 4/30/2023
     Farrow, Margaret 2/7/2008 5/20/2019 4/30/2022
     VACANCY 4/30/2024
     VACANCY - Alternate 4/30/2024

The Ethics Board was established by Ordinance 06-16 on 9/5/2006.  It consists of (3) regular citizen 
members and (1) alternate.  Once established there will be alternating 3-year terms.  There is no
compensation for this position

Current Term

Current Term

Current Term
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Original

TOURISM COMMISSION Appointment From To

     Bierce, Steve - Mayor 1/1/2017 1/1/2017 Indefinitely
     Wamser, Jerry - Alderman 9/19/2017 5/20/2019 9/19/2020
     Brown, Colleen - Alderman 9/19/2017 5/20/2019 9/19/2020
     Grosch, Ray - Alderman 9/19/2017 5/20/2019 9/19/2020
     Doresey, Frank - Hotel Representative 10/15/18 5/20/2019 9/19/2020

Created by Ordinance 16-22 on September 19, 2016.  It is to consist of the Mayor and (3) Alderman and 
(1) member who shall represent the Wisconsin hotel & motel industry.  Commissioners shall serve
for a one-year term .  Among the members they shall elect a chairperson, vice-chairperson and 
secretary.  

Original

FINANCE COMMITTEE Appointment From To

     Bergman, Brandon - Alderman 5/4/2015 6/6/2016 Indefinitely
     Brown, Colleen - Alderman 5/6/2013 6/6/2016 Indefinitely
     VACANT Indefinitely
     Klein, Scott - Administrator 1/1/2017 1/1/2017 Indefinitely

Created by Ordinance 09-02 on January 19th, 2009.  The Committee shall consist of the following:
Two (2) Common Council Members & the City Administrator.  The appointments are to be made by the 
first regular meeting of the newly elected Council.  The Mayor shall designate the chairman and 
secretary of the committee.  On November 16th, 2009 it was revised by Ordinance 09-18 to add one (1) 
resident preferably with a financial background and Administrator as staff representative.  

Original

EMPLOYEE SERVICES COMMITTEE Appointment From To

     VACANT - Alderman Indefinitely
     Grosch, Ray - Alderman 6/6/2016 6/6/2016 Indefinitely
     Woldanski, Kelley - Director of People & Culture 1/19/2009 1/19/2009 Indefinitely

Current Term

Current Term

Current Term

The Human Resource Committee was created by Ordinance 09-02 on January 19th, 2009.  The Committee 
shall consist of the following: Two (2) Common Council Members & the Human Resource Director.  The 
appointments are to be made at the first meeting of the newly elected Council.  The Mayor shall designate 
the Chairman and Secretary of the Committee.  Revised on November 16th, 2009 by Ordinance 09-18 to 
name the HR Director as staff representative.  On 4/22/2019 via an email received by the Administrator, the  
Human Resource Director title changed to Director of People & Culture and the HR Department will be 
known as Employee Services.   
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PEWAUKEE LAKE PATROL Original

ADVISORY COMMITTEE Appointment From To

     Heier, Timothy - Police Chief 5/1/2019
     Twelmeyer, Lucas - Sergeant
     Heyrman, Greg Sergeant
     Clark, Ian - City of Pewaukee Alderman 6/21/2021 6/21/2021 Indefinitely
     Van Horn, Pete - Town of Delafield - Supervisor
     Hill, Ed - Village of Pewaukee - Trustee
     Koepp, Thomas - Lake Pewaukee Sanitary District 5/2/2011 5/2/2011 Indefinitely 

Created upon discussion at the Common Council meeting on 2/2/2009.  A termination needs to be made 
on the make-up of committee members and the purpose of the group.  Town of Delafield has different
opinion on the appointment of Thomas Koepp and doesn't believe he belongs on the committee.  
Whereas we wanted someone from the LPSD to serve on the committee for times when the water levels
were too high to help determine safety. 

Original

RESIDENCE BOARD Appointment From To

     Wagner, K. Scott - District #1 8/6/2018 5/20/2019 5/1/2024
     Tuttle, Debra - District #2 8/6/2018 8/6/2018 5/1/2021
     VACANCY - District #3 5/1/2023

Created by Ordinance 18-01 Approved on January 15, 2018.  The Board shall consist of three (3) 
citizens residing in the City one (1) from each Aldermanic District.  Members shall serve for a term of
five (5) years and shall serve no more than two (2) consecutive terms.  The terms for the initial members
of the Residence Board shall be staggered with one member serving one (1) year, a second member
serving three (3) years and the third member serving five (5) years. 

Current Term

Current Term
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COURTNEY LONG 
P: (920) 810.4080

E: cklong212@gmail.com
LinkedIn

July 6, 2021 

City of Pewaukee 
Re: Pedestrian & Bicyclist Planning Committee Position 

I am writing to the City of Pewaukee as I am interested in joining the Pedestrian and Bicyclist 
Planning Committee. I first heard of the committee through, Ray Grosch, whom I’ve had the 
pleasure of working with recently. I have ten years of professional experience in both nonprofit 
and for-profit organizations along with over seven years of various volunteer endeavors.  

Currently, I am the Project Coordinator for the Waukesha County Green Team (WCGT), a local 
nonprofit organization. In this role, I am assisting in the research and development of a 
municipal guide to sustainable planning. The purpose of this project is to help guide 
municipalities on how to implement actionable and fiscally responsible elements of sustainability 
into their strategic and/or municipal planning.  

Through this project I have gained valuable insight and knowledge on how to build a more 
pedestrian and bicyclist friendly community. I will bring invigorated passion to the committee 
along with new ideas to expand on the committee’s three main areas while also helping initiate 
measurable movement in these areas. I’d also love to expand on educational programs and 
projects to increase roadway safety and comfort for all users.  

I am excited about the opportunity to be a part of the Pedestrian and Bicyclist Committee and see 
what progress we can make to further the committee’s mission and goals of creating a more 
walkable and bikeable community, while also prioritizing safety and comfort for all roadway 
users.   

Below I’ve highlighted a few additional items that you may need/like to know: 
1. I am a City of Pewaukee resident 
2. I am an avid biker and enthusiast  
3. I am passionate about making positive changes in my community 
4. I have professional experience within the alternative fuel and transportation sector 

Please reference my professional resume for further details. If you have any other questions, 
please don’t hesitate to reach out. Thank you for your time and consideration and I look forward 
to hearing from you soon.  

Sincerely,  

Courtney Long 
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM •

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Clerk/Treasurer

PROVIDED BY:

SUBJECT: 

§19.85(1)(g):  Conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written
advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is currently
involved in specifically related to the High Pointe Centre.

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:
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CITY OF PEWAUKEE
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM •

DATE: July  19, 2021

DEPARTMENT: Administration

PROVIDED BY:

SUBJECT: 

§19.85(1)(e): Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds,
or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed
session specifically related to the property located on Green Road / Duplainville Road. 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

RECOMMENDED MOTION:
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